Special Joint Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, and Corporate
Issues Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date Friday 19 February 2016
Time 11.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham
Business
Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members
of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman’'s agreement.

1. Apologies for Absence
2.  Substitute Members
3. Declarations of interest, if any

4. Medium Term Financial Plan 2016/17 to 2019/20 (MTFP 6) and 2016/17
Budget - Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Pages 1 - 144)

5.  Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
11 February 2016



To: The Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board

Councillor J Armstrong (Chairman)
Councillor P Stradling (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors E Adam, A Batey, R Bell, H Bennett, D Boyes, K Corrigan,
R Crute, S Forster, B Graham, K Henig, J Hillary, A Hopgood, P Lawton,
J Lethbridge, T Nearney, M Nicholls, C Potts, L Pounder, J Robinson,

A Shield, M Simmons, W Stelling, J Turnbull, S Wilson

Parent Governor Representatives:
Mr R Patel

Other Members:

J Alvey, B Armstrong, L Armstrong, G Bleasdale, J Carr, P Crathorne,

E Huntington, N Martin, J Rowlandson, J Shuttleworth, L Taylor, A Turner,
M Wilkes and R Young

Contact: Jackie Graham Tel: 03000 269704




Agenda ltem 4
Overview and Scrutiny Management

Board ?@'

12 February 2016 DurhamkiE
County Council s:\;ggr

Medium Term Financial Plan 2016/17 to "

2019/20 (MTFP6) and 2016/17 Budget

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive

Purpose of the Report

1 To inform Overview and Scrutiny Management Board (OSMB) and Corporate
Issues Overview and Scrutiny Committee (CIOSC) Members of the Cabinet report
(17 February 2016) that provides comprehensive financial information to enable
Cabinet to agree a 2016/17 balanced revenue budget, an outline Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP (6)) for 2016/17 to 2019/20 and a fully funded capital
programme for recommendation to the County Council meeting on 24 February
2016 (full report attached at Appendix 2).

Background

2 Scrutiny members have been engaged in the development of this year's MTFP,
through a series of scrutiny meetings and member seminars. CIOSC were
commissioned by OSMB to take a lead in scrutinising MTFP proposals, with
members of OSMB (chairs/vice chairs and minority parties) invited to attend. The
following sessions have been held:

o 18 September 2015 OSMB - scrutiny of 15 July 2015 MTFP (6) Cabinet
report (CIOSC commissioned to take a lead)

o 28 September 2015 CIOSC — scrutiny of 15 July 2015 MTFP (6) Cabinet
report

o 26 January 2016 — a joint meeting of CIOSC and OSMB to consider the
Cabinet reports of 16 December 2015 and 13 January 2016, and to give
Members the opportunity for full consideration of the draft savings proposals,
with the scrutiny response being fed back to the Cabinet meeting on 17
February 2016.

3 The attached Cabinet report of 17t February 2016 presents additional information
regarding the MTFP in relation to the final settlement, specific grants and the capital
programme, consultation and the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) process, and
provides a further opportunity for Members to comment prior to full Council.

Recommendation

4 Members are asked to:

a) note and comment upon the contents of the attached Cabinet report of 17
February 2016, prior to full Council on 24 February 2016.

b) put forward final suggestions as part of the scrutiny response to Council on 24
February 2016.

Contact: Jenny Haworth Tel: 03000 268014

Page 1



Appendix 1: Implications (taken from the 17th February 2016 Cabinet
report)

Finance — The report sets out recommendations on the 2016/17 Budget and for the
MTFP(6) period 2016/17 — 2019/20.

Staffing — The impact of the MTFP upon staffing is detailed within the report.

Risk — A robust approach to Risk Assessment across the MTFP process has been
followed including individual risk assessment of savings plans.

Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty - Full information on equality and
diversity is contained within the report.

Accommodation — the Council’s Corporate Asset Management Plan is aligned to the
corporate priorities contained within the Council Plan. Financing for capital investment
priorities is reflected in the MTFP Model.

Crime and Disorder - It is recognised that the changes proposed in this report could have
a negative impact on crime and disorder in the county. However, the Council will continue
to work with the Policy and others through the safe Durham Partnership on strategic crime
and disorder and to identify local problems and target resources to them.

Human Rights — Any human rights issues will be considered for each of the proposals as
they are developed and decisions made to take these forward. There are no human right
implications from the information within the report.

Consultation — Full information on the MTFP (6) consultation process are contained in the
report.

Procurement — Wherever possible procurement savings are reflected in service groupings
savings plans.

Disability Issues — All requirements will be assessed in Equality Impact Assessments.

Legal Implications — The Council has a statutory responsibility to set a balanced budget
for 2016/17. It also has a fiduciary duty not to waste public resources.

Page 2



Appendix 2

Cabinet
17 February 2016

Medium Term Financial Plan 2016/17 to County Council §
2019/20 and Revenue and Capital
Budget 2016/17

Key Decision Number Corp/R/15/02

Report of Corporate Management Team

Joint Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources and
Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive

Councillor Alan Napier, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance
Councillor Simon Henig Leader of the Council

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide comprehensive financial information to enable Cabinet to agree
the 2016/17 balanced revenue budget, an outline Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP (6)) for 2016/17 to 2019/20 and a fully funded capital programme
for recommendation to the County Council meeting on 24 February 2016. The
report also updates the Discretionary Rate Relief Policy for 2016/17.

Executive Summary

2 The financial outlook for the Council and the whole of local government
remains extremely challenging. The Council has faced government funding
reductions since 2010/11 with reductions forecast to increase until at least
2019/20.

3 The Chancellor of the Exchequer's Autumn Statement published on 25
November 2015, announced an overall improvement in the public finances
compared to their previous forecasts which afforded some protection for a
range of government depariments. Unfortunately this protection was not
given to local govermment and in cash terms, the average reduction in
budgets for unprotected government departments over the 2016/17 to
2019/20 period is circa 6%, whereas the reduction for local government over
the same period is circa 56% in real terms. .

4 It is apparent therefore that the financial landscape for local authorities will
continue to be extremely challenging until at least 2019/20, resulting in the
longest period of austerity in modern times. By 31 March 2016 the Council
will have delivered savings of £153m since 2011. In the January 2016 MTFP
Cabinet report it was forecast that the savings required between 2016/17 and
2019/20 would be circa £124m. Having further analysed the Local
Government Finance Settlement it is now forecast that the savings required
for this period will be £104m, mainly due to confirmation of receipt of

Page 3


martin.tindle
Text Box
Appendix 2



Page 4

increased Better Care Funding from 2017/18 to 2019/20 and changes in the
way government funding reductions are being applied going forward.

The Council was originally forecasting that funding reductions would be
applied in line with previous government policy, however following lobbying
from some local authorities including Durham, the Association of North East
Councils {ANEC) and the Special Interest Group of Municipal Authorities
(SIGOMA), the government has made some methodology changes which
have beneficially impacted upon our previous savings forecast as shown
below:-

(i)  Revenue Support Grant (RSG) reductions are now based upon a
Core Spending Power (CSP) calculation which includes Council
Tax and Business Rate income as well as RSG. This has
resulted in a fairer apportionment of reductions in RSG across all
local authorities going forward, but does not address the
inequality of cuts applied across the period 2011/12 to 2015/16.

(ii) Local authorities providing adult social care services have been
provided the flexibility to increase council tax by an additional 2%
for an adult social care precept over and above the existing 2%
referendum level. In reporting the percentage Core Spending
Power reduction applied to local government, the government has
assumed that all authorities responsible for adult social care will
apply the additional 2% social care precept increase.

(i)  The Better Care Fund (BCF) has been increased by £1.5bn
nationally and will be allocated directly to local authorities rather
than through a pooled budget arrangement with the National
Health Service. The allocation will take into account each local
authority's ability to raise income via the additional 2% council tax
social care precept flexibility. The Council will receive £23m in
this regard, although the majority of this additional funding will not
be received until 2018/19 and 2019/20 and the funding for this will
come from top sliced funding, primarily the New Homes Bonus.

Although the provisional settlement resulted in local authorities Core
Spending Power varying by broadly the same levels, it would appear that
following intense lobbying by shire county councils, the government has
identified additional funding of £211m to be targeted at those authorities
whose Revenue Support Grant has reduced by the ‘highest percentage’ and
also at ‘rural’ authorities. Unfortunately, although Durham already faced a
higher Core Spending Power cut than the national average, the Council has
not received any increase in funding from this additional £211m allocation.
Shire county councils have received significant additional funding allocations
for 2016/17 and 2017/18 e.g. Surrey will receive an additional annual
allocation of £11.9m, Hampshire an additional £9.4m, North Yorkshire an
additional £9.2m and Cumbria an additional £5.2m.

The additional funding allocated to shire county councils has also resulted in
significant movement in their respective Core Spending Power positions with



10

11

12

13

North Yorkshire receiving an increase of 2.5% which would be the equivalent
of a £10m funding increase for Durham if we had received the same 2.5%
increase.

In addition to the reductions in Revenue Support Grant, the Council will face
additional reductions over the next four years in specific grants in relation to
New Homes Bonus, Public Health, Education Services and Housing Benefit
Administration. In addition, updated forecasts of demographic and other
inflationary pressures arising from the National Living Wage have had to be
accommodated within the MTFP forecasts.

Overall, the Council's final settiement position is only slightly better than
previously forecast due to receiving £140k more than forecast from the New
Homes Re-imbursement grant. The delivery of additional savings of £104m
across the next four years will be extremely challenging and will mean the
Council needing to deliver cumulative savings of £258m between 2011/12 and
2019/20.

The forecasted savings required to balance the 2016/17 budget are £37m and
includes forecast savings of £4.3m in relation to Public Health. The 2016/17
savings plans included in this report amount to £28.3m therefore the £4.4m
savings shortfall will be covered by the utilisation of £1.6m of the Budget
Support Reserve (BSR) and the utilisation of the £2.6m 2015/16 Collection
Fund surplus. The utilisation of these reserves will enable the Council to
delay the impact of further cuts in front line services until later years. At this
stage it is also forecast that an additional £11.8m of BSR will be utilised in
2017/18, bringing the total use of this reserve to £13.5m.

The Council has consulted with the public and stakeholders as part of the
MTFP development. During autumn 2013 a major exercise was carried out
which provided a clear steer in which services they felt should be prioritised
for larger or smaller reductions. A refresh of this exercise was carried out in
both the autumn of 2014 and the autumn of 2015, with the public and partner
agencies. In the most recent consultation, the majority of responses indicated
that the priorities established in 2013 were still appropriate.

A second phase of MTFP(6) consultation was carried out at public events in
December and January. There was support for the council’'s approach to
managing savings. In addition, there was general support in the Council
taking advantage of the additional 2% Council tax precept to support adult
social care services and in so doing enabling the Council to protect front line
services.

The Council's MTFP strategy for the last five years has been to protect front
line services as far as possible and the 2016/17 proposals are in line with this
strategy. This strategy is becoming increasingly difficult to maintain over time
and the likelihood is that front line services will become increasingly impacted
over the next four years. This report summarises how the main proposals are
in line with the Council’s overall strategy and have been shaped by residents’
and stakeholders' views with a high level analysis of the equalities impact.

Page 5



14

15

16

Page 6

Detailed savings proposals are included in the report for 2016/17 as shown at
Appendix 4 with high level, indicative savings also included for 2017/18. The
draft Local Government Finance Settlement published in December provided
details of RSG cuts up to 2019/20 and also provided the opportunity for local
authorities to receive confirmation of this ‘four year settlement’ on the
production of an ‘Efficiency Plan’. Cabinet agreed on 13 January to
provisionally notify the government how the Council would be minded to
submit an efficiency plan in order to receive confirmation of a four year
financial settlement subject to approval by Full Council. This report
describes how the Council fulfils the Government’s requirements to produce
an efficiency plan which is shown at Appendix 3.

In the setting of Council Tax levels for 2016/17, consideration has been given
to the significant financial pressures facing the Council and how best to meet
these pressures. The Government has confirmed that the maximum the
Council can increase council tax by is 2% without approval from a majority of
council tax payers to increase it higher after a public referendum. The
Government has also provided the option to increase council tax by an
additional 2% adult social care precept to local authorities like Durham who
provide adult social care services. This report therefore recommends a
3.99% Council Tax increase in the Council's Band D Council Tax in 2016/17,
which will generate additional income of £7.1m. The 3.99% increase would
result in an average increase of £1.68 a week for all Council Tax payers and
an increase of 68 pence a week for the majority of Council tax payers in
County Durham, who live in the lowest value properties (Band A). Continued
increases of 3.99% are also factored into the MTFP across the pericd
2017/18 to 2019/20.

Despite this very challenging financial period through the scale and sustained
level of Government spending cuts and the impact on the Council’s finances,
this report includes some very positive outcomes for the people of County
Durham including:

(i) Continued support to protect working age households the in
receipt of low incomes through the continuation of the
existing Council Tax Reduction Scheme where they will be
entitled to up to 100% relief against their council tax
payments;

(ii) Ongoing work with health partners to ensure health and
social care funds are maximised for the benefit of vulnerable
people through the services we provide;

(iii) Continue to work with community groups to explore
opportunities for the transfer of council assets so that they
can be sustainable into the future through the ‘Durham Ask’
initiative;

(iv) Significant investment in capital expenditure in line with the
Council's highest priority of regeneration in order to protect
existing jobs and create as many new jobs as possible



including investing in our town centres and industrial estates;
extending fast speed broadband access across the whole
county and infrastructure including new transport schemes
and maintenance of our highways and pavements.

17  As outlined in previous MTFP reports, equality impact assessments are also
summarised to inform the consultation and subsequent decision making.
Workforce implications arising from proposals for 16/17 savings have been
analysed and the projections for the number of posts to be removed as a
consequence of austerity have been increased by an estimated 400 posts.

18  The Discretionary Rate Relief, Hardship and Empty Property Relief (including
New Build Business Rates Relief) Policy has been updated to reflect
announcements made in the Chancellor's Autumn Statement, the most
significant of which were a further extension of the Small Business Rates
Relief scheme and the ending of the Retail Relief Scheme. The updated
policy is shown at Appendix 11 and includes further minor amendments are
proposed to the policy, which now includes details of the Hardship Relief
Policy that applies to Business Ratepayers.

Background

19  The Council's MTFP (6) is aligned to the Council Plan, which sets out the
Council's strategic service priorities over the next three years 2016/17 to
2018/19 with an indicative direction of travel for 2019/20.

20  The MTFP provides a comprehensive resource envelope to allow the Council
to translate the Council Plan into a financial framework that enables members
and officers to ensure policy initiatives can be planned for delivery within
available resources and can be aligned to priority outcomes.

21 Looking back to MTFP (1), the following drivers for the Council’s financial
strategy were agreed by Cabinet on 28 June 2010, which still underpin the
strategy in MTFP (6):-

(i) To set a balanced budget over the four year life of the MTFP whilst
maintaining modest and sustainable increases in Council Tax;

(i) To fund agreed priorities, ensuring that service and financial planning is
fully aligned with the Council Plan;

(i) To deliver a programme of planned service reviews designed to keep
reductions to front line service to a minimum;

(iv) To strengthen the Council’s financial position so that it has sufficient
reserves and balances to address any future risks and unforeseen
events without jeopardising key services and delivery outcomes;

(v) To ensure the Council can continue to demonstrate value for money in
the delivery of its priorities.

Page 7



Local Government Finance Settlement

22

23

24

25

The final Local Government Finance Settlement was published on 8 February
2016 and includes RSG and forecast Top Up grant allocations for the period
2016/17 to 2019/20.

The Government has made changes following the extensive lobbying from
shire county councils in relation to the provisional Settlement impact on them.

The Council Tax Referendum Limit is confirmed at 2%. The Government has
also confirmed that an additional 2% council tax precept could be levied by
local authorities providing adult care services. Cabinet agreed on 13 January
to provisionally notify the government how the Council would be minded to
increase council tax by the 2% precept subject to further public consultation
and approval by Full Council. The MTFP forecasts assume that the additional
2% adult social care precept will be applied across the whole MTFP (6) period
in addition to the current 2% council tax increase forecast.

The final settlement includes details of core grants including RSG and
Business Rates ‘Top Up’ Grant. The table below highlights the 2016/17
reduction in the Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA). It is important to note
that the Business Rates figure below is a ‘notional’ figure published by the
Government.

Table 1 — 2016/17 Settlement Funding Assessment

Funding Stream 2015/16 2016/17 Variance
£m £m £m %
Revenue Support Grant 100.240 77.140 (23.100) (23.0)
Business Rates 55.050 55.500 0.450 0.8
Top Up Grant 60.491 61.000 0.509 0.8
SFA 215.781 193.640 (22.141) (10.3)

26  The table above highlights that the SFA has reduced by 10.3% in 2016/17
although of more importance is the reduction in RSG. The government has
also announced that specific grants in relation to both the Care Act and Local
Lead Flood Authorities have been transferred inte RSG. In 2015/16 the
Council received £2.770m and £0.047m respectively in relation to these
funding streams. After taking these transfers into account the actual reduction

in RSG in 2016/17 is therefore £25.9m or 25.8%.

27  In addition to the above ‘core’ grants the Council continues to face reductions
in Specific Grants with examples detailed overleaf. Full detail is provided at

Appendix 2.

Page 8




Table 2 — Reduction in 2015/16 Specific Grants

Specific Grant 2015/16 2016/17 Variance
£m £m £m %
Education Services Grant 6.002 5.407 (0.595)} (20)
Housing Benefit Admin Grant 3.765 XXX (xx) (x)
Extended Free Rights to Transport 0.999 XXX (xx) (%)

28  Overall, the final settlement position for 2016/17 is broadly in line with the
Council's forecasts reported to Cabinet on 13 January. The major
adjustments are the reduction in the previously forecast £40.6m savings
target to the current £37.0m level due to the additional £3.6m generated from
the recommended additional 2% council tax social care precept. The
forecasted Collection Fund surplus of £2.617m has also been included in the
2016/17 budget model where the impact has been a corresponding reduction
in the use Budget Support Reserve.

29  Cabinet agreed on 13 January to provisionally notify the government how the
Council would be minded to submit an efficiency plan in order to receive
confirmation of a four year financial settlement subject to approval by Full
Council. The Council advised DCLG by their 15 January deadline of the
Council's intention of publishing a plan and at this time we are awaiting
confirmation of the security that might be offered as part of the four year
seftlernent. Our Efficiency Plan is included in this report at Appendix 3.

Analysis of Final Settlement

30 The Council along with the Association of North East Councils and SIGOMA,
have campaigned extensively for the government’s funding allocation
methodology to change on the basis that the system between 2011/12 to
2015/16 meant higher ‘Spending Power’ cuts to the more deprived areas with
higher needs such as Durham and the north east when compared to local
authorities in more affluent areas as the methodology included public health
and Better Care Fund specific grants and ignored both need and Council Tax
raising capacity.

31 To an extent, the government has taken these views into account as part of
this settlement and has adjusted the methodology and simplified the
calculation of Spending Power. The main change in this regard is that Public
Health Grant and the original Better Care Fund (BCF) allocations have been
excluded. However, in practice, this masks the true Spending Power position
for each local authority due to the reduction in the Public Health Grant.

32  The Government's revised ‘Core Spending Power’ calculation includes the
following:

(i) The Settlement Funding Assessment {SFA) for the Council. This

includes assumed retained Business Rates, the Top Up Grant and
RSG.

Page 9



33

34

35

Page 10

(i)  The council tax requirement. This includes the following
assumptions:-

a. Annual growth in the council tax base, utilising the actual
average growth between 2013/14 and 2015/16;

b. An average 1.75% annual increase in Council tax.

(i)  The potential additional council tax income available from the 2%
adult social care council tax precept flexibility. It has been assumed
in published figures that this flexibility is utilised in each of the four
years up to 2019/20.

(iv)  The additional funding available from the BCF from 2017/18.

(v) New Homes Bonus. The government has forecast how much this
funding stream may reduce in future years to finance the increase in
BCF.

In the future, to ensure local authorities providing the same services
experience similar overall funding reductions, the RSG cut will be based upeon
total Core Spending Power rather than just the value of RSG. This change is
welcomed and will ensure a fairer allocation of funding cuts going forward
whilst austerity continues. It does not however rectify the inequitable levels of
cuts applied to date.

The additional BCF funding will not be allocated based upon the current BCF
methodology. Instead to calculate the new BCF methodology allocation, the
government has taken into account the following:

(i) Identifying the total additional sum available nationally over the next
four years for adult social care from the 2% Council tax precept
flexibility and the extra income from the additional BCF.

(i) Calculating what proportion of the national total sum available each
local authority providing adult social care services should receive
based upon their individual proportion of the 2013/14 adult social
care Relative Needs Formula (RNF).

(i) Calculating how much each local authority could generate from the
additional 2% adult social care council tax precept flexibility.

(iv) Calculating for each local authority the additional BCF allocation by
deducting the sum which could be generated from the 2% adult
social care council tax precept increase from the RNF calculation.

This new approach is fairer to areas such as Durham who have low tax
raising capacity and has resulted in the Council receiving a higher than
average provisional BCF allocation. This approach should also reflect the
higher adult social care needs of an area such as Durham.



36

37

38

39

40

4

Although the approach followed is fairer for councils like Durham than the
approach followed in previous years, the shire county councils have lobbied
extensively during the budget consultation process to receive some level of
transitional funding on the basis of the settlement being worse than they were
forecasting. The Government appears to have listened to their lobbying and
provided £150m of Transitional funding for both 2016/17 and 2017/18 whilst
also increasing the Rural Services Delivery Grant by £61m a boost in total of
£211m for the benefit of these councils.

The Transitional funding has been targeted at those authorities whose RSG
has reduced by the highest percentage in 2016/17 and 2017/18. This is an
unfair approach to take as RSG is only one part of Core Spending Power. It
would have been fairer if the additional £150m of funding was allocated based
upon each local authority’s proportion of national ‘Core Spending Power’
which would have resulted in all councils, including Durham receiving a ‘fair
share’. The Council however will not receive any of this additional Transition
funding with the final settlement for RSG being the same as the provisional
settlement.

In terms of the Rural Services Delivery Grant, this is targeted at those
authorities deemed to be in the top 20% nationally in terms of sparsity.
Although Durham is a largely rural authority the council does not receive any
of this additional allocation.

The additional £211m funding allocated it total has resulted in shire county
councils and southern unitary authorities receiving significant budget
increases for both 2016/17 and 2017/18. The annual increases for a number
of authorities are detailed below:

£m
Surrey 11.9
Hampshire 94
North Yorkshire 9.2
Devon 8.3
Cumbria 5.2

In terms of Core Spending Power, the additional funding has also resulted in
significant increases for these authorities. North Yorkshire as an example has
received an increase to its Core Spending Power of 2.5%. If the Council had
received the same 2.5% Core Spending Power increase, we would have
received additional funding of £10m.

In terms of the calculation of the Council’'s Core Spending Power, the table
below details the final settlement position published by the government for the
period up to 2019/20. It is important to note that the government has
assumed that all local authorities will utilise the flexibility to increase council
tax annually by the additional 2% social care precept on top of an assumed
average 1.75% council tax increase i.e. an assumption of a total 3.75%
annual increase. The government has also forecast the impact of reducing
the sum available nationally for New Homes Bonus (NHB).

Page 11



42

43

Page 12

Table 3 — Core Spending Power Analysis

2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20
Adjusted
£m £m £m £m £m

Settlement Funding 219.2 193.6 174.8 164.2 153.8
Council Tax 174.1 178.0 182.8 187.9 193.4
Requirement
2% Council Tax Social 0 3.5 7.3 11.3 15.7
Care Precept Flexibility
improved Better Care 0 0 2.4 13.4 23.1
Fund
New Homes Bonus 8.7 10.5 10.5 6.6 6.3

TOTAL 402.0 | 385.6 377.8 383.4 392.3

Note — Government forecast reduction in Council Core Spending Power -
2.4%

The forecast reduction in Core Spending Power over the next four years for
the council is 2.4% compared to a national average reduction of 0.5%. This
position is not truly reflective however and it is important to note the following
in relation to the above:

(i) The government has assumed a 3% average increase every year in
Business Rate income and Top Up Grant.

(i) The government is forecasting an additional 1% per annum increase in
council tax base.

(i) The New Homes Bonus reduced figures are estimates at this stage.

(iv) No account is taken of the £83m of base budget pressures faced by
the Council over the next four years including an estimated £22.6m
increase in contractor costs related to the introduction of the
government'’s National Living Wage up to 2019/20.

The Council's reduction in Core Spending Power in 2016/17 will be the sixth
year in which the Council has faced a higher reduction in Core Spending
Power than the national average. Examples of the reduction in Core Spending
Power in 2016/17 are detailed overleaf:




2016/17 Reduction in
Core Spending Power
%

England Average 2.3
Durham County Council 4.1
Newcastle 4.4
Sunderland 4.3
Surrey 1.0
Wokingham 0.4
North Yorkshire 0.3

44  The Government has also published details of Spending Power ‘per dwelling’
for all local authorities. Areas of deprivation naturally require and have always
received relatively higher funding levels than more affluent areas. This higher
level of funding in deprived areas is required for a range of reasons including:

(i) In affluent areas, significant numbers of service users, especially in
adult care, can afford to contribute to the cost of their service
provision. This is especially the case for residential care and home
care services for the elderly. In these circumstances, the budget
required to provide services in deprived areas is much higher than
in affluent areas.

(i) Similarly, demand for services such as Children’s Social Care, in
deprived areas is significantly higher than more affluent areas
resulting in deprived areas requiring higher budgets.

45  Regardless of this, the Spending Power per dwelling data highlights how
significantly the funding of an area such as Durham has declined over recent
years. The table below highlights the 2016/17 Spending Power per dwelling
for a range of local authorities. The England average excludes District
Councils.

Table 4 - 2016/17 Core Spending Power per Dwelling

Area Core Spending Power Per
Dwelling
£
England 1,838
Durham 1,608
Wokingham 1,723
| Reading 1,780
Nottingham City 1,844
Surrey (including Districts) 1,955

46  Considering the levels of deprivation in County Durham, it is
disappointing that the government’s Spending Power per dwelling calculation
for Durham is now less than the England average. Although the funding

Page 13



settlement over the next four years is fairer than those experienced in recent
years, the impact of previous years’ significant funding reductions has
resuited in a relative position for Durham which is neither proportionate nor
fair. By way of a practical example; it is staggering to think that a relatively
deprived area like Durham should have a lower Spending Power per dwelling
compared to a more affluent area such as the county areas of Surrey which
has a 20% higher spending power per dwelling than Burham. Bearing in the
mind the difference in ‘need’ of the respective areas it would appear to be
more logical if Durham had a 20% higher spending power than the Surrey
county area rather than the other way around.

Consultation

47

48

49

50

Page 14

The budget consultation for 2016/17 builds on the major MTFP consultation
exercise carried out in 2013, which involved more than 4,000 people and
provided a clear steer on which services should be prioritised for a standard,
larger or smaller reduction for the period 2013 to 2017.

The 2016/17 consultation was carried out in two phases. Phase one
concentrated on the service priorities identified in 2013 and whether they
continued to be relevant as well as what more could be done to encourage
greater involvement in the Durham Ask. The outcomes of phase one were
reported in the December report. The key findings were:

(i) The priorities identified in 2013 continue to be relevant, and

(i) That the Council raise awareness of the Durham Ask and provide
communities with clear information, support and timescales.

Key partners and the wider public participated in the second phase of the
consultation which took place between 16 December 2015 and 12 January
2016. The consultation sought views on three key areas;

(i) the council's approach to managing the reductions to date,

(i) the specific proposals for 2016-17 as reported to Cabinet in
December, and

(i) the potential introduction of the adult social care precept.

In total, 139 people participated in twenty facilitated groups across three
consultation events. They were asked to score on a scale of 1-10 (1 being
poor and 10 being excellent} how the Council had managed the reductions to
date and also to provide feedback on our approach. The average score
across the twenty groups was 7.5. Discussions indicated broad agreement
with the Council’'s approach, with all groups expressing that we had managed
the process well. In particular positive comments were made about our
innovative solutions, partnership working and asset transfer/Durham Ask.
These areas are expanded in the table overleaf.



Table 5 — Consultation Feedback

Theme Examples or comments

Innovative solutions | ¢ Environment management such as flower meadows
(seven groups) (seven groups)

e Reduced library hours rather than closure (seven groups)
o Waste disposal (four groups)

Partnership working | Increase partnership and inter agency working as it delivers
(eight groups) results.

Improved Groups commented on the visible increase in consultation,
consultation and engagement and dialogue throughout the council budget
engagement process.

(six groups)

Asset transfer/ Durham Ask was felt to be a good idea and a well-managed
Durham Ask approach. Groups stressed the need for continued support as
(eleven groups) well as allowing sufficient time for the process. Concern was

raised about a growing reliance on volunteers.

51 Participants stated that they understood that the council needed to make
difficult decisions (six groups). They generally felt the council is managing
this approach well and that there have been no significant impacts to date
(nine groups). However, there was recognition amongst the consultees that
other people or communities might have felt greater impacts from the cuts.

52 It was also recognised that as reduction continue and frontline services are
increasingly affected, impacts will be seen (ten groups). Some notable
impacis include:;

(i) Increased fly tipping felt to be due to charges for bulky waste (seven
groups)

(i) Increased number of pot holes (five groups)
(i) Reduced street lighting (two groups).

53  Four groups suggested that impacts have been felt more significantly in rural
areas, particularly regarding bus routes.

54  When the twenty groups where asked to consider the specific proposals for
reductions in 2016/17, ten indicated support for the approach and the
identified reductions and no groups disagreed.

55  Most groups (fifteen groups) siressed the need for ongoing consultation

regarding specific reductions and requested that at each point more
information should be provided.

Page 15



56

57

58

59

60

Page 16

The consultation strongly supported the need to continue the innovative
approach, (eight groups), partnership/collaborative working {eight groups),
and the protection of front line services (four groups) particularly those for
vulnerable people (three groups) wherever possible. It was indicated that
where possible we should continue to target reductions from back office and
senior posts (thirteen groups).

The need tc maximise income by introducing and increasing charges was
stressed (nine groups) as well as continuing to attract inward investment
including European markets and funding (three groups). Another suggestion
was to identify further savings through the expansion of sharing and charging
for services at a regional level such as IT or human resources (seven groups).

The use of reserves to meet savings targets was supported by seven groups

whilst 1 group questioned the use of reserves for revenue as it could impact
on interest received.

During the discussions, many of the groups (five groups) highlighted the need
to consider council owned buildings and land, with the aim of reducing costs
and bringing in income through sale. In particular:

(i) Unoccupied buildings
(i} Buildings which are expensive to run

(iii) Industrial and commercial units

Co-location of services with other organisations such as police, fire or
community buildings was suggested by seven groups.

Other discussions included:

(i) Concems about the impact of reducing AAP Area Budgets (seven
groups), whilst one group suggested that these budgets should be
reduced further

(i) Six groups commented on the impact of savings in rural areas, some
stressing that rural proofing should be applied in future savings.

(if) More innovative use of community assets such as community groups
and centres (four groups)

(iv) Focus provision of certain services and facilities on a smaller number
of centres. Suggestions included:
a. AAPs (two groups)
b. Leisure centres (two groups)
c. Libraries (one group).

(v) Reconsider reductions in funding to the voluntary and community
sector and/or reduce the impact on the sector by considering other



options such as offering suppon, rent reductions or help with human
resources (two groups).

61 In relation to the adult social care precept, eighteen groups indicated that they
would support the introduction of the 2% precept. Two of these groups would
have supported a 4% or higher precept if this were possible. One group
disagreed with the introduction of an additional precept on the basis that it
would not have significant impact in their view and one group could not reach
an agreement.

62  When asked how the adult social care precept could be used, a range of
responses was received, however the following areas were most frequently
mentioned:

(i} Services to keep older people in their own homes, including support for
carers and families (twelve groups)

(i) Services for those with Dementia/Alzheimer (five groups)

(i) Services to enable efficient transition from hospital to home (five
groups).

63  Other comments about the introduction of the adult social care precept
focused on the need for efficiency, smarter working arrangements and
effective links between NHS and council services.

64  In addition to being represented at the consultation events, key partners were
invited to submit comments on the Council’s budget proposals and to identify
if any of the proposals would have a negative impact on their organisation’s
priorities and workload.

65  Three key pariners, the police, fire service and the County Durham
Association of Local Councils provided written responses on the council's
overall approach to managing its budget. Their responses indicated a full
appreciation of the position that the council is in and support the approach to
the reductions to date. They specifically supported the continued protection of
front line services for vulnerable people where possible. The responses
supported continued collaboration, partnership working and on-going dialogue
relating to the budget reductions in order to avoid duplication, minimise impact
and maximise value for money.

66  In addition to the cross cutting responses, a small number of specific
comments where received and these have been passed onio the relevant
services for consideration as part of specific consultation.

Scrutiny Committee Feedback

67  Scrutiny members met on the 26 January 2016 to consider the December and
January MTFP 6 reponts. Full verbal feedback on the outcomes from this
meeting will be presented by the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny

Page 17



68

69

70

71

Management Board at this Cabinet meeting. A summary of headline issues
raised at the meeting is included below.

Overall, members of the Corporate Issues Overview and Scrutiny Committee
were supportive of the extensive analysis and work undertaken on behalf of
Cabinet in analysing the implications of the Government'’s spending review
and the Local Government Finance Settlement. In particular, they wanted to
thank officers for their hard work in interpreting and explaining the medium
term financial outlook for the Council.

The Committee noted that whilst the provisional Revenue Support Grant and
some details on specific grants had been received, there remained
considerable uncertainty in terms of the final settlement and the figures for
public health, Better Care Fund and New Homes Bonus. The Committee felt
that this level of uncertainty at such a late stage in budget setting was
unacceptable, and that the Council should continue to make representations
to Central Government with regard to the timeliness of funding figures.

Turning to the likely level of the final settlement figure, members remained
extremely concerned about the high level of savings required by local
government and this Council over the next four years, but welcomed the new
methodology adopted by Central Government which will mean a fairer
approach to budget cuts, if followed through in the final settlement.

In terms of the individual savings proposals, two members of the committee
had particular concerns in relation to the proposed Area Action Partnership
savings which they suggested should be delayed, although this was not
supported by the whole committee. In the future, members of the committee
agreed that they would like to see greater detail in the savings proposals for
consideration by scrutiny, and that this detail should be provided if possible at
an earlier stage in the MTFP process.

Medium Term Financial Plan Strategy

72

73

74

Page 18

The strategy the Council has deployed to date has been to seek savings from
management, suppornt services, efficiencies and, where possible, increased
income from fees and charges to minimise the impact of reductions on
frontline services as far as possible.

Throughout the period covered by the MTFP (1) 2011/12 through to MTFP (6)
2019/20, the cumulative savings required has risen from £123m to £258m. It
is therefore clear that it will become increasingly difficult to protect frontline
services going forward.

To date the Council has implemented the agreed strategy very effectively:-
(i) £153.2m of savings will have been delivered by 31 March 2016.

(i)  Savings have been delivered on time and in some areas ahead of
time. This is critically important, because slippage would mean



75

76

that the Council would have to deliver even higher savings over
time.

(i)  The number of employees earning over £40,000 since 2011 has
reduced by 34% and has therefore significantly reduced
management costs.

(iv)  Proportionately, more than three times as many manager posts
have been removed than frontline staff.

(v)  Whilst income from fees and charges has been increased, this
has not resulted in the Council having the highest levels of fees
and charges in the region, which is important given the socio-
economic make-up of the county.

(vi) It was originally forecast in MTFP (6) that there would be a
reduction in posts of 1,950 by the end of 2014/15 with the actual
figure being broadly in line with this forecast. Looking ahead with
the significant savings requirements over the next two years, the
Council is expecting to see further reductions in the
workforce. For 2016/17 the forecast is a further reduction of
around 400 posts including the deletion of an anticipated 60
vacant posts.

(vii)  Following the abolition of the national Council Tax Benefit system
in 2013 and despite government funding reductions for the Local
Council Tax Reduction Scheme, the Council has been able to
maintain a scheme that protects all working age households in
line with the support they would have previously received under
the Council Tax Benefit system. This is a significant achievement
and the Council is one of small number of Councils that have
been able to maintain this suppon at a time when working age
households are suffering from continued impacts of the
govemment's welfare reforms.

(viii) The council has been able to protect those services prioritised by
the public such as winter maintenance whilst also continuing to
support a fully funded capital programme.

The benefits of delivering savings early if practical to do so, cannot be over
emphasised. The generation of reserves in the form of cash limits has been
essential in ensuring the smooth delivery of the savings targets and enabled a
managed implementation of proposals across financial years.

In general, the Council has been quite accurate in forecasting the level of
savings required, which has allowed the development of strong plans and to
robustly manage the implementation and delivery on time, including extensive
consultation and communication. This has put the Council in as strong a
position as possible to meet the ongoing financial challenges across this
medium term financial plan and beyond, where savings proposals are

Page 19



77

Page 20

becoming more complex and difficult to deliver and will inevitably require
increased utilisation of reserves to offset any delays and ‘smooth in’
reductions across financial years.

The Council's existing MTFP strategy accords well with the priorities identified
by the public. For example:-

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Protecting basic needs and support service for vulnerable
people: Although the scale of Government spending reductions is
such that all MTFPs including MTFP (6) have identified
unavoidable impact on vulnerable people, the Council works hard
with partners to minimise this impact as far as possible. In MTFP
(6), support has been continued to protect working age people on
low incomes through the continuation of the existing Council Tax
Reduction Scheme. Work with health partners continues to help
ensure that health and social care funds are maximised and every
proposal with the potential to impact on vulnerable people is
subject to an assessment to identify likely impacts and mitigate
these as far as possible,

Avoid waste and increase efficiency: The Council has a good
track record of delivering cashable efficiency savings since local
government reorganisation. This includes rationalisation of Council
buildings and IT systems as well as implementing significant
changes such as the move to alternate weekly refuse

collections. All employees have the ability to suggest ideas that
could reduce waste and improve efficiency and several, value for
money reviews have been successfully implemented. The Council
benchmarks itself against other organisations in order to
demonstrate value for money. :

Work with the community: The Council is a forerunner in asset
transfer, having successfully transferred a number of leisure
centres, a golf course, community buildings and children’s centres
to date. The Council has recognised the need for investment in
resources to work with the community to achieve successful
outcomes in this area and shares the public’s view that there is
scope to continue this in the future. The “Durham Ask” initiative is
expected to result in the transfer of more Council assets to
community groups so long as there is a business case supporting
the sustainability of the transfer.

Fees and Charges: The Council has addressed some of its
financial challenges through increasing fees and charges. Such
decisions are carefully considered and it is acknowledged that it is
not appropriate to aim for the highest charges possible given the
income levels of the majority of residents and service users in
County Durham.



78

79

80

It is clear that austerity will continue over the four year period of this medium
term financial plan. Where the savings targets were declining year on year
from the huge reduction of £66m in 2011/12, the Council is likely to face two
more years where the savings targets will be higher than those for

2015/16. Obviously, the fact that each year’s reduction is on top of those of
previous years is leading to a forecasted, cumulative total of £258m since
2011/12 up to 2019/20 and means that the Council continues to face a very
considerable financial challenge to balance budgets whilst providing a good
level of services.

In addition, Local Government generally is facing more uncertainty about
future funding and absorbing more financial risks from Central Government.

Increased risk is arising from several sources:-

(i) Under the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme, previous
national risk arising from any increased numbers of benefits
claimants has been transferred to Local Authorities since
2013/14. The risk is greater for authorities like Durham that
serve relatively more deprived areas and have relatively weaker
economic performance than the national average.

(i) Business Rates Retention was introduced in 2013/14 to
incentivise local authorities to focus on economic regeneration
by being able to retain 49% of business rates raised
locally. Economic regeneration has always been the top priority
for the Council. Unfortunately the practical consequences of
these changes shifts risks once managed nationally to local
authorities should there be a downturn in the local economy and
local business rate yield reduces. In addition, the Council also
now carries a share in the risk arising from successful rating
appeals against the rateable value assigned to a business by the
Valuation Office, part of HM Revenues and Customs which can
go back many years and pre-date the introduction of Business
Rates Retention.

(iii) The Chancellor of the Exchequer's 2015 Autumn Statement
confirmed the government’s aspiration that local authorities will
be able to retain 100% of business rates collected locally by the
end of this parliament. The transfer of 100% of business rates
would result in local government as a whole receiving more
income than would be required. On this basis, the government
has confirmed that additional service responsibilities will be
transferred to local government. Although the transfer of service
responsibilities will be consulted upon, the government has
indicated at this stage that they would favour transferring Public
Health funding and Attendance Allowance payments (currently
administered by the Department of Works and Pensions) into the
Business Rate Retention Scheme. The transfer of Attendance

Page 21



81

82

Allowance in particular is likely to result in local authorities facing
a range of additional risks in terms of demand.

(iv) The government's proposed Welfare Reform changes carry
increased financial risk to the Council in areas such as the
Benefits Service, homelessness and housing. Similarly, Council
Tax may become more difficult to collect, creating increased
financial pressure.

(v} Normal risks such as future actual price and pay inflation beyond
MTFP forecasts and demographic pressures also will still apply
and are not currently recognised in government funding
allocations, increasing the real terms cuts required to set a
balanced budget.

Since clarity has been received in relation to RSG settlements up to 2019/20,
there can be some confidence in the savings targets over the next four
years. On that basis, detailed savings plans have been developed for
2016/17 and high level indicative savings plans for 2017/18, three of which
would deliver additional savings in 2018/19 and 2019/20 if ultimately
delivered.

Over the coming months work will continue on refining the plans for 2017/18
and developing additional savings plans and strategies for the period 2018/19
and 2019/20. The certainty in terms of RSG settlements in those years will be
helpful in terms of financial planning, although delivery of the scale of savings
that we need to in these years will be extremely challenging and cuts in front
line services will be inevitable.

Revenue Budget for 2016/17

83

Regular updates on the development of the 2016/17 budget have been
agreed by Cabinet since July 2015. These updates have provided detail upon
the forecast resources available, budget pressures and the savings required
to balance the budget. This report provides details on the final position.

Base Budget Pressures in 2016/17

84

Page 22

Base budget pressures have been reviewed over the last year. Table 6
overleaf shows details of the final position on the 2016/17 Base Budget
pressures, '



Table 6 — 2016/17 Base Budget Pressures

Pressure Amount
£m
Pay Inflation 3.300
Price Inflation 2.500
Corporate Risk Contingency Budget (3.000)
Employers Nat. Insurance increase — State Pension changes 4.500
Costs associated with the National Living Wage 4.000
Single Status implementation 4,537
Employer Pension Contributions 0.900
Employee Increments 2.581
Pension Fund Auto Enrolment 0.100
Climate Change Levy 0.200
Care Act Grant 1.100
Local Lead Flood Grant — transferred into RSG 0.047
CAS Demographic and Hyper Inflationary Pressures 1.000
Use of Earmarked Reserve in CAS 4.150
TOTAL PRESSURE 25.915

Additional Investment

85  Additional budget provision is required for price inflation, the cost of the
forecast pay award, costs in relation to employer pension contributions and
employee increments.

86  The introduction of a national living wage from April 2016 has resulted in the
Council facing a forecast £4m budget pressure in 2016/17 due to likely
increases in contract prices including adult social care contractors where
salaries paid by care providers are often at or near to the national minimum
wage.

87  The Council faces significant budget pressures in relation to the
implementation by the government of the Single State Pension which results
in an increase in employer national insurance contributions for the Council.
Similarly the Council has been utilising earmarked reserves for a number of
years to delay the impact of costs in relation to demographic pressures in
adult services and costs relating to the implementation of single status in
2012. The ongoing costs in this regard have been introduced as base budget
pressures.

88  The 2016/17 budget will allow the Council to continue to invest in
infrastructure growth. Under normal circumstances an additional £2m of
revenue would be provided in the budget to finance Prudential Borrowing to
continue the support for new projects within the Capital Programme. High
cash balances however have delayed the need for the Council to borrow to
the levels forecast and Interest rates continue to be at historically low levels.
On this basis, it is forecast that the current budget available for prudential
borrowing will be able to absorb the costs associated with the capital bids
detailed within this report without the need for additional revenue funding. A

Page 23



key priority of the Capital Programme continues to be regeneration and job
creation within the local economy.

Savings Methodology

89

90

91

92

To date, the Council has delivered the savings required on schedule where
each of the years 2011/12 to 2015/16 annual savings targets have been
achieved totalling £153.2m.

The savings target for 2016/17 is £36.955m. Public Health expenditure is
forecast to be reduced by £4.3m in line with the government reduction in the
Public Health specific grant. In addition £1.622m of the BSR wil! be utilised to
delay the impact of savings upon front line services as well as the £2.617m
2015/16 collection fund surplus. Savings required to realise the remaining
£28.286m of savings are detailed in Appendix 4 apportioned across each
Service Grouping along with ‘Corporate’ savings.

Based upon the four year settlement provided by the government, the Council
has also developed high level indicative savings plans for 2017/18 which are
also detailed in Appendix 4. Over the coming months the Council will develop
savings plans for 2018/19 and 2019/20 and these will be reported to Cabinet
during the development of MTFP (7).

The revised forecast of savings up to 2019/20 are detailed below.

Table 7 — Total Savings 201112 to 2019/20

Period ' Savings
£m
2011/12to 2015/16 153.2
2016/17 to 2019/20 104.3
TOTAL 257.5

2016/17 Net Budget Requirement and Council Tax

93

Page 24

After taking into account base budget pressures and additional investment,
the Council’'s recommended Net Budget Requirement for 2016/17 is
£401.515m. The financing of the Net Budget Requirement is detailed
overleaf:



Table 8 — Financing of the 2016/17 Budget

Funding Stream Amount
£m

Revenue Support Grant 77.140
Business Rates 54.841
Business Rates — Top Up Grant 60.996
Collection Fund Surplus 2.617
Council Tax 185.798
New Homes Bonus 10.182
New Homes Bonus Reimbursement 0.267
Education Services Grant 5.407
Section 31 — Small Business Rate Relief 2.432
Section 31 — Empty Property and Retail Relief 0.160
Section 31 — Settlement Funding Adjustment 1.675

TOTAL 401.515

94  The Gross and Net Expenditure Budgets for 2016/17 for each Service
Grouping are detailed in Appendix 5. A summary of the 2016/17 budget by
service expenditure type, based upon the CIPFA classification of costs is
detailed in Appendix 6.

95  The government has confirmed that the Council Tax Referendum Limit for
2016/17 remains at 2%. In addition the government has also announced that
local authorities which provide adult social care services also have the
flexibility to increase council tax by a further 2% through an adult social care
precept. A 3.99% council tax increase would generate additional income of
£7.1m in 2016/17 which will enable the Council to protect front line services
whilst also covering significant base budget pressures such as the additional
costs associated with the introduction of the national living wage.

96  The 2016/17 council tax base which is the figure utilised to calculate council
tax income forecasts, was approved by Cabinet on 18 November 2015 as
133,892.4 Band D equivalent properties. Based upon the Council’'s track
record in collecting council tax from council tax payers, the tax base for
council tax setting and income generation processes will continue to be based
upon a 98.5% collection rate in the long run.

Recommendations

97 It is recommended that Members:-

i. Approve the identified base budget pressures included in
paragraph 84.

ii. Approve the investments detailed in the report.
iii. Approve the 2016/17 savings plans detailed in Appendix 4.

iv. Approve a 3.99% increase in Council Tax.

Page 25



V. Approve the Net Budget Requirement of £401.515m.

How the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP (6)) — 2016/17 to 2019/20 has been
developed.

98  The following assumptions have been utilised in developing the MTFP (6)
budget model which is set out in Appendix 7.

(i} Government grant reductions for the MTFP period have been
developed utilising information from the Local Government Finance
Settlement. The published RSG reductions over the next three years
are detailed below. By 2019/20 the RSG received by the Council will
have reduced to an estimated £27.6m.

Table 9 — MTFP (6) RSG Reductions

Year Funding Reduction
£m
2017/18 (21.140)
2018/19 (14.140)
2019/20 (14.240)

(i)  The government has announced significant reductions of circa 15% in
Public Health grant over the next four years. At this stage it is expected
that the forecast £4.3m reduction in 2016/17 will be realised through
reductions in Public Health expenditure. In later years however the
reduction will increase the overall Council savings target. The ability to
achieve savings in Public Health from 2017/18 will therefore be
considered alongside all other Council priority services.

(i) The Government has announced a consultation process relating to the
revision of the New Homes Bonus (NHB) scheme. The key aim in this
respect is to reduce the national sum allocated to NHB in 2016/17 of
£1.4bn to at least £600m by 2019/20. The sum saved through this
adjustment will contribute to an increase in the BCF which is covered
later in this report. The Council presently receives £10.2m from the
NHB and it is likely that this will significantly reduce over the next four
years. It is not possible to accurately predict the reduction in NHB as
the consultation process, which runs until March 20186, includes a wide
range of options. To be prudent at this stage the Council is forecasting
an annual reduction of £2m in NHB in the three years 2017/18 to
2019/20.

(iv)  The Council is also forecasting that there will be continued reductions
in both the Education Services Grant (ESG) and the Benefit
Administration grants. In the Autumn Statement the Chancellor of the
Exchequer announced that there would be a review of all statutory

Page 26



(v)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

duties carried out by local authorities in relation to Education. The ESG
reimburses the Council for carrying out such duties and it is expected
that this funding stream will reduce significantly. To be prudent at this
stage it is forecast that these two grants will reduce in each year
between 2017/18 and 2019/20 by a total of £1.4m.

The additional BCF allocations detailed in Table 3 have also been built
into the MTFP. The additional allocation begins with a £2.4m in
2017/18 increasing to £23.1m in 2019/20 It is not clear at this stage if
there are any specific grant conditions in relation to this funding stream
or whether there may be specific expenditure commitments. it is felt
prudent however to include these sums in our financial planning at this
stage.

Forecast pay and price inflation levels have taken into account the
likely restraint on public sector pay and the current and forecast levels
of price inflation. The assumptions built into MTFP (6) are detailed in
the table below:-

Table 10 — Pay and Price Inflation Assumptions

Year Pay Inflation Price Inflation
°/o °/o
2017/18 1.5 1.5
2018/19 1.5 1.5
2019/20 1.5 1.5

Forecasts have also been included in relation to the impact of the
National Living Wage over and above the 1.5% inflation allowance.
Over the period 2017/18 to 2019/20 the Council expects to receive
requests from a broader range of contractors requesting price
increases due to the impact of the National Living Wage. Over this
period there will also be an increasing pressure on the Council’s salary
budget. The annual budget pressure is forecast to be between £6m and
£6.6m for the period 2017/18 to 2019/20.

The triennial review of the pension fund will also take place during
20186. The instability in the UK stock market, poor bond retumns and
problems in emerging markets are expected to all impact upon the
value of the pension fund. It is also forecast that local government
pension funds may become partly responsible for annual pension
increases which are currently the responsibility of government. Having
taken all of these things into account a £56m budget pressure has been
included for 2017/18 to reflect the forecast increase required in
employer pension fund contributions for the Council.

Continuing forecast budget pressures in relation to Concessionary
Fares, Energy Prices and CAS Demographics and Hyper Inflation
whilst also introducing a £1.2m pressure in 2017/18 in relation to the
apprentice levy which in reality is a tax on large organisations.

Page 27



99

100

101

(x)  Continuing the need to support the capital programme.

(xi) It is assumed that the Council will continue to utilise the flexibility to
increase Council tax by the additional 2% social care precept over the
referendum limit. On this basis it is forecast that annual Council Tax
increases will be 3.99% across the MTFP (6) period.

High level indicative savings planned are included at Appendix 4 in relation to
2017/18, three of which would deliver additional savings in 2018/19 and
2019/20 if uitimately delivered. At this stage it is forecast that £11.8m of the
BSR will be utilised in 2017/18 to delay the impact of savings upon front line
services. Additional savings plans however will need to be developed to
achieve the following residual savings targets for 2018/19 and 2019/20.

Table 11 - Savings to be Identified

Year Savings Target
£m
2018/19 24.765
2019/20 14.945

It is forecast that £13.5m of the £30m BSR will be utilised to support the
MTFP in 2016/17 and 2017/18. The residual balance of £16.5m will be
available to support the budget in later years.

The MTFP {86) forecasted budget model is attached at Appendix 7.

Financial Reserves

102

103

Page 28

Reserves are held:-

(i) As aworking balance to help cushion the impact of any uneven cash
flows and avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing — this forms part of
the General Reserves.

(i) As a contingency to cushion the impact of any unexpected events or
emergencies e.g. flooding and other exceptional winter weather — this
also forms part of General Reserves.

(i) As a means of building up funds, ‘earmarked’ reserves to meet known or
predicted future liabilities.

The Council's current reserves policy is to:-

(i) Set aside sufficient sums in Earmarked Reserves as is considered
prudent. The Corporate Director Resources should continue to be
authorised to establish such reserves as required, to review them for
both adequacy and purpose on a regular basis and then reporting to the
Cabinet Portfolio Member for Finance and to Cabinet.



(i) Aim to maintain General Reserves in the medium term of between 5%
and 7.5% of the Net Budget Requirement which in cash terms equates
to up to £30m.

104 Each earmarked reserve, with the exception of the Schools’ reserve, is kept
under review and formally reviewed on an annual basis. The Schools’
reserve is the responsibility of individual schools with balances at the year end
which make up the total reserve.

105 A Local Authority Accounting Panel Bulletin published in November 2008
(LAAP77) makes a number of recommendations relating to the determination
and the adequacy of Local Authority Reserves. The guidance contained in
the Bulletin “represents good financial management and should be followed
as a matter of course”.

106  This bulletin highlights a range of factors, in addition to cash flow
requirements that Councils should consider. These include the treatment of
inflation, the treatment of demand led pressures, efficiency savings,
partnerships and the general financial climate, including the impact on
investment income. The bulletin also refers to reserves being deployed to
fund recurring expenditure and indicates that this is not a long-term option. If
Members were to choose to use General Reserves as part of this budget
process appropriate action would need to be factored into the MTFP to ensure
that this is addressed over time so that the base budget is not reliant on a
continued contribution from General Reserves.

107 The forecast balance on all reserves is reported to Cabinet every quarter as
part of the Forecast of Outturn reports and Cabinet received the latest report
on 18 November 2015. A range of reserves are being utilised to support
MTFP (6). Details are as follows:-

(i) MTFP Redundancy and ER/VR Reserve - this reserve was
originally created in 2010 with a balance of £26.9m. The
reserve was replenished during 2013/14 when a further £15m
was contributed to the reserve and was replenished again in
2015/16 when a further £10m was contributed. At the end of
2015/16 it is presently forecast that the balance on the
reserve will be £16.2m i.e. a sum of £35.7m will have been
expended over the 2011/12 to 2015/16 period in support of
the MTFP. Having this reserve in place will be a major factor
in managing the savings realisation process effectively across
the MTFP (6) period. This reserve will continue to be closely
monitored.

(ii} Budget Support Reserve - It is forecast that £1.6m of the
£30m BSR will be utilised to support the MTFP in 2016/17
and £11.8m in 2017/18. The residual balance of £16.5m will
be available to support the budget in later years

(iii) Cash Limit Reserves — Service Groupings continue to utilise

Page 29



Cash Limit Reserves to enable re-profiling of when MTFP
savings are realised. A sum of £0.210m is to be utilised in
2016/17.

108 Between the period 2011/12 to 2016/17 it is forecast that circa £70m of
reserves, including the BSR, will have been utilised to support the MTFP. It is
recommended at this stage that the current Reserve Policy of maintaining the
General Reserve of between 5% and 7.5% of the Net Budget Requirement is
retained. This wili result in a General Reserve range of up to £30m.

109 A balanced MTFP model has been developed after taking into account the
assumptions detailed in this report. The MTFP model is summarised below.

Table 12 - MTFP (6) Model Summary

2016/17 | 201718 2018/19 | 2019/20 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Reduction in Resource Base 10.900 13.391 (2.270) (1.037) | 20.984
Budget Pressures 25.915 23.450 17.050 16.900 83.315
Savings Required 36.815 36.841 14.780 15.863 | 104.299

Recommendations

110 It is recommended that Members:-

(i) Agree the forecast 2016/17 to 2019/20 MTFP (6) financial position.

(ii) Set aside sufficient sums in Earmarked Reserves as is considered
prudent. The Corporate Director Resources should continue to be
authorised to establish such reserves as required to review them
for both adequacy and purpose on a regular basis reporting
appropriately to the Cabinet Portfolio Member for Finance and to
Cabinet.

(iii) Aim to maintain General Reserve in the medium term between 5%
and 7.5% of the Net Budget Requirement which in cash terms is
up to £30m.

Capital Budget 2015/16 to 2018/19

111 The revised 2015/16 to 2018/19 capital budget was approved by Cabinet on
18 November 2015. The table overleaf details the latest revised capital
budget for the period 2015/16 to 2018/19 inciuding the revisions approved by
Cabinet whilst also providing details of the financing. Further details of the
current Capital Programme can be found at Appendix 8.

Page 30



Capital Considerations in the MTFP (6) Process

Table 13 - Current Capital Budget 2015/16 to 2018/19

Service 2015/16 2016117 2017/18 2018119 Total
Grouping £m £m £m £m £m
ACE 3.991 3.307 0.144 0 7.442
CAS 40.683 21,962 0.742 0 63.387
Neighbourhoods 40.903 35.222 4.449 4.150 84.724
RED 34.543 61.077 9.784 0 105.404
Resources 11.616 9.026 0 0 20.642

TOTAL 131.736 130.594 15.119 4,150 281.599
Financed by
Grants and
Contributions 52.318 38.960 0.467 0 91.745
SELIUTDET 13.167 0.072 0 0 13.239
Reserves
Capital Receipts 16.631 15.883 7.897 0 40.411
Borrowing 49.620 75.679 6.755 4.150 136.204
TOTAL 131.736 130.594 15.119 4,150 281.599

112  Service Groupings developed capital bid submissions during the summer
2015 alongside the development of revenue MTFP (6) proposals. The Capital
Member Officer Working Group (MOWG) had considered the Capital bid
submissions taking the following into account:-

113

(i) Service Grouping assessment of priority.

(i) Affordability based upon the availability of capital financing. This
process takes into account the impact of borrowing upon the revenue

budget.

(i)  Whether schemes could be self-financing i.e. capital investment would
generate either revenue savings or additional income to repay the
borrowing costs to fund the schemes.

Whilst considering Capital bid proposals, MOWG have continued to recognise
the benefits of committing to a longer term capital programme to aid effective
planning and programming of investment. At the same time MOWG also
recognised the need for caution in committing the Council to high levels of
prudential borrowing at this stage for future years.

Available Capital Financing — Capital Grants

114  The following 2016/17 capital grants allocations were assumed when

MTFP (5) was approved at County Council on 25 February 2015.

Page 31



Table 14 — 2016/17 Capital Grants Assumed in MTFP (5)

Grant Amount
£m

LTP — Highways Maintenance 11.886
LTP - Integrated Transport 2.789
School Capitalised Maintenance 5.635
Disabled Facilities 2.970
General Social Care 1.572
TOTAL 24.852

115 Specific capital programmes were included in MTFP (5) financed from these
assumed allocations. The majority of allocations have now been confirmed
with the following impact:-

116

Page 32

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Local Transport Plan (LTP) - Highways Maintenance - £10.897m

In 2015/16 the Government has top sliced Local Authorities LTP
Highways Maintenance allocation to form an Incentive Fund and
Challenge Fund. This resuited in a significant reduction in the forecast
arant allocation. The 2016/17 allocation of £10.897m is £0.989m less
than originally forecast and the budget was revised and approved by
Cabinet in November 2015.

LTP - integrated Transport £2.789m
The government confirmed the 2016/17 allocation as part of the
2015/16 local government finance settlement.

Schools Capitalised Maintenance/Basic Need - £xxxm

At this stage the allocations for 2016/17 and 2017/18 are yet to be
received.at this stage the budget assumes the 2015/16 allocation of
£5.635m is continued in 2016/17 and 2017/18. The budget will be
adjusted once the actual settlement is received.

The table overleaf provides details of additional 2016/17 capital grant
allocations, along with the indicative allocation for 2017/18 included in

plans. It should be noted that funding for ‘Disabled Facilities’ and ‘General
Social Care’ are financed from the Better Care Fund. If the actual allocations
for 2017/18 vary from the forecast then the capital budget may need to be
adjusted accordingly.



Table 15 — Capital Grants Utilised in Support of the MTFP (6) Capital
Programme

Capital Grant 2016117 201718
£m £m

Disabled Facilities
General Social Care

LTP - Highways 10.897 10.567
LTP - Integrated Transport 2.789 2.689
School Maintenance 5.635 5.635
Devolved Schools Capital

Total

Capital Receipt Forecast

117

118

119

120

In the majority of cases, capital receipts received are utilised to support the
overall Council capital programme. Capital receipts are generated from asset
sales and from VAT shelter arrangements in relation to previous Council
housing stock transfers within the former district Councils. Normally
Registered Social Landlords cannot recover VAT. The VAT shelter agreed
with Revenues and Customs (HMRC) allows recovery normally over a 15 year
period. The benefit of this is shared between the Council and the

landlord. Asset sales in the main relate to land sales which are generated
from the Council’s three year Asset Disposal Programme.

In a small number of circumstances, primarily in relation to former schools
sites, capital receipts via land sales are ring fenced to particular schemes. In
other cases estimated capital receipts have been offset by selective
demolition of redundant buildings on sites declared surplus and being
marketed for sale, in recent years this has been restricted to school sites and
surplus office accommodation.

In the Autumn Statement the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that
local authorities would be given flexibility under certain circumstances to
utilise capital receipts to finance one off revenue costs associated with service
transformation and reform. Additional details were included in the local
government finance settlement in this regard.

The government has identified that revenue expenditure would qualify to be
financed from capital receipts in the following circumstances:-

(i) Qualifying expenditure is expenditure on any project designed to
generate ongoing revenue savings in the delivery of public services
and/or transform service delivery to reduce costs or to improve the
quality of service delivery in future years.

(i)  The key criteria to use when deciding whether expenditure can be
funded by the capital receipts flexibility is that it is forecast to
generate ongoing savings to an authority's, or several authorities’,
and/or to another public sector body’s net current expenditure.

Page 33



121

122

123

124

125

126

Page 34

(iiiy  Within this definition, it is for individual local authorities to decide
whether or not a project qualifies for the flexibility.

(iv) The Secretary of State believes that individual local authorities or
groups of authorities are best placed to decide which projects will
be most effective for their areas.

(v)  Set up and implementation costs of any new processes or
arrangements can be counted as qualifying expenditure. However,
the ongoing revenue costs of the new processes or arrangements
cannot be classified as qualifying expenditure.

The government believes that it is important that individual authorities
demonstrate the highest standard of accountability and transparency. The
draft guidance recommends that each authority should prepare a strategy that
includes separate disclosure of the individual projects that will be funded or
part funded through capital receipts flexibility and that the strategy is approved
by full Council or the equivalent. This strategy can be included as part of the
annual budget documentation and approved by full Council or the equivalent
at the same time as the annual budget.

At this stage it is not considered that there are a large range of opportunities
for the Council to utilise this new flexibility. Careful consideration also needs
to be given to the other options of funding such expenditure as identified
above e.g. from contingencies or from reserves. Notwithstanding this it is
recognised that it would not be unreasonable for the Council fo consider
utilising this new flexibility to finance severance costs associated with the
MTFP process.

On that basis to ensure that the Council has this option available it will be
recommended that as part of the Council’'s overall approach to efficiency that
it is noted at this stage that capital receipts could be utilised to finance
severance costs.

if this option is taken up there will be a natural impact upon the financing of
the capital programme. In former years the Council has set a target of £10m
of capital receipts income to support the capital programme. A target of £10m
is in place for 2016/17 which was included in MTFP (5). It is also
recommended at this stage that a £10m sum is included in the 2017/18 capital
financing budget.

If a decision is made and agreed by Cabinet in the future to utilise capital
receipts to finance severance costs then the impact upon the capital financing
budget will need to be considered

During 2016/17 there may be other opportunities that manifest for the Council
to utilise this new capital receipts flexibility to finance service transformation
and reform one off costs. If there is a business case in this regard Cabinet



approval will be sought and the case in question included in a formal
Efficiency Strategy.

Prudential Borrowing
127 In previous years an additional £2m of revenue was provided in the budget to
finance Prudential Borrowing to continue the support for new projects within
the Capital Programme. High cash balances however have delayed the need
for the Council to borrow to the levels and forecast and Interest rates continue
to be at historically low levels. On that basis it is forecast that the current
budget available for prudential borrowing will be able to absorb the costs
associated with the capital bids detailed within this report. A proportion of this

budget is being utilised to support the leasing costs of replacement vehicles
and plant.

Approval of Additional Capital Schemes

128 A comprehensive 2016/17 capital programme was approved as part of MTFP
(5) in line with the Council policy of developing a two year rolling capital
programme. The need to continue to invest in capital infrastructure is seen as
an essential means of maintaining and regenerating the local economy whilst
supporting job creation. Additional investment will maintain and improve
infrastructure across the County, help retain existing jobs, create new jobs
and ensure the performance of key Council services are maintained and

improved.

129  After considering all factors, including the availability of capital finance,
MOWG have recommended that the following additional value of schemes be
approved for inclusion in the MTFP (6) capital programme. Full details of the
additional schemes can be found in Appendix 9.

Table 16 — Additional Capital Schemes for 2016/17 and 2017/18
Service Grouping 2016/17 | 201718
£m £m

ACE 0 2.100
CAS 0 5.635
Neighbourhoods 1.289 20.581
RED 1.600 16.809
Resources 0 3.424

Total 2.889 48.549

130 The new schemes detailed in Appendix 9 will ensure that the Council

continues to invest in priority projects and essential maintenance
programmes. Examples of additional investments are detailed overleaf:-

(i) Highways Maintenance (2017/18 - £15.567m) [n line with previous
years, a sum in addition to the LTP grant will be invested into highways
maintenance. The sum of £5m will be especially important in light of
the Government top slicing of LTP grant nationally.

Page 35



131

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

Unadopted Highway Maintenance (2017/18 - £1m) This funding will
enable Council owned unadopted highway to be made up to adoptable
standards on a priority basis and then maintained as adopted
highway. The unadopted highways are often in a very poor state of
repair and are a danger to the public and a risk for the Council in
relation to insurance claims.

Flood Prevention (2017/18 - £1.050m) Flooding incidents continue to
have a significant impact upon the public. The additional budget
allocation will enable investment in prioritised flood prevention
schemes.

A19/A189 Sheraton Junction (2017/18 - £1.8m) Investment will
enable the signalisation of this dangerous junction which had seen a
number of accidents and fatalities in recent years.

Town Centre Master Plans (2017/18 - £1.0m) This budget will enable
continued investment to continue delivery of action plans within the
Cabinet approved Town Centre Masterplans.

After taking into account the adjustments detailed in this report, and the
additional schemes the revised capital budget and its financing will be as

follows:-

Table 17 — New MTFP (6) Capital Programme

Service 2015/16 201617 2017/18 2018/19 Total
Grouping £m £m £m £m £m
ACE 3.991 3.307 2.244 0 9.542
CAS 40.683 21.962 6.377 0 69.022
Neighbourhoods 40.903 36.511 25.030 4.150 106.594
RED 34.543 62.677 26.593 0 123.813
Resources 11.616 9.026 3.424 0 24.066

TOTAL 131.736 133.483 63.668 4.150 333.037
Financed by
Grants and
Contributions 52.318 38.960 23.828 0 115,106
Revenue and
Reserves 13.167 0.072 0 0 13.239
Capital Receipts 16.631 15.883 17.897 0 50.411
Borrowing 49.620 78.568 21.943 4.150 154.281
TOTAL 131.736 133.483 63.668 4.150 333.037

Recommendation

132

Page 36

It is recommended that Members:-

(i) Note the impact upon the 2016/17 capital budget relating to the
reduction in the Highways LTP grant




(i) Approve the revised 2015/16 Capital Budget of £131.736m and the
2016/17 capital budget of £133.483m.

(ili) Approve the additional capital schemes detailed at Appendix
9. These schemes will be financed from the additional capital
grants, from capital receipts and prudential borrowing.

{iv) Note the option for the Council to utilise capital receipts to
finance severance costs utilising the new flexibilities in this
regard. The utilisation of such flexibility will require the approval
of Cabinet

(v) Approve the MTFP (6) Capital Budget of £333.0738m for 2015/16 to
2018/19 detailed in Table 17.

2016/17 Savings Proposals
Assistant Chief Executive

133 To date spending reductions of just over £4m have been achieved over the
course of MTFP (1) — (5). In 2016/17 a further £0.8m is required and in
2017/18 £1m bringing the total amount of savings since 2011 to nearly £6m.

134 The service grouping continues to identify opportunities to work more
efficiently whilst providing support to the Council through a period of ongoing
and considerable change as well as meeting increasing service demands
arising for example from welfare reforms, co-ordinating our approach to
migration, information management and freedom of information requests.

135 Since 2011 much of the service grouping's savings have been realised
through reduction of management and support services. For 2016/17, whilst
further savings will come from these areas including the reduced salary for the
new Chief Executive, we are proposing further reductions to AAP budgets of
£20,000 to reduce allocations to £100,000 for each AAP and grants to
community groups including Durham Community Action and Gay Advice in
Durham and Darlington.

136 To mitigate these reductions we will be seeking toc maximise other funding that
is available to continue to support the priorities identified through the AAPs
and those groups affected by the reduction in grants. A further allocation of
£10,000 per AAP has been committed for 2016/17 to allow AAPs to
implement or continue schemes to help tackle the impact of Welfare Reforms
and anti-poverty actions in their area.

137 Even with these reductions these service areas have still had a lower
percentage reduction than the overall reduction for the service grouping and
the Council as a whole which is in line with the feedback received through the
several public consultations undertaken on the MTFP.

Page 37



138

For 2017/18 a full review of the service grouping is proposed in order to
identify the savings required. All service areas will be considered including
front line areas such as AAPs.

Children and Adults Services

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

Page 38

Spending reductions of over £71m have been achieved over the course of
MTFP (1) = (5). In 2016/17 additional savings of £17.3m are required
together with £20.0m of savings in 2017/18, which will bring the total savings
requirement since 2011 up to circa £108m.

The service continues to be faced with a significant amount of change both
internally and externally including the continuing demographic pressures
arising from an ageing population with increasingly complex needs and
support requirements, ongoing NHS changes, social care reforms and
changes in funding for schools and inspection frameworks.

In 2016/17 efficiency savings will be made through a restructure of Adult Care
Services to meet the requirements of the Care Act, the delivery of the Looked
after Children Reduction Strategy reducing the need for residential care,
further improvements to the commissioning of services including transport,
reviewing the fostering service and reviewing support services.

In addition, the service will be seeking to increase the income received across
a number of areas including secure services welfare and step down beds,
selling surplus adoptive or foster care places, through the provision of learning
and skills to young people and a review of the adult social care charging
policy.

Some of the 2016/17 proposals that affect frontline services are savings
arising from policy changes made in previous years, such as changes to day
care provision, plus the continued focus on a consistent and effective use of
the existing eligibility criteria. A major transformation programme is currently
underway in the Children’s Service to reduce the cost and incidence of
children being looked after and taken into care.

In 2017/18 savings proposals being considered include building on the
improvements already made to commissioning by developing a more
integrated approach, further savings from efficiencies in the provision of
children’s care and continued savings from the consistent application of
eligibility criteria for social care services to adults. A review of the in-house
County Durham Care and Support is also being considered for 2017/18.

Whilst it is clear that savings proposals in this area affect vulnerable people,
all efforts continue to be made to minimise the impact as far as possible in line
with the views expressed by the public. This involves reviewing and changing
operating models and working practices alongside the development of
opportunities to work in a more integrated way with external partners.



Neighbourhood Services

146 Spending reductions of £25.3m have been achieved over the course of MTFP
(1) - (5) with a further £3.5m required in 2016/17 and £2.9m in
2017/18. Since 2011 the total amount saved by 2017/18 will be £31.7m.

147 Throughout the previous MTFPs, Neighbourhood Services has focused on
delivering its savings through more efficient delivery of services and whilst it is
continuing to focus on this strategy it is becoming increasingly difficult to avoid
changes to front line services that will not result in some impact in local
communities.

148 Areas where further efficiency reviews will be carried out in 2016/17 include
Fieet Management, Technical Services and Environmental Health. In addition
there are further savings associated with rationalising office accommodation
and from recycling credits paid to third parties.

149 Proposals for 2016/17 also affect both Leisure Centres and Libraries but the
changes proposed will ensure there are no closures of any facilities. The
Council is continuing to promote the Durham Ask to explore the potential for
services such as Libraries to continue to be provided through the involvement
of local organisations and groups, securing their long term future.

150 Areas where there will be changes in services currently offered include
relocating the DLI collection, changes to the collection of refuse and recycling,
a review of street wardens and reviewing customer services. However all of
these proposals relate to changes in how the service is delivered rather than
removing the service, for example whilst the number of street wardens is
going to reduce the service will continue to be provided seven days a week.

151 For 2017/18 areas being considered include further efficiency reviews and
additional savings from the street lighting energy reduction programme.

Regeneration and Economic Development

152 Spending reductions of £20.4m have been achieved over the course of MTFP
(1) = {5). In 2016/17 additional savings of £1.1m are required together with
£2.2m in 2017/18 resulting in a total reduction since 2011 of £23.7m.

153 During 2015 the in-house housing provider Durham City Homes together with
the two ALMOs Dale and Valley Homes and East Durham Homes were
transferred to a new social housing company County Durham Housing. This
afforded further opportunities to deliver efficiencies within the existing RED
structure. In addition, contract and price renegotiations with transport
providers have provided further reductions in costs.

154 This, together with further staffing reductions through vacancy management

and restructuring activity alongside a further reduction in supplies and
services will provide the majority of savings for both 2016/17 and 2017/18.

Page 39



155

156

However, some front line service areas will be affected for example the Care
Connect team who provide a 24 hour service for vuinerable residents. Whilst
the emergency on call service provision will still be provided the costs and
nature of the service is being reviewed and will need to change.

Consultations held previously have consistently identified job prospects as a
priority and whilst there has been a significant reduction in the Government
funding available for this activity, the service grouping continues to support
this area as far as possible by working with a range of interested parties. In
2015 a number of successful capital schemes were established to delivery
employment growth. The service works in conjunction with others including
the AAPs to support local residents into employment and training.

Resources

157

158

159

160

In line with the views of the public the Council has consistently prioritised
higher savings targets from Resources, which has resulted in savings since
2011 of £11.8m. In 2016/17 a further £1.5m reduction is required together
with £3.2m in 2017/18. This will mean from 2011 to 2017 reductions totalling
£16.5m will have been made.

The service grouping are also managing a range of additional savings for
2016/17 from corporate areas and changes in financial policies including a
review of business support functions, additional dividends and reductions in
fees and charges. These proposals will deliver a further £4.0m of savings for
MTFP (6).

All areas of the service grouping will be undergoing further reviews and
restructuring during 2016/17 and 2017/18 in order to deliver the savings
required in these areas.

In addition in 2017/18 it is proposed that the front facing revenues and
benefits service be reviewed to identify efficiency savings. This will coincide
with planned savings in Customer Services in Neighbourhoods. Impact on
customers in terms of benefit processing times, invoice payment performance
and recovery rates will be carefully balanced and mitigated as far as possible
and the service will work closely with colleagues in Customer Services on
these changes.

Recommendation

161

Page 40

It is recommended that Members:-

(i) Note the approach taken by Service Groupings to achieve and
deliver the required savings.



Equality Impact Assessment of the Medium Term Financial Plan

162 Consideration of equality analysis and impacts is an essential element that
members must consider in approving the savings plans at Appendix 4. This
section updates members on the outcomes of the equality impact assessment
of the MTFP (6) to date, and summarises the potential cumulative impact of
the 2016/17 proposals.

163 Equality impact assessments are an essential part of decision-making,
building them into the MTFP process supports decisions which are both fair
and lawful. The aim of the assessments is to:

(i) Identify any disproportionate impact on service users or staff
based on the protected characteristics of age, gender (including
pregnancy/matemity and transgender), disability, race, religion or
belief and sexual orientation.

(if) Identify any mitigating actions which can be taken to reduce
negative impact where possible.

(iit) Ensure that we avoid unlawful discrimination as a result of MTFP
decisions.

164 The Council is subject to the legal responsibilities of the Equality Act 2010
which, amongst other things, make discrimination unlawful in relation to the
protected characteristics listed above and require us to make reasonable
adjustments for disabled people. In addition, as a public authority, we are
subject to legal equality duties in relation to the protected characteristics.

165 The public sector equality duties require us to:-
(i) Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation.
(if) Advance equality of opportunity.

(i}  Foster good relations between those who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

166 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) issued ‘Using the
equality duties to make fair financial decisions: a guide for decision makers’ in
September 2010. The guidance states that “equality duties do not prevent you
from making difficult decisions such as reorganisations and relocations,
redundancies and service reductions nor do they stop you making decisions
which may affect one group more than another. What the equality duties do is
enable you to demonstrate that you are making financial decisions in a fair,
transparent and accountable way, considering the needs and the rights of
different members of your community.”

Page 41



167

168

169

170

A number of successful judicial reviews have reinforced the need for robust
consideration of the public sector equality duties and the impact on protected
characteristics in the decision making process. Members must take full
account of the duties and accompanying evidence when considering the
MTFP proposals.

In terms of the ongoing programme of budget decisions the Council has taken
steps to ensure that impact assessments:

(i) Are built in at the formative stages so that they form an
integral part of developing proposals with sufficient time for
completion ahead of decision-making.

(ii) Are based on relevant evidence, including consultation where
appropriate, to provide a robust assessment.

(i) Objectively consider any negative impacts and alternatives or
mitigating actions so that they support fair and lawful decision
making.

(iv) Are closely linked to the wider MTFP decision-making
process.

(v) Build on previous assessments to provide an ongeing picture

of cumulative impact.

The process for identifying and completing impact assessments in relation to
the MTFP is consistent with previous years. Services, with support from
corporate equalities, were asked to consider all proposals to identify the level
of assessment required — either ‘screening’ or ‘full’ depending on the extent of
impact and the deadline for the final decision.

Where proposals are subject to further consultation and further decisions, the
relevant impact assessments will be updated as further information becomes
available. Final assessments will be considered in the decision making
process.

Impact Assessments for 2016/17 Savings Proposals

171

Page 42

A total of 35 assessments are available for Members to inform decisions on
individual proposals. Some are existing assessments from previous years
where there is a residual saving or a continuation of a savings proposal.
Some are new assessments and a number of proposals do not require an
assessment, for example those involving use of cash limits or savings in
supplies and services.



Equality Impact Assessments by Service Grouping:

Service ElAs

ACE 3
CAS 15
Neighbourhoods 11
RED 1
Resources 4
Corporate 1

Total 35

172 The documentation has been made available for Members via the Member
Support team ahead of this Cabinet meeting, and is in line with the
information provided in support of the December Cabinet report.

Summary of Equality Impacts of 2016/17 MTFP Proposals

173  Services were required to identify potential impacts likely to arise from
implementing each savings proposal. The main equalities impacts in relation
to new and continuing savings proposals are summarised below for each
service grouping.

174 ACE proposals include a service review with a potential impact on staff, a,
proposed reduction in AAP revenue which will be attempted to be mitigated by
third party funding, and reduction and withdrawal of grant
funding. Specifically, this involves removal of residual budgets relating to
community buildings grant, reduction in grant for Durham Community Action
and removal of the remaining grant funding to Gay Advice in Durham and
Darlington {GADD). At this stage, prior to completing consultation, none of
these proposals are thought to have specific disproportionate impacts on
groups with protected characteristics except the GADD reduction which has
impacts in relation to sexual orientation, age and gender including
transgender. Proposals could be mitigated through third party funding.

175 CAS proposals include potential impacts on age, disability and gender:

(i

(ii)

Some savings relate to changes from previous years which
continue to produce savings in 2016/17. These include consistent
and effective use of existing eligibility criteria and changes to
management of in house social care provision, which have
potential to impact on service users who are older people, women
and disabled people. Further efficiencies in relation to
management and support services are also proposed, which will
impact primarily on staff.

Some savings proposals have positive impacts for service users:
vulnerable children will be better supported through secure
services welfare and step down beds which will generate income,
and our early help approach for families will allow income to be
generated by other Councils using our surplus foster care places.

Page 43



Page 44

(i)

(iv)

(v)

The increased use of the Intermediate Care Plus service will
reduce costs for care through more service users regaining
independence.

A further review of in-house day care services has potential
impacts on services users, many of whom are older and/or
disabled. It was agreed by Cabinet in January that the in-house
service refocuses provision to support service users with more
complex needs. The needs of other users will be met through the
independent sector and community based services. A proposed
re-structure of Adult Care Services to meet the requirements of
the Care Act will ensure service users continue to receive a high
quality service, though there will be staff reductions and changes
to job descriptions which would impact on staff. Staff changes
would affect a predominantly female workforce but implications for
other protected characteristics have been considered to ensure
fair treatment of staff throughout this process.

Review of our charging policy in respect of adult care provision
has the potential to affect new service users receiving a Severe
Disability Premium (SDP) who could be required to pay up to
£22.93 more per week for their social care provision compared to
current recipients. As well as having some form of disability, this
group of service users is more likely to be female and older. This
would bring the Council’s policy in terms of the financial
assessment of customer in receipt of this benefit in-line with other
local authorities, with how disability related expenditure is treated
in the financial assessment of other customers and complies with
the Government’s Care Act Guidance which ensures no-one is
asked to pay more than they can afford. This saving is subject to
further consultation. The equality impacts of this policy change will
be considered as part of this decision making process.

The delivery of a new youth support strategy will impact mainly on
young people with a key objective to increase the proportion of
youth service spend on targeted support and achieve a more
equitable balance between universal provision delivered through
open access evening youth provision and targeted youth support.
This saving will be subject to further consultation and further
Cabinet decision making in Autumn 2016.

A review of non-assessed services is proposing changes to
charging for Care Connect, the Council’s community alarm and
telecare/healthcare provider which has impacts on older people,
particularly women and those with a disability. The review also
proposes de-commissioning some Prevention Services for over
50s which has potential impacts for women, older people, those
with a disability and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender
people; however some of the current demand will be met by



(vii)

Wellbeing for Life and other statutory or VCS provision. The
needs of older people will be considered in any future
commissioning of preventative services.

Consultation is underway on proposed changes to non-statutory
home to school or college transport which have the potential to
affect some children and young people including those aged 16-
19 with a medical condition. These changes will apply to new
applicants and measures will be put in place to mitigate against
the negative impacts.

(viii) The cost of Children’s Care will be reduced through the delivery of

the Looked After Children Reduction Strategy reducing the need
for residential care, which is a positive impact for children. It is
also proposed that a small number of young people with a
disability access alternative support or provision for short term
activity breaks.

176 Neighbourhood Services proposals include potential impacts across all
characteristics in relation to staffing whilst there are potential service impacts
on age, gender and disability. Specific impacts of savings proposals include;

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Staffing reviews are proposed in a number of services including Fleet
Management and Grounds Maintenance. These proposals are not
thought to have impacts on service delivery. Fair treatment of staff
will be ensured through agreed corporate HR procedures contained
within the Change Management Toolkit.

Staffing reviews in other services have various potential service
impacts though mitigating actions are also being proposed to lessen
the negative effects. For example proposed changes in technical
services (to share a Road Safety Manager with Hartlepool BC and
remove direct funding for Child Pedestrian Training) could have
impacts on children and families, but to mitigate the impacts funding
will be sought from alternative sources. A review of refuse and
recycling collection rounds may lead to a change in collection
arrangements for some households. While the impact of these
changes are largely on the workforce, there may also be impacts for
householders with a disability. Proposed changes to Environmental
Health and Consumer Protection will reduce the number of staff and
change some responsibilities, any potential impacts will be mitigated
through wherever possible by better use of resources.

A structural review of Customer Relations and Performance and
Planning teams will impact on staff in terms of an overall reduction in
numbers and changes to responsibilities. While there are potential
impacts to service delivery in these areas the review aims to improve
resource planning and provide a better mix of frontline staff.

Page 45



177

(iv) Proposed changes to Neighbourhood Protection have the potential
to affect groups with protected characteristics, particularly young
people. This is due to reducing the number of street wardens, but the
service will aim to maintain a seven day-a-week service.

(v) Changes to the DLI collection arrangements, whilst removing the
current base, have the potential for positive impacts for visitors,
especially those who are elderly and/or with young families because
of better public transport access. Other changes include reviewing
the contributions made to museums and theatres. The reductions are
not thought to have specific disproportional impact on groups with
protected characteristics.

(vi) Proposals to reduce the book fund will reduce the number of titles
across all categories. This has the potential to impact older and
disabled library users who may rely more than other groups on public
services provision of special formats such as larger print sizes.
However, the mix of future book purchasing will be driven by user
demand so no specific library user group should be
disproportionately affected by this change.

RED, Resources and Corporate proposals relate to further staffing
restructures, residual savings as a result of previous staffing restructures and
efficiencies from supplies and services. These changes are not thought to
impact on service users. Fair treatment of staff will be ensured through agreed
corporate HR procedures contained within the Change Management Toolkit.

Impacts of Previous Proposed Savings and Cumulative Impacts of 2016/17
Proposals

178

Page 46

Carrying out equality impact assessments on MTFP proposals helps us to
understand the cumulative impact across a range of savings proposals.
Throughout the last five years of austerity, the approach of the Council has
been to keep the impact of savings on front line services to a minimum, and
this has greatly reduced equalities impacts on those with a protected
characteristic. For example our successful transfer to local community groups
of leisure centres and community facilities, the ongoing work on the Durham
Ask, positive shifts to preventative work in our children's services and
increases in income generated are all ways in which Durham County Council
is reducing the equalities impacts of Government budget cuts. Where service
reductions have been unavoidable, impacts in relation to previous proposals
generaily related to loss of, or reduced access to, a particular service or
venue, travel to alternative provision, increased costs or charges and service
re-modelling including reductions in staff. These changes had the potential to
affect all protected characteristics however because it is more likely to affect
those on low income, people without access to personal transport and those
reliant on others for support there were particular potential impacts in relation
to people with a disability, age and gender.



179

180

181

182

183

184

Generally, changes to universal services such as street lighting or bin
collection are less likely to have a disproportionate impact on any one group.
However, there are exceptions such as reductions in contracted public bus
services, changes to libraries’ opening hours and changes to leisure centres.
Dedicated services such as social care, day care and home to school
transport sometimes have disproportionate impacts for particular groups such
as people with a disability and women, particularly those with a caring
responsibility, and we have taken steps to monitor the impact and mitigate it
where possible.

While the specific list of proposed savings in the 2016/17 MTFP are different
from previous years the impacts are similar. There are potential impacts for
older people, particularly those with a disability receiving social care, although
some savings are the result of more older and disabled people living
independently which is a positive outcome. Older social care users are also
more likely to be female. Children and young people, including some with a
disability are potentially affected through changes to home to school transport
policy and through a new youth support strategy.

There are also potential impacts for community groups with a proposed
reduction in grant funding, with specific impacts this year for LBGT groups.
However, generally there are limited impacts identified in relation o race,
religion or belief, although there is also less data and evidence available to
show potential impact on these groups.

Mitigating actions are considered where the assessments have identified
negative impacts on protected groups. These generally include ensuring
service users can make informed choices or find alternatives (including finding
funding from other sources), implementing new or improved ways of working,
working with partners and providing transition or more flexible arrangements
to reduce the initial impact.

There are a number of 2016/17 proposals relating to staffing restructures and
changes, the impacts are comparable to those reported in previous years.
Services are required to follow corporate HR procedures to ensure fair and
consistent treatment, for example, by making reasonable adjustments for
disabled employees. In many cases negative impact can be minimised by
progressing requests for early retirement, voluntary redundancy and through
redeployment.

In summary the potential impacts on staff can relate to any of the protected
characteristics. In terms of age, employees over 55 may feel at greater risk of
redundancy or younger staff who may be more likely to have significant
financial burdens in terms of mortgages or young families. There are potential
gender impacts on both men and women, for example where reviews relate to
senior posts or some particular service areas they are more likely to affect
male employees whilst a number of proposals relate to areas with more
female employees.

Page 47



185

Overall, the staffing profile still shows significantly more women employed
across the Council so women are inevitably more likely to be affected by
change. There are some disabled staff and staff from black or ethnic minority
backgrounds included in the reviews and restructures but the overall numbers
of those affected are low which reflects the broader workforce profile data.
Data on the religion or belief and sexual orientation of staff is collected
through Resourcelink but the reporting rates are still very low so this
information is not routinely included in equality impact assessments in order
that people cannot be identified. Transgender status is not currently
monitored.

High Level Summary of Equality Impact of 2017/18 Proposals

186

187

A list of proposals contributing savings to the 2017/18 MTFP is included as
Appendix 4. It is likely that the key service user impacts will relate to age,
gender and disability, as for previous years. Many savings areas represent
continuing savings from 2016/17, including the ACE service review, CAS
application of eligibility criteria, review of care connect charging and review of
home to school transport. The equalities impacts are already summarised
earlier in the report and supported by impact assessments. Other proposals
are at an earlier stage. As these proposals are developed, services, with
support from the corporate equalities team, will be asked to identify the level
of equalities assessment required. This will mean either a ‘screening’ or ‘full’
equality impact assessment will be developed depending on the extent of
impact to support the decision making process.

Where proposals are subject to multi-stage decision making, or subject to
consultation, the relevant impact assessments will be updated as further
information becomes available. Final assessments will be considered in the
decision making process.

Key Findings and Next Steps

188

189

Page 48

The equality impact assessments are vital in order to understand potential
outcomes for protected groups and mitigate these where possible.

The main equalities impacts of the 2016/17 MTFP proposals relate to age,
disability and gender. The main mitigating actions include development of
alternative provision models, transition arrangements, partnership working
and alternative sources of support where possible. The cumulative impacts
can increase costs for individuals, reduce access to services and affect their
participation in employment, social activities and caring responsibilities. There
will be continued focus on equalities issues as we move into future years of
this MTFP, with equality impacts revisited and reviewed each year as
appropriate. In many cases impact assessments are initial screenings with a
full impact assessment to follow at the point of decision, once all necessary
stakeholder consultation has been completed.



Recommendations and Reasons

190 Cabinet is asked to:

(i) Consider the equality impacts identified and mitigating actions
both in the report and in the individual equality impact
assessments which have been made available in the Members’
Resource Centre.

(ii) Note the programme of future work to ensure full impact
assessments are available, where appropriate, at the point of
decision-making, once all necessary consultations have been
completed.

(iii) Note the ongoing work to assess cumulative impacts over the
MTFP period which is regularly reported to Cabinet.

Workforce Considerations

191 MTFP (1) which covered the period from 2011 to 2015 originally forecast a
reduction in posts of 1,950 against a savings target of £123.5m. Since then
the savings required to date have grown to over £153m yet through careful
planning and forecasting, the actual impact upon workforce numbers has
remained around the same level as was originally predicted.

192 Looking ahead, with the significant savings requirements over the next two
years there will be further reductions in workforce numbers. For 2016/17 the
forecast is a further reduction of approximately 400 posts including the
deletion of an anticipated 60 vacant posts.

193 Further detailed planning is underway to identify the forecasted numbers for
2017 to 2020 and, recognising the principles adopted to date in workforce
reduction exercises within Service Groupings, the Council will take all possible
steps to avoid compulsory redundancies and minimise the impact upon the
workforce in these next stages of change. The continued approach of forward
planning, retaining vacant posts in anticipation of any required change,
seeking volunteers for early retirement and/or voluntary redundancy and
maximising redeployment opportunities for the workforce will minimise
wherever possible the necessity for compulsory redundancies in the process.

194 In addition, the way that work is organised and jobs are designed will continue
to be reviewed by Service Groupings, to ensure that as changes continue to
be made, the Council maximises the capacity of remaining workforce through
skills development and the introduction of flexibility into the way work is
organised, in order to maximise the capability of the remaining workforce.

Page 49



Pay Policy

195 The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to prepare and publish a pay
policy statement annually which sets out the authority’s policy relating to the
remuneration of its Chief Officers, and how this compares with the policy on
the remuneration of its lowest paid employees.

196 The first policy document was approved by a resolution of the Council prior to
31 March 2012 and a policy must then be published by the end of March for
each subsequent year, although the policy can be amended by a resolution of
the Council during the year.

197 Additionally, the Act requires that in relation to Chief Officers the policy must
set out the authority's arrangements relating to:-

(i) The level and elements of remuneration for each Chief Officer.
(ii) Remuneration of Chief Officers on recruitment.

(i)  Increases and additions to remuneration for each Chief Officer.
(ivy  The use of performance-related pay for Chief Officers.

{v) The use of bonuses for Chief Officers.

(vi)  The approach to the payment of Chief Officers on their ceasing to hold
office under or to be employed by the authority.

(vii)  The publication of and access to information relating to remuneration of
Chief Officers.

198 There will be no change to the current process where Parish Councils meet
the full costs of their individual by-elections. The pay policy statement
presented at Appendix 10 includes the fees of the Returning Officer and
deputies and other personnel employed in county or parish elections.

199 The Pay Policy Statement at Appendix 10 is for Council consideration and

outlines the details for the authority for 2016/17, in line with the above
requirements.

Recommendations
200 Itis recommended that Members:-

(i) Approve the Pay Policy Statement at Appendix 10.

Page 50



Risk Assessment

201

The Council has previously recognised that a wide range of financial risks
need to be managed and mitigated across the medium term. The risks faced
are exacerbated by the localism of business rates and the localisation of
Council tax support. All risks will be assessed continually throughout the
MTFP (6) period. Some of the key risks identified include:

(i) Ensure the achievement of a balanced budget and financial position
across the MTFP (6) period.

(i) Ensure savings plans are risk assessed across a range of factors e.qg.
impact upon customers, stakeholders, partners and staff.

(il Govemment funding reductions are based upon the Local Government
Finance Settlement. The inclusion in this report of an Efficiency Plan
should secure a four year RSG settlement from the government. There
is still a risk however that a deterioration in the public finances could
result in further savings targets for local government in excess of those
agreed to date. .

(iv} The localisation of council tax support passed the risk for any increase
in Council tax benefit claimants onto the Council. Activity in this area
will need to be monitored carefully with medium term projections
developed in relation to estimated volume of claimant numbers.

(v)  The Council retains 49% of all business rates collected locally but is
also responsible for settling all rating appeals including any liability prior
to 31 March 2013. Increasing business rate reliefs and appeals
settlements continue to make this income stream highly volatile and will
require close monitoring to fully understand the implications upon
MTFP (6).

Recommendation

202

it is recommended that Members:-

(i) Note the risks to be managed over the MTFP (6) period.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and School Funding 2016/17

203

204

The DSG is a specific earmarked grant provided by the Government and
provides the major source of funding for schools and support to them. It is
notionally split into three ‘blocks’: Early Years, High Needs and

Schools. Local authorities are able to transfer funding between blocks but all
funding must be spent on schools and support to them.

The Early Years block provides funding for 3 to 4 year old provision, which
includes Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) to maintained Nursery

Page 51



205

206

207

208

Page 52

Schools, nursery units in primary schools and academies, and Private,
Voluntary and Independent (PVI) sector providers for 570 hours of free early
education or childcare a year. A provisional allocation has been provided by
the Department for Education (DfE) based on the 2015/16 allocation. The
actual 2016/17 allocation will not be announced until the summer, based on
the number of eligible children recorded in the January 2016 pupil census.
The amount per pupil will be at the same rate as for 2015/16.

Funding is also provided through the Early Years Block to provide free early
education places for eligible 2 year-olds from lower income households. The
allocation is based on participation funding and a provisional allocation has
been provided by the DfE based on census data taken in January 2015. The
DfE will not announce the initial 2016/17 allocations uniil July 2016, which will
be based on the number of eligible children participating in early education
recorded in the January 2016 census. The rate per hour for Durham has been
confirmed as £4.85 per hour, which is in line with the current level of hourly
payments to providers.

In addition to funding through the EYSFF, the 12 maintained nursery schools
also receive funding through a formula. The formula includes a deprivation
element, a lump sum and an allowance for rates. The formula funding
provided in this way does not apply to nursery units in primary schools and
academies or PVI providers. The funding for the 12 maintained nursery
schools is topped up with £58,500 of funding transferred to the Early Years
funding block from the Schools Block.

Early Years Pupil Premium is also funded through the Early Years block and a
provisional allocation has been provided by the DfE, again based on the
2015/16 allocations. The 2016/17 allocation will be announced in the summer
based on the number of eligible children recorded in the January 2016 pupil
census. The rate of £0.53 per hour in 2015/16 continues into 2016/17, which
equates to £302.10 for each eligible child taking up the full 570 hours of state
funded early education.

The High Needs Block provides funding for pupils with high cost Special

Educational Needs {(SEN}, i.e. those pupils requiring provision in specialist

settings costing more than £10,000 per year or £6,000 per year of SEN

provision for pupils in mainstream primary and secondary schools, and funds:
(i) Specialist placements;

(i)  Place based funding for special schoals;

(iiy  Top-up funding to reflect additional costs for individual pupil suppont;
and

(iv)  SEN support services.



209 The total aliocation to the High Needs Block is based on historic
allocations. In total £420,000 of High Needs Block funding is transferred to
the Schools Block for distribution to primary and secondary schools via the
Schools Funding Formula.

210 The Schools Block includes centrally retained DSG funding and provides the
principle source of funding for all primary and secondary schools in respect of
the education of pupils from Reception to Year 11. Primary and secondary
schools receive their funding through a formula. The formula is determined
by the Council after consultation with the Schools Forum and schools
themselves. The formula must comply with statutory regulation. This
regulation limits the discretion of local authorities in determining its formula
and requires that at least 80% of funding is distributed through factors related
to pupil numbers and needs. The formula set by the Council applies to all
schools — maintained, academy and voluntary aided schools. There is no
difference in terms of DSG funding provision save for academies receiving
their funding allocations on an academic year, whereas maintained schools
receive their DSG funding on a financial year basis.

211  For 2016/17 the schools formula is being changed to reduce the lump sum for
primary schools from £175,000 per school to £167,500 per school, with a
further reduction to £160,000 planned for 2017/18. The £1.65m of funding
released will be re-allocated to secondary schools, many of which are
struggling to provide a broad and balanced curriculum within current levels of
funding levels. Currently, primary schools in County Durham receive a
greater share of funding per pupil than the national average and the primary
lump sum is significantly above the national average. For 2016/17,
secondary school funding will also be increased by the utilisation of £1.65m
from central DSG reserves.

212 The total allocation to the Schools Block is based on an amount for each pupil
recorded in the October 2015 pupil Census. The amount per pupil is based
on historic allocations, but also takes account of relative levels of need
between different local authorities. In 2016/17 the DSG funding per pupil is
£4,649.17, which is £8.29 more than the 2015/16 rate. The difference
reflects an adjustment for academies that were not previously included in the
DSG allocation; the additional funding is offset by the removal of a lump sum
allocation included in 2015/16 in respect of these academies.

213  Pupil premium for schools and academies in Durham for 2015/16 is £26.45m.

Pupil Premium rates for 2016/17 will remain the same as for 2015/16 and
these rates are shown in the table overleaf:

Page 53



Table 18 —Pupil Premium Rates 2016/17

Amount per
eligible pupil
£

Deprivation Pupil Premium — Primary 1,320
Deprivation Pupil Premium — Secondary 935
Looked After Children 1,900
Children adopted from care or who have left 1.900
care '
Service Children 300

214 The numbers of pupils eligible for pupil premium for 2016/17 will be provided
by the Education Funding Agency; overall the numbers are likely to be similar
to 2015/16, but may vary more widely for individual schools.

215 DSG and Pupil Premium funding for 2016/17 is shown in the table overleaf:-
Table 19 — DSG and Pupil Premium Funding

Amount . DSG Additional | Total DSG

DSG Block per pupil e Allocated Funding Allocation
€/pupil £m £m £m
Early Years Block (3-4 yr olds) 3,866.10 4,494 17.374 0.533 17.374
Early Years Block (2 yr olds) 4,607.50 960 4423 - 4.423
Early Years Block (EYPP) 0.553 - 0.553
High Needs Block - - 44 311 - 44 311
Schools Block 4,649.17 62,119 288.802 0.090 288.892
Total DSG 355.463 0.090 355.553
Pupil Premium (estimated) 26.450 26.450
Total 355.463 26.540 382.003

216 Primary and secondary formula funding for Academies in County Durham

totals £75.140m, based on the Durham formula factors. This funding is

recouped by the Education Funding Agency and allocated directly to the
individual schools, leaving £280.413 of DSG funding payable to the Council
for maintained schools.

217

The Government intends to begin a consultation on school funding in the

spring. This is expected to include proposals for revising the allocations of
funding, in particular to:

(i)

(ii)

218

Change to the basis of allocation of High Needs Block funding to
reflect relative need rather than historic allocations;

To move to a national funding formula for primary and secondary

schools.

A national funding formula for primary and secondary schools is expected to

take account of relative needs (e.g. deprivation}, which should benefit County

Page 54




Durham. It is not yet clear how much local discretion will be allowed over the
new formula arrangements: the national formula could be used to distribute
funding to local authorities, which would then have discretion over how this is
allocated to schools or the same formula could be applied to all schools
across the country. Officers will carefully consider the consultation proposals
once they are received and, working with the School Forum, will model
impacts and options and advise members in due course.

Recommendation
219 It is recommended that Members:
(i) Note the position on the Dedicated Schools Grant.
Discretionary Rate Relief Policy

220 The Discretionary Rate Relief, Hardship and Empty Propenrty Relief {(including
New Build Business Rates Relief) Policy, was updated and approved by
Cabinet July 2015. At that time the Policy was updated to include the changes
that were announced in the 2014 Autumn Statement, including:

(i) An extension of the Small Business Rate Relief for a further 12 months
until 31 March 2016.

(i) Changes to the temporary discount for shops, pubs and restaurants
with rateable values below £50,000 awarding them increased relief of
£1,500 for 2015/16, with the Government continuing to fully fund this
relief through Section 31 Grant.

(i)  An extension of the transitional relief scheme for a further two years.
This scheme covers properties with a rateable value up to and
including £50.000.

221 In his 2015 Autumn Statement, the Chancellor announced the continuation of
the temporary increase in small business rate relief, which will remain
unchanged in the policy. Organisations that meet the qualifying criteria for
small business rates relief will not be considered for discretionary rate relief
until they have applied for small business rate relief.

222 There was however no further extension to the temporary discount for shops
and restaurants with a rateable value below £50,000. This will cease on 31
March 2016.

223 In 2015/16 there are currently 1,505 business ratepayers who have been
benefitting from this relief totalling £1,772,397 of support. Ratepayers will still
be able io have this relief granted retrospectively for 2015/16, providing they
meet criteria and apply before 30 September 2016 therefore this will remain
within the policy, albeit that the policy needs to be amended to reflect these
conditions. On 1 October 2016 provision for Retail Relief will be removed from
the Policy posted to the Councils website to avoid confusion.

Page 55



224 The transitional relief scheme will continue in 2016/17 for properties with a
rateable value up to and including £50,000. In 2015/16 there are currently 78
business ratepayers who have benefited from this relief totalling £65,089. In
2016/17 there is an estimated 23 ratepayers who will have this relief granted
totalling £10,170.

225 [n addition to the Governments announcements, the following changes are
proposed:

(i) The wording in Section 2 of the policy has been updated regarding the
Localism Act 2011 section 69, which allows local authorities to reduce
the business rates of any local ratepayer and removes the restrictions of
discretionary rate relief to only apply to charities and other organisations
of prescribed types.

(i) There is a minor amendment to section 3.22 of the policy to clarify the
essential criteria which must be met before Durham County Council
would consider awarding discretionary rate relief in that

‘the ratepayer must be a non-profit making body and/or the property
must be used by the ratepayer wholly or mainly for charitable,
philanthropic or religious purposes, or concerned with education, social
welfare, science, literature and the fine arts, or the ratepayer must use
the property wholly or mainly for recreation by a non-profit making club
or society.’

226 The final amendment made to the policy, which is attached out at Appendix
11, is to integrate the Councils Hardship Relief Policy, in line with
recommendations from an internal audit review; this has been added at
section 9.

227 The revisions to the policy set out above and included in the updated policy at
Appendix 11 will ensure that all applications continue to be assessed in a fair
and open process, based on agreed policy criteria and in line with
Government policy.

Recommendation
228 It is recommended that Members:
(i) Members note and approve the changes to the Discretionary Rate

Relief, Hardship and Empty Propenrty Relief (including New Build
Business Rates Relief) Policy, as set out in the report, which will apply
from April 2016.

Prudential Code

229 This section outlines the Council's prudential indicators for 2016/17 to

2018/19 and sets out the expected treasury operations for this period. It fulfils
four key legislative requirements:-

Page 56



230

231

(i) The reporting of the prudential indicators, setting out the expected
capital activities as required by the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities as shown at Appendix 12.

(i)  The Council's Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy, which sets
out how the Council will pay for capital assets through revenue each
year (as required by Regulation under the Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 as shown at Appendix 12.

(i)  The Treasury Management Strategy statement which sets out how the
Council's treasury service will support the capital decisions taken
above, the day to day treasury management and the limitations on
activity through treasury prudential indicators. The key indicator is the
‘Authorised Limit’, the maximum amount of debt the Council could
afford in the short term, but which would not be sustainable in the
longer term. This is the Affordable Borrowing Limit required by section
3 of the Local Government Act 2003. This is in accordance with the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA
Prudential Code and shown at Appendix 12.

(iv)  The investment strategy which sets out the Council’s criteria for
choosing investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of
loss. This strategy is in accordance with the CLG Investment Guidance
and is also shown in Appendix 12.

The above policies and parameters provide an approved framework within
which the officers undertake the day to day capital and treasury activities.

The Annual Investment Strategy for 2016/2017 has been amended as follows:

(i} The sovereign rating in respect of the selection criteria for approved
counterparties for Non UK Banks 1 has changed from AAA to AA-. This
is a recommendation by Capita, the Council’'s Treasury Management
advisor, and is intended so that the Council can fully access the list of
recommended banking counterparties. In essence this change provides
the Council with greater depth and diversification in respect of the
counterparty list, while maintaining the principles of security and
liquidity in its application.

(i)  As part of a balanced approach to investment a new Non-specified
Investment opportunity has been included to allow the Council to take
equity shares in businesses up to a limit of £10m after taking on board
due diligence.

Page 57



Recommendation

232 It is recommended that Members:-

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Agree the Prudential Indications and Limits for 2016/17 — 2018/19
contained within the Appendix 12 of the report, including the
Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator.

Agree the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement
contained within Appendix 12 which sets out the Council’s policy
on MRP.

Agree the Treasury Management Strategy and the treasury
Prudential Indicators contained within Appendix 12.

Agree the Investment Strategy 2016/17 contained in the Treasury
Management Strategy (Appendix 12 including the detailed
criteria).

Summary of Recommendations

233 It is recommended that Members:-

(a)

(b)

Page 58

2016/17 Revenue Budget

i.  Approve the identified base budget pressures included in
paragraph 84.

ii.  Approve the investments detailed in the repont.
iii.  Approve the 2016/17 savings plans detailed in Appendix 4 .
iv.  Approve a 3.99% increase in Council Tax.

v.  Approve the Net Budget Requirement of £401.515m.
MTFP (6)

(i)  Agree the forecast 2015/16 to 2017/18 MTFP (6) financial
position.

(i) Set aside sufficient sums in Earmarked Reserves as is considered

prudent. The Corporate Director Resources should continue to be
authorised to establish such reserves as required to review them
for both adequacy and purpose on a regular basis reporting
appropriately to the Cabinet Portfolio Member for Finance and to
Cabinet.



(iii) Aim to maintain General Reserve in the medium term between
5% and 7.5% of the Net Budget Requirement which in cash terms
is up to £30m.

(c) Capital Budget

()] Note the impact upon the 2016/17 capital budget relating to the
reduction in the Highways LTP grant

(i)  Approve the revised 2015/16 Capital Budget of £131.736m and
the 2016/17 Capital Budget of £133.483m

(iii)  Approve the additional capital schemes detailed at Appendix
9. These schemes will be financed from the additional capital
grants, from capital receipts and prudential borrowing

(iv)  Note the option for the Council to utilise capital receipts to
finance severance costs utilising the new flexibilities in this
regard. The utilisation of such flexibility will require the approval
of Cabinet

(v)  Approve the MTFP (5) Capital Budget of £333.037m for 2015/16
to 2018/19 detailed in Table 17.

(d) Savings Proposals

()] Note the approach taken by Service Groupings to achieve the
required savings.

() Equality Impact Assessment

(i) Consider the equality impacts identified and mitigating actions
both in the report and in the individual equality impact
assessments which have been made available in the Members’
Resource Centre.

(i) Note the programme of future work to ensure full impact
assessments are available where appropriate at the point of
decision, once all necessary consultations have been
completed.

(i)  Note the ongoing work to assess cumulative impacts over the
MTFP period which is regularly reported to Cabinet.

f) Pay Policy and Terms and conditions changes

(i) Approve the Pay Policy Statement at Appendix 10.

Page 59



(9)

(h)

0

(k)

Risk Assessment

(i)  Note the risks to be managed over the MTFP (B) period.

Dedicated Schools Grant

() Note the position of the Dedicated Schools Grant.

Discretionary Rate Relief Policy

(i} Note and approve the changes to the Discretionary Rate Relief,
Hardship and Empty Property Relief (including New Build
Business Rates Relief) Policy, as set out in the report and
attached at Appendix 11, which will apply from April 2016

Prudential Code

() Agree the Prudential Indications and Limits for 2016/17 —
2018/19 contained within the Appendix 12 of the repon, including
the Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator.

(ii) Agree the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement
contained within Appendix 12 which sets out the Council’s policy
on MRP.

(i)  Agree the Treasury Management Strategy and the treasury
Prudential Indicators contained within Appendix 12.

(iv)  Agree the Investment Strategy 2016/17 contained in the
Treasury Management Strategy (Appendix 12including the
detailed criteria).

Contact:

Jeff Garfoot Tel: 03000 261946
Gordon Elliott Tel: 03000 263604
Jenny Haworth Tel: 03000 268014

Page 60



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance - The report sets out recommendations on the 2016/17 Budget and for the
MTFP(6) period 2016/17 — 2019/20.

Staffing — The impact of the MTFP upon staffing is detailed within the report.

Risk — A robust approach to Risk Assessment across the MTFP process has been
followed including individual risk assessment of savings plans.

Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty - Full information on equality
and diversity is contained within the report.

Accommodation - the Council's Corporate Asset Management Plan is aligned to
the corporate priorities contained within the Council Plan. Financing for capital
investment priorities is reflected in the MTFP Model.

Crime and Disorder — It is recognised that the changes proposed in this report
could have a negative impact on crime and disorder in the county. However, the
Council will continue to work with the Policy and others through the safe Durham
Partnership on strategic crime and disorder and to identify local problems and target
resources to them.

Human Rights = Any human rights issues will be considered for each of the
proposals as they are developed and decisions made to take these forward. There
are no human right implications from the information within the report.

Consultation - Full information on the MTFP (6) consultation process are contained
in the report.

Procurement — Wherever possible procurement savings are reflected in service
groupings savings plans.

Disability Issues —~ All requirements will be assessed in Equality Impact
Assessments.

Legal Implications - The Council has a statutory responsibility to set a balanced
budget for 2016/17. It also has a fiduciary duty not to waste public resources.

Page 61



Page 62



‘G102 180100 Wo} sanjigisuodsal siesh G - g Jo Jajsuel}
aul 109|184 01 pasealoul usaqg sey ainbl) sulldseq ulesH 211and 91/SL0NZ aul - 810N

Go9.L’¢€ uoneJsiuiupy lisuag BuisnoH
TAN) susping maN SH.LOT
7100 Soliaysi4{ aloysu|
G9E0 usping MaN - ajen |elooS suosld
08€0 Aunwwon pue w.ojay [edoT
899°aS UieeH a11qnd
6660 uodsuels | 01 sybiy 9814 pepuaixy

G650- LOV'S ¢00'9 luelt) sadlAleg uolednpy

W3 w3 w3
_ooueueh | /L/9L0Z | 91/9L0g ANVHO DIID3dS

L1/9102 SLNVHD 21d103dS

Z Xipuaddy

Page 63



Page 64



Appendix 3:

Durham County Council Efficiency Plan

In order to receive confirmation of a four year settlement, the council must prepare
an efficiency plan. The council has a strong track record on planning and
performance management, which aims to minimise the numbers of plans and
streamline how we manage delivery through effective performance management.

The core of our planning framework is the Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS)
which sets out how we work with partners to deliver the long term vision for the
county; the council plan which sets out how we will deliver our part of the SCS and
how we intend to improve as an organisation. These are then translated into a
linked set of service plans for each service grouping. The resourcing requirements
of these plans are then set out in the linked Medium Term Financial Plan {MTFP).

Performance management reports are provided to the CDP Board and Cabinet on a
quarterly basis. Scrutiny committees drill into these in more detail to ensure that the
council delivers against its plan.

Since becoming unitary in 2009, the council has had an absolute focus on efficiency
- initially to deliver the savings required through Local Government Review (LGR)
and then through the five years of austerity so far.

Analysis of these plans quickly makes it clear that efficiency is at the heart of all our
strategic thinking and planning. Some examples are given below:

Examples of efficiency

SCS Sharing approaches to austerity to avoid cost shunting between
agencies.

Successful aitraction of transformation funding e.g. on early
years and community asset transfer to change how we work in
collaboration across organisations.

Focus on volunteering to support service transformation.

Adoption of the Social Value Act to improve commissioning with
such businesses and the voluntary sector.

| Council Plan Reduction of spending by £153m up to 31 March 2016, whilst
maintaining (or since vesting day on 1 April 2009, improving) key
Pls is evidence of increasing efficiency.

Our MTFPs have been developed and implemented using robust
programme management. The MTFP is in effect an efficiency
programme.

The council has had a strong track record of rationalising its
estate to reduce costs and generate capital receipts where
possible. Five previous civic centre sites have been or are in the
process of redevelopment. Opportunities to link strategic
regeneration e.g. at our Aykley Heads Civic Headquarters site,

Page 65



we are currently exploring the option to reduce the footprint of
our administrative estate and exploit ICT to work more
effectively.

Our complimentary suite of plans: service plans, key strategies, e.g regeneration
statement, CYPS etc. in addition to supporting strategies such as those for
procurement, ICT, organisational development etc. all contain this strong focus on
efficiency.

The approach to developing an efficiency plan in Durham is in itself efficient by not
adding to our plans, but simply to point to our existing planning and performance
framework which has delivered improved efficiency from the outset.

Page 66



Wh#.gmhmw _o_.o.www.wm WL0L
0 lese'seo'y seoIueg ajelodion
Log'sie'e 182'€6Y'L $82/N0Say
AV AA A _mt._m_1 [ saoinuag Juawdojeaaq d1wWouoo] pue uonelausfisy
00¥'L68'C 000°'8817'E sao1n9g pooyinoquybian
919'600'0¢  |£88'SeE'Ll S$801AI85 |INPY pue USIPIIYD
6E'6.6 viLe'ees $,8AIIND8XT JoIUD) JUE)SISSY
81/.102 21/9102 Buidnolxs) aouag Jod J9biel SBUIAES |e)o]

¢ xipuaddy

81/2102 pue £1/91.02 40} siebise] sbuiaeg |1ounod Ajuno) weying

Page 67



leee‘sL6 sbuiaes |BJ0L IOV
£6E'646 MBIAB) BOIAJ8S 30V 22 30V
3
g1/2102 uonduasaq 434
iPLEZES sBujaes |el0] 30V
000'L2L sa|poq |eusaixs 0} sjuelb jo malney £2 3OV
R MBIABI B2IAIBS JOY 22 30V
000°082 uononpal anusAal dy'y 12 30V
3
2119102 uonduasaqg 434

SNOILAO SONIAVS (9) dd1IN

Page 68



s88'see’s1 sBujaes [e101 Svo
000°281- anesay Wi ysed jo juswheday| O'LLSYD
000'/2F saljod podsues) 869)j0 / [00Yog 0} BWOH mained|  O0'0LSYD)
910'G0S*L ABayens uononpay Oy ‘sepusiol] aled sualpiud| v0'60SYO
000°00€ malaay S|INS 1o} Juswhed isajoualoly] ared s,uaipliyd| €0'60SYD)

sjuawsalbe joas) soles
066'G19'C pue BuiucissIwLLoD ‘suuee Ayunwwoed Buipniou] — s80IMSs PassSasSE-UoU Jo mainad|  LO'S0SYD)
000052 s1apiaosd saoives s,usIp|iyd O} suolnquuod jo uoienobau-ay| €2'50SVYD
000'056 $821A185 S,uaIpjiyo U ebueyd jeuciewnosuel| 22'S0SYD
000°041L°L uolesaust) eWwoou| pasealoul] 1&'SOSVI
000'0PS'L aJeD ynpy ul ebueyo [euopewnojsuell| 61°S0SYD
000°09 aoines Bujpuayo uinoA weying Ajunog jo malnay| B8L'SOSYD
L' 90y S3JIAIBG UONeINP] JO MBIADY] 9L'S0SYD
000'05¢ voddns yinoA jo mainay| SL'SOSYD
000'S8. Sa0IAl9S 8len aleIpauus)u| Jo asn pasesloul| 80°G0SYD
rAWAA: S Sa0IAI8S S UBIP|IUD UIYIM mBlABl 80IMBS|  LO'SOSVO;
000°06S°L meiney asep Aed| €0°SOSYD
169°2EL eouelLIOpad B Buluueld ‘Aoljod Jo malral @dIMBS|  LO'SOSYD
000'291 uoisiaoid a1ed Jnpe Jo 1oadsal ul swoou) Buibieys pasealou)| LOCOSYD

BlB)IO
000°000‘c Aunaibije jo asn aanoaye saoidwi o) sabueyo snoaid Jo UONENURUOY ~ BLIBILD >~___w__m«_._m_ LO°c0SYD
000'SES S921A185 8snoy-ul yoddng pue a1e) weying Ajuno) Jo melnsd| €0°LOSYD

3
L1/910¢ uojiduasag 434

SNOILLAO SONIAVS (9) d41LIN

Page 69



[91.9'600'02

sbuiaes [ej0L SV

000'618 i ysedy LISYD
000°'S62 salljod vodsues) aba)jo0 /ooy 0] SWOH Mmainay 0LSYD
000°0VE" L S80IAIBS 8JBD) S,UBIP|IYD JO MBJABY 65V
000'005" ¢ S89IAI9S PASSaSSE-UOU JO MalASY 9syo
UOJJESI|BLOIRI/SMBIAR] 8DIAI8
loLg'z+1'o UONESI[RUORBI/SMBIAR 80IA19S pue sainoniis Buiyels ‘seojaieg poddng pue juawabeuepy SSYO
000'EEE uoisiaosd a1ed ynpe Jo 1oadsal ul awosu) BuiBieya pasealou esvol
000'S25'E uawa|qeal pue eua)o Bulsixa jo asn aAljoayd pue Juaisisuo) - eusiu) Anqibyg ZSYD
000°000'9 uois|aoid 2120 |B120S JO MaIASY LSYD
3
81/2102 uopdisasag 434

SNOILJO SHYNIAVS (9) d4LIN

Page 70



00t 268°C sbuiaes |10 SN|

000°'64L°1 sa2)a18g pooynoqybiaN Uluim smelaey aolaes S2SN
000'00F sBuineg ABrau3 Bunybi 1eaig LISN
00v'8LL Buniom Jo sABM JUSJD||e 310LW PUB SMBIABY (BINJONNS ESN

3
8L/LLOZ uonduaseg FE|

000°88F'E sbujes |egol SN

000'08- ywi ysen 1o asn sieah snoinaid 1o Juawisnipy 20°62SN
000'0PE uonaajold pooyinogybian jo manwey LO'SESN
000°'G22 dOH3 Jo malaay E0°'EESN
000'152 aguewIopad pue Ad1|0 ] ‘suoljelay Jawolisny JO mainay LO'CESN
000°051 pung xoog Aseiqr Jo mainey S0'SeSN
00020t B0MI9S BJ1BaL L B WNSSN JO MBINaY 90'veSN
000°001 saoaineg ubisaq pue Buipjing woay swWeoL| pasealay| LL'ZLSN
000°e81 S30IAIDS |BIIUYIS] JO MBIABYH 911 ISN
000'cZL UONEPOLLILLIcIDY 801J( JO uoljesijeuoiiey E0°Z0SN
000°SZZ suoNoa|02 BuipAoal pue asnjal Jo MaINaY Z1L'SOSN
000°0S1 @ouBUalUIEW SPUNOLY J0) Woddns jo mainey $0'#OSN
000°19 shipas BuioAoal jo mainay /9'COSN
000'EE aoues Bulaled ulypm saiousioyg S2'S0SN
000°00% 2011uBS 1854 U} JO MaInay YL'EOSN
000‘C2E uoisiaoid 2INs|aT Ul S32IN0SEl JO Malray LLLOSN

3
21/9102 uonduasag 434

SNOLLAO SHONIAYS (9) d41N

Page 71



202282 sbuiaeg |ejo4 g3y

Z02 28y (34 SS0JoB awoIu; pue $ad1nas ‘salddns Jo meinay 1034
000'008' L Mmalaal 8dles g3Y L0034

3
gL/L102 :o_.m_hommar 434
BZL'8LLL sbujaeg |ejo1 g3y
a9/1'81Le (34 SS040B SWodul pue seojaes ‘sa|/ddns Jo malnay ¥1a3d
000°00P S301A19S SNg PajorIIuCY) JO malaaY cld3Y
000'00¥ Malnal aoIMes Q3Y L0Q3Y
3
21/9102 uondiiasag 434

SNOILDO SONIAVS (9) d4LIN

Page 72



sbujaes |e10f S3H]|

Lag'sie'e
51L9'v9) Y¥SIH PUE JIPNY [BUISIU] JO MBIADH 12S3y
80.'8EL"L S)Ijauag PUB SaNUBABY JO MaInSY 61534
2vE'869 101 Jo mainay 91534
p..'595 sselisibay jo mainay £1s3y
NN¢.w¢m £83IN0Say uelWnH JO malady 20534
3
BL/2LOZ uonditasaqg 434
L82'c6b'L sbujaeg |e101 S3H|
980'C6 SIH PUE JpNY [ews)u| Jo melnay lgs3y
9E0'E L 101 10 malnay 9193y
L9G L0¥ S0UBUI JO MBIABY G153y
_.Nm.mmm SaJAISS JNeID0Ws] pue _mmmn_ JO M3IADYH £1S3Y
129682 $82IN0SaY UBLUNH JO MalAsY 20834
3
2119102 uondisasag 434

SNOLLdO SHNIAVS (9) d41W

Page 73



25£'820°Y sBuiaeg |10 8jeiodiod|

000002 §JS00 2Ny U} UoKONPaY LEHOD
000'002 sisoo ABiaua ul uononpay 0EHOD
000'00€ sase AIBUD{SSaoUOD 624500
000'0S1 JuswWwwoy uolonpay uogsed 82400
000°0S sabieyy yueg 12400
00002 5334 JIpPNY [ewaX3 92400
000'0EL‘L sewsyds |eyde) Bupueuly yeg G2HOD
000'0S %013 mojaq safes woyy swoou) — sydiaday jenden $2H0D
00000} puspIAG 4AQ £2H0D
000'0S2 8Wodu| |Bjusy Yoeay SueWwsal 22H00
000'8.t sBuneg mainay 198|d L2HOD
25€'050° 1 suojjoun4 yoddng ssausng Jo majaay 6LH0D

3
2L/910¢2 uopduasag 434

SNOILJO SONIAVS (9) d4LIN

Page 74



Budget Summary - By Service Grouping

Appendix 5

2015/16 | 2015/16 2016/17
Original | Projected Gross Gross Net
Budget Outturn Expenditure [Income Expendituref
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Council Controlled Budgets
10,163 9,256| Assistant Chief Executive 12,024 2,576 9,448
251,450 252,655] Children and Adults Service 472,982 225,822 247.160|
104,236 108,021] Neighbourhood Services 227,856 122,152 105,704
25,459 26,120 Regeneration and Development 67,445 42,188 25,257
15,855 17,033] Resources 73,341 57,059 16,282
4,501 3,902| Corporate Costis 4,399 164 4,235
5,690 2,380/ Contingencies 6,205 0 6,205
417,354 419,367 864,252 449,961 414,291
Non Council Controlled Budgets
0 0| Schools 335,857 333,705 2,152
0 0| Benefits 190,759 180,759 0
0 0 526,616 524,464 2,152
417,354 419,367 | NET COST OF SERVICES 1,390,868 974,425 416,443
-48,977 -48,977| Reversal of Capital Charges -55,478
38,530 45,773} Interest payable and similar charges 37,401
-1,641 -4,132| Interest and investment income -1,641
Levies
16,076 16,076] North East Combined Authority 15,439
415 415| Environment Agency - Flood Defence 415
64 64| MNorth East Inshore Fisheries Conservation Authority 64
421,821 428,586| NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 412,643
-54,809 -54,809| Business Rates - local share -54,841
-60,491 -60,491| Top up Grant -60,996
-100,240 -100,240| Revenue Support Grant -77,140
-500 -500( Estimated net Surplus on Collection Fund -2,617
-8,322 -8,323| New Homes Bonus -10,182
-377 -377] New Homes Bonus - re-imbursement -267
-4,998 -5,094| Section 31 Grant -4,267
-6,002 -5,975| Education Services Grant -5,407
-11,511 -16,230] Use of Earmarked Reserves -10,918
-437 -3,894| Use of Cash Limit Reserves =210
0 1,481| Use of General Reserve ] |
174,134 174,134| AMOUNT REQUIRED FROM COUNCIL TAX PAYERS 185,798

Page 75



Page 76



Budget Summary - 8y Expenditure and Income Type

Appendix 6

Original Budget |2015/16 Pro]ecledl Original Budget
2015H6 QOutturn Position 201617
£'000 £'000 £000
Employees 470,91 479,681 496,549
Premises 50,757 51,136 51,911
Transport 47,915 40,841 41,422
Supglies & Services 111,589 125,827 120,515
Agency & Contracted 307,725 307,245 309,529
Transfer Paymenls 204,317 202,826 208,831
Central Cosls 96,263 97,685 75,253
Direct Revenue Financing 0 125 0
Other 18,603 20,078 25,175
Capital Charges 48,977 48,977 55,478
Contingencies 5,690 2,380 6,205
GROSS EXPENDITURE 1,362,747 1,376,901 1,350,868
|income
- Specific Grants 580,428 571,943 584,069
- Other Grants & contributions 53,488 72,811 68,748
- Sales 5,966 6,484 8,881
- Fees & charges 104,473 99,678 106,341
- Rents 6,494 7126 8,787
- Recharges 186,789 189,790 190,682
- Other 7,755 9,702 6,917
Total Income 945,393 957,534 974,425
NET COST OF SERVICES 417,354 419,367 416,443
Capital charges -48,977 48,977 -55,478|
Interest and Investment income -1,641 -4,132 -1,641
Interest payable and similar charges 38,530 45773 37,40
Levies
North East Combined Authority 16,076 16,076 15,439
Environment Agency - Flood Defence 415 415 415!
North East Inshore Fisheries Conservation Authority 64 64 64|
Net Operating Expenditure 421,821 428,586 412,643
Less:
Use of Reserves:
Earmarked Reserves -11,51 -16,230 -10,918
Cash Limit -437] -3,894 <210
Ganeral 0| 1,481 0
Net Budgel Requirement 409,873 409,943| 401,515
Financed by:-
Business Rates - local share -54,809 -54,809 -54,841%
Top up Grant -60,491 -80,491 -60,996
Revenue Support Grant -100.240| -100,240 «77,140
Amount required from council tax payers -174,134 -174,134| -185,798
Estimated Net Surpius on Collection Fund -500) -600] -2,617
New Homes Bonus -8,322] -8,323 -10,182
New Homes Bonus - re-imbursement <377, =377 -267
Section 31 Grant -4,998 -5,094 -4, 267
Education Services Grant -6,002 -5,975 -5,407
Total Financing -409,873| -409,943| -401,515]

Page 77



Page 78



Appendix 7

Medium Term Financial Plan - MTFP (6) 2016/17 - 2018/19 Model

2016417 2017118 2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Government Funding

Government RSG Funding Reduction 23.210 21,140| 14,140| 14,240
Reduction in Public Health Grant 4,290 1,311 1,363 1,363
Reduction in Education Services Grant 595 1,000 1,000 1,000
Reduction in Benefit Admin Grant 200 400 400 400
Town and Parish Council RSG Adjustment -131 -190 -173 -90
Business Rates - RPlincrease (0.8%/1.5%/2%/2%) -438 -820 -1,110 -1,130
Top Up Grant - RPlincrease (0.8%/1.5%/2%/2%) -504 -930 -1,270 -1,300
Better Care Fund ¢ -2,400 -11,000 -9,700

Other Funding Sources
Council Tax Increase (1.99% per annum) -3,556 -3,675 -3,800 -3,900
Courcil Tax Adult Social Care Precept (2% increase) -3,574 -3,695 -3,820 -3,920
New Homes Bonus - Reduction from 2017/18 onwards -1,860 2,000 2,000 2,000
Council Tax/Business Rate Tax Base net increase -3,400 =750 0 0
Bus, Rates 2014/15 Collection Fund Surplus - Adjustment 500 0 0 0
NHS Funding - Social Care Translormation 4,432 0 0 0
Estimated Variance in Resource Base 10,900 13,391 2,270 -1,037
Pay inflation {1.5% - 1.5% - 1.5% - 1.5%) 3,300| 3,200 3,100 3,000
Price Inflation (1.5% - 1.5% - 1.5% - 1.5%) 2,500 2,400 2,300 2,200
Corporate Risk Contingency Budget -3,000 0 0 0

Base Budget Pressures
Employer Nat. insurance increase - State Pension changes 4,500 0 0 0
Costs Associated with National Living Wage 4,000 6.000' 6,000 6,600
Single Status implementation 4,537 0 0 0
Additional Employer Pension Contributions 900 5,000 1,000 1,000
Employee Increments 2,581 o 0 o
Energy Price Increases o 500 500 500
Concessionary Fares 0 100 100 100
Pension Fund Auto Enrolment 100 550 550 0
Climale Change Levy - Impact upon Landfill income 200 0 0 0
Apprentice Levy 0 1,200 0 0
Care Act Grant - Transferred into RSG 1,100 0 0 0
Local Lead Flood Grant - Transterred into RSG 47 0 0 0
CAS Demographic and Hyper Inflationary Pressures 1,000 2,500 1,500 1,500
Use of Earmarked Reserve in CAS 4,150 o 0 0
Prudential Borrowing fo fund new Capital Projects 0 2,000 2,000 2,000
TOTAL PRESSURES 25,915 23,450 17,050 16,900|
SUMRBEQUIRED TO BALANCE BUDGET 36,815 36,841 14,780 15,863
Savings Plans -28,286 -29,384 -1,851 -918
Savings to be Identified 0 0 -24,765 -14,945
Public Health Savings -4,290 o 0 0
Previous Years Shortfall ¢ 1,762 11,836 0
Utilisation of Collection Fund Surplus 2,617 2,617 0 0
Utilisation of Budget Support Reserve -1,622 -11,838 0 0
TOTAL SAVINGS REQUIRED -36,815 -36,841 -14,780| -15,863

Page 79



Page 80



OE6'SET'E OTL'ver'y Por'eEsy’e SaJ1Uad UMD a3y
- 192°9Z0°6 006°ST9'TT lelol S3y
- 00009 000°0v wawdinb3 Sujop 71U $3Y s34
- 000°0ET 000’0z eleq Sig S3y
- 000°SST . apeJg3dn pews s3y
- 000521 000'set juawade|day YIOMIBN SSI[AIIM 53y
- 000'S6T 000°S9T juswadeuspy 321AQ 3|IGON s3y
- 000'002 L2'S9 juawade|day ulydlims Ny anjuadeleq playuey S3y
S - 06.'€9 wawaneday Suiydims 2107 aljusdieleq piayuel S3Y
- 000551 956'007 wawadejdal 1amas SuoduQ s34
- - v25'0SY sapesSdn aABMODIN/UNJII) PUB Suoiie||eIsul 24q14 JIeq S3y
- 000'0STT 8r1'800'T uawdinb3 19) dopysaq Jo awade|day s3Y
c 000°00T - ‘21empJey pauoddns uou uo paseq SwalsAs 312)05q0 JO SUIAIYIIY S3y
- 000'0S¢ - apeJgdn J1amagd pjayue) S3y
- - 000°05 ainauyaly Julodaseys S3y
- - v68°EL Aemaleo Suiuies s3I
- 000‘08 ooo‘ozt FupjiomawoH s3y
- - 118'99 wBwWyYn4 e a1e10di0) s3Iy
- 000°0T 000'01 22ueldwio?) uonI3UU0) JO 2P0 s3y
- 192°9TZ'9 002'19L'8 weyJng jendig / pueqpeo.g $3y
- - 000'st wawdojaaaq pue suonedjddy s3y
- - 0S1'0LT W3ISAS UDIIEISIUIUPY PUNS UOISU3d EJIMD S3y
OT6'EVT OTE'LOE'E L6€'066'E leol 30V
- LOO'ETS S FOO0) Ul saNIe4 AjUnNwwo) DV
- 000‘9EE 122’60V s198png |ende) dvv DV
OT6'EVT £0€'v69 6€59LL s3uip|ing ANunwiwo) Ew) )
- 000v9L'T LE9'V08C pung pooyinoqudiaN Siaquiaiy PV
8uidnosp

61/8102 8T/L102 L1/9102 91/ST02 awayas aAlag

61/8102 01 91/5102 - swweiboid jeyded aLing [1ounod juno) weying

g xipuaddy

Page 81



000'0SS 787°08Y'T dv Asjuers 13N

- vTL'SEV'L £22'668'C |0J3u0) 31BYIR3T / SUONIBIS JBJSURL] DISEM 13N
- E8Y'056 r1'est uonesiwapol Aseigry / Aeiqr agaAy uoiman 13N
s 000'Z oTT'6L 2Ins1a7 pue Yods - SAWIYIS dvY 13N
- S /9% 88T SWIN3ASNA pue ainjinyd 1aN
- 962'S0E 086'69€ IUBUIIBIN 343UID BINS[R] 13N
€0v'0L 976'199 898°7vLT syJed pue seasy Aejd Joopaing 13N
TL6'EBL'S 8£9'920'19 t26'TYS'vE lelol a3y
5 08S'vE ZA A I¥4 {S)g1) Jouy a3
- ) 05626 ALDD a3y
) - GEE'STT'T s1opuJ0?) podsued) ay
¥91'692'C £9V'E26'3T 99’0186 lofe|y sues) a3y
) - 620'70T ST Msued) a3y
) 000'68L°C SOY'EET'E dn a3y
000°0S¢ EVSBYE 9E6'EVT (dds) touiy a3y
- 000'S€E £60'59¢ (v13d} Jouly a3y
- 000°0S¢ = 2LOM a3y
= LIT'SET'E OES'VTL U231 mauay a3y
S11'8T 165'0ZE'8 18€°L259 ajueudjulely |eanionais pasijelide) a3y
000'009 000'000°C 000°00S°T sawoH Jaideyd a3y
L18STT 0DO'EE v60'7L9 (H'3Q3} soury a3y
8v9'16V 0Er'095'T 129'£L68'T |emauay 3uisnoH a3y
052'760'Z 000°0Z5'E £T19°0ES'E dv4/94a a3y
8595°6¢C¢ 000°052 LS0'VSL weyeas }30Qq YUON a3y
- 000'SE S0E'S8T ajeSweysng a3y
0E8'09E 000051 . a1edise] a3y
0 ££8'099 St£'92 s19jjanel| AsdAg a3y
. L68'LTET £L0'99 UOIIEPOWIWIOITY 3P0 a3y
) 650ZY1 SE0'v9E uoIsIA 3jIse) pieuleg ai
000°000°T STE9LY'TT 00DE'09S §31e153 [elIsSnpu| a3y
Suidnoso

61/8107 8T/LT0Z LT/9102 91/ST0Z awayds ARG

Page 82



885'6VT'Y ELE'STT'ST TTZ'v6S'0ET LI9'PEL'TET
- 02S'TIvL v€2'296'TZ SE0Z89°0Y
i - - EVB'B6L $32IAIBS 3UNJ3S SV
- - 80959 89012 uoddns sjeapy (00Yy2s 3214 sY)
- - - 000°00T V43 AQ pa1aA0) 10N SHI0M [BUOIHPPY - d9Sd SV2
- - - L8¥'L09 UOIIBS|UIBPOIN [00YIS sYd
- - 000'8€T 098°'TEY SdueusUleW |eInl1dnns H50 SYD
- 85592y 1A RTA R A 7T9'e0L'6T pasN Jiseg Ju| |jexde) |ooyas 330 SYO
- - - 8RZ7ESY |e3ide) paAjoAaQ |00YDS SYd
- - 000'005 000°002 apeJ3dn sasiwald [oyodiy 1§ 8nag (3]
- - 000'zL 959'SE 19vQa Suluoissiwwo’ s3nig SYd
- - 000'v8L - YajeaH ngnd SY)
- - - 000’801 SP|O Je34 OM] 10§ UDISIADI4 Pasealdu) sy
- - - L10'Y aW3YIS dyV SV ')
- - - SEY'ES S3WOH SpjIyD o4 woddng sY)
- - 200'825'S YYO'OVT'ET 458 Svo
- - - S6T09 14d SYd
- T96'v1E 000°T0T TOZZET AZajens 301A95 g Bujuueld SYD
- - - 61109 $32IAIDS J3PINOLd O sY)
88561’y TL6'8UY'Y 89L'1Z2'SE T9E'E060V le3ol 1IN
- - - IrE16S j0dag weyduis|om 13N
- S = £80'8VE'L dueuajuiewy saspug shemysiH 13N
88S'6VT'Y 885680y LST'TTT'rE LT9'TET'ST aJueualutely sAemysiy 13N
- - - S80'6€ 532185 123417 - S2WAYIS gvY 13N
- - 96T'€9T St0°ZS9 au32s 133415 1IN
- - - 969°/8T wW)SAS YIB1| anl / walsAs Juswadeue 1e9)4 AN
= - q19'/8 - u01323||0) asnyay - [eude?) ainidnJiselyu| a1sep E[Y
- - S TLL'ELT'E wawade|day Jue|d pue aPRIysA 13N
- 086'88¢ 08BE’EVE 0v9°29L wa)sAS YD 13N
Buidnosg
61/810¢ 81/L102 L1/910Z 9T/ST02 awaYas 32AIRS

Page 83



Page 84



Page 85

000'SE9's 000°'5E9°S 0 |B10l QNG SY0
‘ymolb oydesbBowap jo seale u)
000'SES'S 000'SE9'S 0 seoe|d idnd [euoyippe Jo} S8omosal apiroid o) AjBuisealoul pue ajelsa jooyds Bunsixe ay) Jo LORIPUCD R i ST svo
100d 8U) S8SS8IPPE IPUNOD U} Jey} SINSua 0} pasn aq pjnoys pue siaqunu pdnd pajybiam pue 1endeD 310
uonIpuoo jpoyas Aq pauluuslep pue pajesole S| s,y o) 3¢g @y Aq pied uess [eydes jo juawale sy
000'001L°2 000‘c0L°2 0 lejol ¢ns 3OV
‘Juswsaau [eided o] uope|al Ul S1 000'PZ3 WINS SIL) JO "SIUBULISIAUL puB dyysieuped
000988 00095 0 syoslosd {8201 10} 000'00 13 10 Uoneace Buipun) [B10] B Sty Jyv YoeT "Seiunluwes [2ac] yim Ajjoanp uoRoY easy 30V
yeads o} eaueyo sy suopesiueblo aab pue 'sasiaas Uo Aes e aney o} aidoad mojle sdiysteuped ay |
'siiejje [2200] Ul 92I0A PUR 8310y Jejealb e weying Aunon u ejdoad aalfl 0} dn 195 uaaq aaey sdvy
“Jaquisw
yoea 1o} 00013 Jo uohedo|e endes e Buiaes| ‘endeo o] panajsuel) 24 O} UONBIO|E SNUSASI BU) 186png
000'v92' L 000'v9Z' L 0 10 0003 J0) apew Ajsnoiaeld uaaq sey Juswisnpe aseq y ‘000023 JO Jaquiaw Jad uohedoje [enuue pooyinoqyBian 30V
[e101 e Bulaea| winuue Jad 0OO'0L3 O LOBOO((E BNUSAB] B UYlIM Paydjewl osfe sem siUL "wnuue jad s1aquIap
[endes gpo'o L3 Jo uoneooje [ewbuo Ue pey Yoes SIaquiall pajaee 'seliunwiwod 1|8y} u) seguoud 2og)
ssalppe 0} Sy Uim diysiauped ul yiom 0} pue suoidweya Aunwiwos e $3j04 1Y) I|n} 0} JapIo u)
3 3 3
Y101 8LLL0T LHOLOT ANNOHODAIVE JWIHIS FJIAH3S

6 xipuaddy

swweiboid jended 41N 81/2102 - L1/9L0Z @Y} O} SUOIPPY |1ouno) fjuno) weyng




"'00S'€S.2' 13 S1 UaIym suLn(oa gzg' | edeidas o) pasinbal aoueeq
8y} 10} S| PIq 8Y) ‘al0jaIaY | "000'6SES S! B1/2102 Ul 18Bpnq [epded 4.7 Bunyby| jeans parewnsa ayl
o o ‘wnuue Jad 00S'2L1L'e3 wswaseday uwnjo)
000 ¥SL'} 000'vSL'H 10 1502 |E10} E JE yoroidde paseq ysii © uo pyemio} Buiob wnuue tad suwnjoo Gzg'L jo uawadeda) BunyBi 199ns 13N
ay) a|qeus o) 106pnqg endes 417 Bunybi| 19a1)s ay) uswsaddns o) pasu Buissasd e s a1ey |
‘siedh Op JO Bl souas
JiaYy) pasoxa AUauno 010 01 Yyoiym jo suwnjos Buguby y9ans 225'29 Jo AojusAul e SeY ||Junos eyt
‘siseq Jeinbas e uo HMOW 01 WBnoaq ag [m sewsyods asay) uo suoda) sseiboid
"Z1/9102 Se |8A8) awes ay} je 1abpng ay) surejuiew g1//10Z 10} PIg 8y L
000'050'L 000'050°1 / uonuaAald pooj4 EL
"$yuRqQLaAL pue (Sasinoosalem ‘spaaing ‘abeurzip Aemybiy) siesse abeulelsp jo
fojusau Jueayubis e sey |1punos ay ) ‘sbueys sjew o yum asesloul o) pajoipald s| sjusaa Buipooy jo
Auaaas pue Aouanbayy ay) ‘siead Juadal Ul sjuasa Buipooyy sidiynw woJy pasayns sey weying Ajuncd
sAemybiy pajdopeun Guiespess
j0 sseooud sy) enuuoo o) pajsanbal s QOO‘000' L3 JO JUNOWE [BUOIIPPE UY ‘plepue)s s|qeldope SoUBLS
000000 000'000't 0 ) dn AemyBuy paidodpeun Buug o) 21/91.02 PUB 91/5102 t panoidde ussq Aisnomerd sey Bupun | (P u..““__w_nmc ol e
‘(o180 sBupiew 'sqiay ‘saynb) sjesse pajeroosse Jayjo yum Jayeboy
Aemjoo} pajdopeun Jo wyzoz pue Aemabelsed pajdopeun Jo unjgy SUMO 19UN0) Aunod weying
‘1aBpnq Ny J8Wo} au} j0 uoneoole-a) ey sajelodiooul osie piq siyL
*SWISY [l Ul JUB)SU0D
- S 186pnq asueusjuiew Aemybiy pajdope DOQ PUB 417 PaUIqIOD Byl UlejuIBW [[iM SIY ] "UORBYU) 0} asueuIUIEW
000'000'S 000°000°s . MOJIE O} PUE 81/ 102 Ul 000'62E3 JO 186PNG 117 U} Ul jjey patoadxa ay) 1o} ejesuadwod 0) 000'052'v3 |  AemyBiy pardopy 13N
o} 000'05.3 Aq peydn usaq sey piq 81/ 102 UL "000°00G'E3 S! L1/910¢ 40} piq pancidde ay L
*8321N0Sa) UMO JIay} wouy Buipuny reuonippe apiaoid o) pajoadxa ale S)PUN0Y) "UoHIPUoD ajeldoidde
ue U yromiau Aemybiy paidope au uieiujew 0} IPUN0S) ayy) Joj Juaioyns Jou 1 Buipund wels 417 1id
uels)
asueuajuiely AemybiH
paydopy - (d.11) 2
000'295°0L 000'£95'01 0 N
‘uorpuco sjes e ul Aemybiy pajdope syl ulejuew oy Ajjiqisucdsal ue|d podsuel] |eaoT W
Aojnjels Jiayl yim sanuoyne jeool woddns o) papiaoad st juesb ay) “podsuer] Jo) juswpedsq - {3q) vodsues o
a1 woiy Buipuny uelt fepdes jenuue s) Bupung Juesrsy esueusjuely Aemybiy pardopy J17 84yl loj uawpedaq
V101 gL/2102 11/9102 ANNOHOYIOVE INIHIS JIIAHIS




000'689'2

000'689'2

‘gaAneniul [euoibal spiemo) Aluoyiny pauiquion ay) Aq paulelal aq [im UCHBIO|E 8y) Jo
0000013 ‘UOIIPPE U] "DDd PUE AUoyNY PBUIGUIOD 84} Y)0q JOj UOREJO|E F.1] 19811p 8y} UJ UoyoNpal
© 0] pa| Ajuenbasqns sey yoaium ‘pung ymole) a1Buig ay) o} pajeodo|ie uaaq sey siy) jo uojod
€ yo0jg Jodsuel] payesBaju| aus Joj 196png jeuoneu |lB1BA0 BU) pasessoul Sey 11a 8yl ybnoyyy
"SUONES0]|E SANEIIPUI | )] UlM BUY U] SBROUINE [EDC| 8y} O} 8InquisIp o) Ajuoyiny
pauiquon ay o} uaAIb ag M Juawae Lodsues | payesBisjul sy} spremuo 910g/S Log Wold4 “Buipuny
aoueusjuleyy pue podsuel] patesBaiu - 1 aui woly suoyesoje %o0]q Bupun) om) slem a1eyl "L 102
Ul PASNPOIU] SEM UB|d ModsuBl | (2007 PJIYL 8y - Sjuawanoidw) podsues) - ueld podsued | 8207

wodsuei]

pajeiBaju - (d17)
UE|d Modsues] [eooT]

BpPage 87

000‘028°12

000° L8502

000'682°L

1ejol qns [3IN

000'62€

000°0S1

000'622

‘paeidwiod aq ueos sBuipjing pannbas sy} Joj Jno Jy paanbai sy} Tey] 2NSUR ||IM JuawisaAu] [elded au )
‘apmAJunod pue A auy] Ul Saoeds Jaylo Jo asn auy) SZIWIXELWL ©] S Uo/juajul 8y) Swnueaw au)
ur Inq ‘aoeds juauewiad B SPIEMO] %I0M 0] S UCHUSIUI By} pue paulela) uaaq sey Jabpng BuiweiGoid
ay) ‘1anamoH soeds A1g||gD) Py 8u} JO $SO| aU) Ul )nsal osie |Iim Buiing wnasny [1Q 8w woly Buinopy
‘goe|d a)e] J|IMm UOoNo@||02 BU) U0 UDJeasal PUB YIOM a1ed [e1dads ay) ajaym
“JoowAuusds ‘syuaaas aq ||Im ueoj Jo Ae|dsip uo Jou SI )| USYM LIOIII3)|00 BU) JO uoledD| 8seq ay L
‘SUOHIAIYXD BSIY} punoIe pauielsl
aq [m seanes Uoddns uoneoNpT "PUBLLISP UO BIBHEAE aq |[IM S|EpaW |Iy "uBo| [epiut iy Auedwoooe
OS|E ||IM UOHD8}|09 [EPSW 8y "sauojs ay) Moddns o} suopiquxe Areiodwa) [enuue Jo salies e Bujpnjoul
Ansianuny weying Yy diysiauped u) Aleiqr] uasis) ade(ed Je UOHIGIYXS [BlUl ek BAl) B UM
uiBaq m ssaooud siy] “siayio uim diyssauped u Buppom uoioB[Iod 8uY) JO UORISS Ja| WS & Ae|dsip
0} st {(LOND8||00 B} UMO OUM) Saslsni] |1Q 8u} jo boddns Iy Yim paynuapl UoHN|os 8] "UOND8||0d
INa eyl Buikeidsip pue Joy Buues vy siseo aanpai o) Bulaes (9) J4 LW U} Hoddns (M JUSWISBAUI SiYL

Kiajen wy Aup
weysng %@ uonafoD
Jo uoneaojay |1a

13N

000'025

000'092

000092

‘sa)Is 958y} souByUS JO 8jeeld 0} ' Buipunj yojew Jo esn auyy Buipnjou ‘padojanap eq o} sI ABajels
Buipuny v “Aejd paxi} Jo JaHO WNUIIUILL BU)) SABY 10U Op Yd|Uym SjuaLus(ies Jo JaqLunu e paljpuapl
sey siy} ‘seus Aeld paxy Jo uonquisip Jiej su) 4oy pomawely e Buidojaasp useq sey |1Dunod syl

sa)s Aeld paxid

13N

000°009°L

000008

000'008

*SHIOM B} O} SUOIINGUILOD
Jadojaasp esiwpxelw 0) g3y yim siuawdojaasp Bujwooyuo) puncle pauueld aq |im SH1om sy
-BuisnoH % JuswdojaAsq 21wou0a] s,a34 Yim uogounfuoo ul padojaasp usaq sey awweiboid syt

‘gj@bpng
Bunsixe wouy paujEluleWw aq 0} aNUKUOI |||m S|ENSlew piepuels alinbal yey) seasy s1abpng Bunsixa
woJ) papun) aq JOUUED Jey) sjeuajew uoiesipoads ybiy sanbal yeu; sease abysald (e ase saweyas ayl

ytedfe|D -
Asjreg yINos '8 Yuon -
abpud 18A13 PIO -
peoY YUON -
:Buipnjoul uopuod Jood Ul s1 Jey) ealy
ucneAtasuon snuad Ao weyng Jo wieas ojqnd au ysiqinjel o} swwelbosd sead ¢ e Joj s pIq SIYL

109014 Juawiysiqinjsy
Ealy UOJIEAISSUOD
aljuan Ays weying

13N

IvLOL

81/2102

L9108

ANNOHODAHIVE

INIHIS

JIIAHAS




‘sBuissolo peol pasiel
mau g Buiwioy pue Buined Suiedas ‘Aemyubly jo suonoas Buiseunsas pue Buuredal spnjoul SHIOM

SHIOA JUBWIBOURYUT
000052 000'052 0 ‘afisen puepony pue askld 1aysew aw usamiaq Buissolo peol ajes e spiacid o) pue peoy weuing s081d 1944B 1 a3y
WioJj 89E)4 19xJepy ay) 0} 8oUENUS By} uo wieal oliqnd ay) o} sjuawsacidw exew o) psau e siaseyl | _ puepjony doysig
‘80E|d 19%JE 8y} ul adeds By} asn pue ssaodke Ajajes UED Sa3|21yaA pue sueplsapad yjoq jey) ainsua
0] paau B S| elayl ‘uonoee sy} Bumsia wnuue Jad siousiA 000'002 84 I e1ey) jey) pajedidjue
s1 )1 "uonoese abejuay ay) dojaaap 0y eoe|d Ul slUasuod Buluueld aney mou 1Snd| BISED puepIny
‘sjuswidojaAep JUSJE|PE WOoJ SUOHNGUIUOD G0 L UOHIBS pue spun) Jodsuen
reuciBas Guipnjoul Buipuny Yolew Ul Jaaa) pnoa uoijeso)e siy ), ‘w3 jo uoibal ay) u) 8q pinoo s1s02
000052 000'052 0 [E10} S1S02 [E]0) PABWIST “1BSM [8AlH BU) $5010e 2A0idu 0} suoido Buipnjoul Bele ay) Ul SJUSLIBAOW sjuawanoidwi a3y
Bujioko pue uemsapad o} sjuawsaoidul Jo UONONISUOD pue ubissp auy o) @ingUIUCD o) pasnbas si  |OPISISAIH Aug weying
uoenofe [eudes v “salis atwdojaaap asnoH arebungy pue yorey suewaald{ puncje pue uaamjaq
JUBLWILOAAUS BU) 0] Sjuawaroidu Juadelpe pue sabeyu|| S5a%0E [eljuassa juawsjdw) o} sfesodold
‘uanoaroud qol pue uoyesis qof yioq uodn
. \ , wawdoj@aag
000'00S 000'00Y 000'001 SNO0J J28[0 B YlM Jusiwidojaaap o1uou0da pue uchessuabal poddns oy Aloud do) sjiounos sy yim au| a3y
U Ajes|o s1 juswisaall siy sesudiajus 8zZis WN|PaW PUe |[BwsS Jo Juswdojoasp 8y) 8slajueoU] pue ssaulsng
woddns o} spun ssauisng Jojeqnoul Jo Juswdojaasp ay) ajqeus o} jabpnq [endes e sjqejieae ayew o),
-asiosexe Hunsoo e 0} pea) [m yoiym Aeasuspun s (zdv0Q) swuwesbo.d
000'005'2 000'052'L 000'0Sg'L | Seus oibajens ay) Jo UCHESI|IN U0 Y0M JBUUNY 8w SIY) JY ‘PaIONPUL0D Uaaq SBY YO JO MalAS) B pul uoyEpOLILIOIDY a3y
Ul It yum pue slesa 1ounod Bunsixe ey Buisiw)xew uo pajeaipaid si S|y ) ‘uolesinn soeds asoiduw 82140
pUE UOIIEPOLULIODIE 82110 JO uoes|[euoies Jayuny sselbold o) s1 2dvO Jo seanasiqo Asy ay Jo aup
‘Juswidojaaap 10} plemioy IBnolq aq o} als aul moje o} sjualaaoldun
[BluBLIUOIIALS puB SHom AemyuBiy e ‘Bunybl 'yiedioo) Buipniow syiom uolesedaid aps axeMapun
. . pUE S]S02 pPejeJosse Us)|qe)se ‘[apow bms__m.__o ' amoold pue Ajusp) M uoneso|e endes ay T e e
000'05¢ 000'0se 0 jueg 20104 SPRoM Aok a3y
WolY PUE SN auyl ‘siezepy uuy Bununoaae sy pajorIpe AQlusda) SBL pUe 80J8WW0Y) O Jaqueyd 108l0.d SpeaH Aepiiy
1583 YylUoN ay) se yons suopesiuebio poddns sssuisng ‘s10)a8s Jiualos pue [euoissajold jo abues
B Ul 88sS8UISNg OF J9A0 0} awoy e Guipiaoid ‘uoneso) JuswAhojdwe pue ssauisng [NJsseons e Ajualino
s| apis sy Jualfojdwa pue ssauisng 1o} eale a|qedojeasp J0 eyg'g punole sey speai Aspiiy 0
TO
o o ‘s1apa0 Mojes and pue 1oy sapyenb3 aw se yons uone|sibsy jueasial Japun aoueuajule S
000 000's 0000005 0 suoneBqo 19aw o} pue oyouod Auadoid sjcoyas-uou s|ipuncs au} jo asueusjuiew Sopjoeq ey} sonpal | pasiendes [eanjonns i
0} suojyejdepe pue suopelaye “jom pauueld jo swwelbosd Buinuguoy - aoueuajuiel pasieided
L ATe]E 8112102 L1/910T aNNOYOXOVYE

JINIHOS

JJIAHIS




Page 89

000'008°L

000'008°L

‘paanba) Buipun) pajewnisa ayj jo asugjeq ay) s
1senbai |y} pue yiom Juswdojeasp SoUBWIWOD 0} £ L0g/9102 10} panoidde sem 000'0023 JO Lonedoje
uy "sanss; uonnjiod se pue uoysabuod Buyixe ssaippe 0} Buidiay 1siym Base Jepim eu) Jo jusidojeasp

panUUOT BUI Y)IM ISISSE [[IM Yulj 8U) JO uonesld 8y “esse |IEja! a|iaucbelg pue aue uobelq
u0 uoNsabuOD aAsIlal 0} PEOJ YUl B 81812 0} J(| Ueld Wweyinq ay} ul paynusapl uasq sey 1oslosd siyy

peod yun
e}y peoy uinqiays

a3y

000'00G

000052

000‘052

‘WSvZ 13 0} dn Buipuny aainbal pjnom {Ueo| WnwWXew auy) upm) pauoddns
J1 yalym sawoy gg Jo 1s) Buiem e s) aiay) siyl puohaq pue papiuwiod Ainy s118Bpng 9102/5102 AYL

‘ponad Jeah g B 1oA0 PajoAoal aq [IM 9L0Z/SLOZ WOl SUED ‘aauapisal fediound nauy) se esn o)
Buiseysind asoy; pue spiojpur| Jojoas sjeaud Uioq 10y asn ojul yjorq Auedoad sojoes ejeand Aidwa wus)
Buoj ap Buuq o} suredas Jo sluswaaoidwi §o 1509 au) 1aaw diay o) ajqe|ieAe st ueo| sawoH Aldw3 ay |,

suBoT sawoy Ajdwg

asd

000'002

000°002

‘pJEpUR)S SOLWOH Juada( auy) 1@aw o} JapJo Ul pasaiyoe s) Buisnoy
Joj pJEPUE]S Winwiuiw Alojme)s juaind sy} Buunsua pue 3o0)s Buisnoy Jojoas ajeaud UM (SHSHH)
wayshs Buey Ajajes pue uyeaH BuisnoH au) Japun sprezeH | Aobajed jo aous)sixa ay) Bupoe |

(dvd) Aoyod
aosue)s|ssy [efoueu)d

a3d

000'046'2

000'046'2

“g1uoy e Jabuoj an)| 0}
syua|;o Bujigeus pue asuapuadapul Buiseaou) ul 8|0l Asy e shejd i se souepodw yueapubis jo st wesd
8y} 10) Woddng "9,g'G1 | JBAO PUB GB 9SOL} JOJ PUB %P’ LL JOAO PUB G/ '%68°61 19A0 PUR G9 ‘a1e 9208
puUE 00z Usamjaq pajoadxa sasealoul ay] “18A0 pue Gg pabe asou) Joj weying Auno) uiyim ajyoid
vonendod BuisBe ue paynuap! £102-0102 8|doad s8p|Q 1o} ABajens Buuoissiuwog juor ayy ‘dnoib
abk (g JaA0 aU) 0] papieme ale sjuesb 1souw Jey) ssiape seanby Juaung Ajuapuadapul aa) 0} saLUoy
UMO JI8U} UIYNIM UIewas 0} sjuslp ajqeus sucieldepy ‘weying Aunog ssosoe sdnoll juslo ajqesauina
1sow sy o) poddns jueoyiubis sepiacid yagm Jueib Aojepuew B s1UBIE sallped pajgesia

5790 - uen
sanjioed psigesia

a3y

V101

8L/LL0C

2119102

GNNOHONOVE

IWIHOS

HIIAHIS




000°60b'8L

000'608‘9L

000'009'L

ejol qns d3d

000'00S°}

ILOL

000°005'L

81/L102

‘sumo ) Ajunon
ay) ssosoe spsloid uonessuabal fenpiaipul Joy Buipuny spiacad pue isawalos (g syuawaaoidun
wiea: onqgnd jo abues e aalsp 0} anupuod | swwesboid anuan umoL mau eyl "Aunod au} SSoIoB
swayos |g.1 au 0} Moddns apiroid o} senuluod osje awweiboid ay) ‘s,|g1 pue sjuswasoidun wiess
aiqnd yBnosyy Aug weysn( u) peoy yuop alesauabal djay o) s) swweibold juaiuna suy uiypm yosfoid
MBU Y "8lIUD7y UMOo ] 1esuc) ) wieal oignd aly o) sjuswaaoidun pue weyeas u) jJ9aig Aemiiey pue
aje)s3 [euisnpu| seg yuop e ewwelBord uoysinbor au) Joj pwoddns ‘spise) puepony je suonoesye
ay) Jo Buiuado auy Bumol|o} puepjony doysig o} siolsiA jo asealoul pajradxe ayy Joy Adedes apinoad
o} eyefipuog yuoN e Bunjied Jeo [euoyippe Jo Asaalep ayy Buipoddns si ewwelbosd ayy ‘Jenoed
u| ‘suejdisjsepy uonelauabay g1 ey} ul payyuep) siasloid ey Woddns o) paysige)sa uaaq sey
swweibosd senuan umo ) panoidde yuaino ayAousby asudiaiug weying yinosg ay; ypm Buippng
|ooyog sewep Buiy ey) se [jam SE YOH eyl Uim A1ao0 weyeas je sjuswabueue diysisuped pue
ssjia194 Ul 21B1ST [BMISNPU| 1SBT UUON Je suonisinbae -§°e juswidojaasp Joj piesuo) Wbinoig aq o} selis
8|qeus o) yoddns papiroid osfe sey 1ebpnq ay] "semunuoddo yuawdojdws pue sassauisng mau ajealo
pue uoddns o} (NS'Z3 10 SS80xXa Ul) Jualwsaaut Jojoas ajeaud ueoyubis ul paseas| sey swweiford
anuan umo| ay] seidedoud jiejel 0L L JeAo asn o yoeq ubnoiq o paysiqingel SeY Yoiym eLLsds
191 ou Jo suua) w Ajunoo sy ssoloe sesseuisng o} yoddns pepiaoid osie sey 186png ay] ‘weueas
pue 'Asjuels ‘NesuU0s ‘adE|d 19NIBW puepiany doysig ul wiess aqnd ay) jo [emaual 3y) PIPNIOUI sABY
SHIOM BS8L | ‘SUMO] 8} Jo Jaquinu e w sjoalod uolesaualial Aay pue swayos (1.1 ) Juswaaoiduw)
sBuippng payabie ) spmAjunos e ‘wiea: oygqnd sy} o} sjualuaaoidw uo sanual) umo] s Aunc) ey
§S0J0E Juads uaaq sey 196pnq sasuag umo) 8yl Jo NB3 'S L02/y L0Z O} | L0Z/010Z poued auy) Buling
‘suejdis)sely 24U UMO] Ul paljiiuap) saljuold JaAIlSR 0) JUSLUISOAU| PBNUUCD

sajlolg uejdieisep
aquan umo)

a3d

Page 90

A1/9102

ANNOHDNOVE

JW3HOS

JJIAH3AS




Page 91

00006 000'06 0 sjuatwasnbas aoueldwos Jo} 128|100 0} paanbal ase Juswaoeidey BuiBbo| s3y
am jey) ejep BuibBo) ey jo Asopsodal [euBd B s1 sy "aouedwod Alunoep Joj Juswannbal Aiojne)s :
® 51 S)YL "sJeak aaiy) 10) pasuad)| sem J1 Jybnog em uaym 1eyy uoynjos BuiBo e sey jlounod ey
000001 000'001 0 "Sy9em pue SAEp JoU PUB SINOY Ul BUOP a7 O} SIL) MOJIE |)1% eyt uolnjos e aseyand uopnjos Buuuess s34
1w [1ounoo ay “sdojdeysod 8y} Se ([9m SB 1Y 3I0MIauU pue S1IaAIBS JNO UEJS O SAep aye) ueo )i pue Anliqessuinp
yiom siy) op 0) painbiyuoo s; jey) dojde) auQ yJomiau aanua sy} ueos Allligeiauna o} aajesadul sty
'sIead gl 1xau 8y} Jaao safiueyd uonepoLwWwILLIndd. wesBoad
000'000°'1L 000'000°L o 2210 1o} sueid o} paxul| ‘saibojouyoa) Buibiawa Bu|syun ‘eo1opjiom s jouno) auy) 1) Bupiom d eido s34
10 sAem mau spiemo) sebueyd ajesajaaoe pue ajowo.d o) sueld uoyse pue saibisjens Buysixe yul Opisap JuslIsIB|CaY
o} Ayunitoddo aty) Sey mou |ISUNCY By} ‘pasifes) aq O] S| UONBULIO)SURI] BIAIBS 1X8JU0 SIY) UIYlIM ‘)]
000'LE8 000'LE8 0 -80B(C}JOM PUE S0I0PLIOM SqIX8]) BI0W E 8}EaID 0) SUoRoE AUE pulyeq aAneladw) ay) sieak o) xeu | PHELOIC waloid s3y
ay} Jan0 saBUBYD UOIEPOWIIOIOE aoo 10) suiyd o} paxuy ‘seiBojouyas) BuiBiaws Buisiin ‘aoiopjiom | LUOHEROLILIGIY
s,|Iounog ay} 1o} Bunitom Jo sAem mau spiemo} sabueyo ejelaleode pue sjowold (1M JuBLISaAUI SIY |
WILIOL 8L/L102 L1/9102 ANNOHOHAVE JWIHOS FOIAH3S




002'8er'LS

002Z‘6vS'8y

000°688'2

Iv.ilOol

goz'var'e

ooz'vzr'e

o

lejol qng §3H

000CIE

ooo'cle

"1ebpnq enuaass
JUSLIND YUM UIBLWSI UEeD ING N 2Y} JO @0us)|isal pue A)oedes 8109 sy} aseausul |Iim Uaiym sjqissod
s1 ubisep mau e Juausaau) [erden yim jey) ueaw sainjondis Bunpd yoeesuado vl sebueyd Juadal
PUE J8)JBeW SUOHEJIUNWILODS| ] au) uiuim uoisiaoid aiqyy jo saoud sy weaob WOD40 'sadimes
auiuo mau pue Buysixa Jo ymolb ay) poddns o} ajqe aq o] Juawysaau) [elded sainbas Ny suL
‘pas|in Apeaib aiow are Bupjiom 8joWwal pue SaAI8S PNOJD
se Ajlenunuos moJB o) 195 SI S8IAI8S S8} UO aoUEIja) 8L} SMOUS SISAIBUY "NYAM SU) 1aA0 papiaold
mou aie swiajshs 19) e '‘Buneys ajl4 ‘ssa0y Jauslu| ‘swalsAS soukul {IBLWT ‘S8oiAIES aluadeleq
‘Auoydaja) se yons pouad sy} JoAG 19UNOD 8y} Joj saoluas auljuo jo moab Juediubls pajqeus sey )|
"gjelse o) ssosoe
uoisinoud aaialas | ) Buqeus (sabueyoxa ‘sBuippng) sapou | S198UU0IBIUI YIOMIEN BBJY SPIM UL
“joM)aU JuBIisal Ajleived Uipmpueq © | e se paubiisap sem ) ‘siead  )1se| ay) Joj Alljeuoysuny palinbal
8U) papasaxa UEL)} aIoW pue | 10g Ul payioads sem (NY MPHOMIBN BalY 8pIM 9407 5,10Un0D ay L

Buyjispoway
pue apesbdn
Anoeded (NvM)
NIomiaN ealy apip

S34

000'0tE

000'0ce

‘P|0 SJeak G UBY) SSO| 248 YoIyM SjusLus(e asoy} ujelal pue abelols
auna ay) Jo sped Jead g sy} 8A0LWSBI UBY) SIU) OJUD SWBISAS (2D asol ‘piayue ] o) abeiols mau
aseyaind o} papuajul apA "Rl sieah g aq uoos |m wiopeld abelols Jwaund ey) jo sped jeuiBuo ay L

anuaselep
Piayue] Jo}
wiopie|d abeliols maN

S3H

000'001

000°001

"|IounoD ayl uiyim swuslsAs ajelodiod e Joj asempiey
10 Ulew ey} S1 pue Aueiiem UiLulm pue ajep o} dn ale s1oA18s 8y} JBU) S8INSUB Sy L ‘[emaual jo
swweBoid Buyjol e uo arempley Jealas sy saoedas yoiym pig Juawaoeldal Janas BujoBuo auy st siyL

juswaaejday Jansog

00g°199

002’199

awasejdal annbai pue eyl swouoa JBY) jJo pua 8y Buuesu

ale swasis Aoy asey) ay) Jo |y -dnyoeq e se DyyD sannbal pue ‘(sabues sy Jo spus sy} 1e Alpiuny)

SUONIPUOD JBYEam urelad ul uonesedo ueuiew jouued (Buljoon-003) weisAs Buyood Arewnd Juaund

ay | ‘pejooo Ajlenunuos aq jsnw swool seindwod ay | - Dyyo "uoissaiddng ang pue ' (Sdn) Aiddng
1amod slqeidniuajuiun ‘(owdo)Buiuonpuod aiy wooy seindwo) sy ‘swasAs Asy aaiy) o) payu)|

s1 SILL "[1I9UN0D) 8y} JO aInjonuselul sy Woddns Aay) Jey) ainNsud 0} JuawsaAUl a1INbas saJjusselep ay |

ysaljay anuaaejeq

IVLOL

8L/LL0C

L1/9102

aNNOYONIVE

AWIHIS

3JIAHIS




Appendix 10

Durham County Council Pay Policy Statement 2016/17

1 Introduction

This policy outlines the key principles of Durham County Council’'s (DCC) pay
policy for 2016/17 aimed at supporting the recruitment and remuneration of
the workforce in a fair and transparent way. The policy complies with
Govemment Guidance issued under the Localism Act 2011 and includes
commentary upon:

» The approach towards the remuneration of Chief Officers.
e The remuneration of the lowest paid employees.

e The relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and the
remuneration of its employees who are not Chief Officers.

The Local Government Transparency Code, published in February 2015 by
the Government also sets out key principles for local authorities in creating
greater transparency through the publication of public data. As part of the
code, the Government recommends that local authorities should publish
details of senior employee salaries. This pay policy forms part of the Council’s
response to transparency of senior pay through the publication of a list of job
titles and remuneration.

Durham County Council is mindful of its obligations under the Equality Act
2010 and is an equal opportunity employer. The overall aim of our Single
Equality Scheme is to ensure that people are treated fairly and with respect.
The scheme also contains a specific objective to be a diverse organisation
which includes recruiting and retaining a diverse workforce and promoting
equality and diversity through working practices. This pay policy forms part of
our policies to promote equality in pay practices. By ensuring transparency of
senior pay and the relationship with pay of other employees, it will help ensure
a fair approach which meets our equality objectives.

In setting the pay policy arrangements for the workforce the Council seeks to
pay competitive salaries within the constraints of a public sector organisation.

As a result of Local Government Review in the County, the significant
opportunity existed to bring together the pay and conditions arrangements of
the eight previous authorities into one cohesive pay policy for the new
organisation. In response, Durham County Council’'s approach towards the
workforce pay and conditions of employment were fundamentally reviewed
and a new pay structure and revised conditions of employment for the majority
of the workforce was agreed during 2012, in order to ensure that the council
is able to operate as a modem, fit for purpose and streamlined organisation.

Page 93



Page 94

Posts defined within the Act as Chief Officers

The policy in relation to Chief Officers relates to the posts of Chief Executive,
Assistant Chief Executive, four Corporate Directors, Director of Public Health
and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services (who undertakes the
Monitoring Officer Role for the Authority).

Governance Arrangements

The Chief Officer Appointments Committee is defined within the Council’'s
Constitution as performing the functions under section 112 of the Local
Government Act 1972 in relation to these officers. This includes the setting of
the pay arrangements for these posts and in doing so the Committee takes
into account:

+ The prevailing market in which the organisation operates.
e The short and long term objectives of the Council.

e The Council's senior structure, financial situation and foreseeable future
changes to these.

¢ The expectations of the community and stakeholders.
¢ The total remuneration package.

e The links with how the wider workforce is remunerated and national
negotiating frameworks.

¢ The cost of the policy over the short, medium and long term.

The Committee also has access to appropriate external independent expert
advice on the subject where required.

Key Principles

o The Chief Officer Pay policy is designed to be easily understood and to be
transparent to the post holders and key stakeholders. The structure and
level of the pay arrangements will enable the Council to attract, motivate
and retain key senior talent for the authority.

e The policy is based upon spot salaries with clear differentials between
levels of work/job size, within a range that is affordable now, will remain
so for the medium term, and will be subject to review to ensure it
continues to remain fit for purpose. In the first instance it is intended that
the Authority will market test the rates of pay when vacancies arise, as
part of consideration on whether or not roles continue to be required
within the context of the Council’s priorities and commitments at that time.

s A competency based performance management framework is established
within the organisation linked to individual job descriptions, person



specifications, with performance reviewed annually. This ensures that the
individual standards of achievement are met and clearly linked to the
achievement of the council’s objectives and priorities, and the authority's
expectations are delivered by post holders within these roles.

e These posts do not attract performance related pay, bonuses or any other
additions to basic salary. This approach enables the council to assess
and budget accurately in advance for the total senior pay bill over a
number of years.

« The Council is currently the sixth largest single tier authority in the
Country and in setting the pay policy for this group, a market position has
been established that aims to attract and retain the best talent available at
a senior level within a national recruitment context, to lead and motivate
the council's workforce that is rewarded under a nationally agreed
negotiating framework.

¢ Roles at this level have all been subject to an externally ratified job
evaluation scheme that is transparent and auditable to ensure equality
proofing of pay levels.

e QOther terms and conditions of employment for this group are as defined
within the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local
Authorities Conditions of Service handbook, with discretion to set actual
pay levels at a local level, but within a national negotiating framework.
These posts are part of the nationally defined Local Government final
salary pension scheme.

Pay Levels

Individual elements of the remuneration package are established as follows at
the point of recruitment into the posts:

Spot Salary Additional
il Variable Pay

£ £
Chief Executive 185,000 0
Assistant Chief Executive 120,000 0
Corporate Directors 140,000 0
Director of Public Health 103,848 0
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 110,000 0

In addition to Chief Officers there are a range of senior roles identified as
Heads of Service that are evaluated using the same principles and scheme as
the Chief Officers and these roles are remunerated at three levels based on
job size, these being; £110,000, 96,900 and £75,500

Page 95



Page 96

The Corporate Management Team and Heads of Service pay levels were
actually assessed in 2008 in preparation for the new authority by external
assessors and the levels over £100,000 have not been increased since that
time. Heads of Service on less than £100,000 were given a 1% increase
similar to other NJC for Local Government Services employees. Following the
retirement of the previous Chief Executive, the salary of this post was
reviewed and set at £185,000.

This Council has agreed a salary structure for its senior posts and agrees that
appointment to any vacancies on this structure at the salaries referred to in
this statement are permitted. The creation of any new posts paying over
£100,000 should however be presented to Council for approval.

The designated Returning Officer for the Council, who is the Head of Legal
and Democratic Services, also carries out the role of Acting Retuming Officer
in Parliamentary and European elections and other national referenda or
electoral processes. These additional roles usually carry an entitlement to
payment from central government at levels set by order in relation to each
national poll and according to scale of fees agreed by the Council in relation to
Local Elections.

Set out in Annex 1 is a scale of fees for the conduct of the County Council and
Parish elections. The fees are based on the principle that the Returning
Officer and nominated deputies will be remunerated in view of personal
responsibilities, but at a rate below that of national elections. National rates
are given for other posts such as Presiding Officers, Poll Clerks, Count Staff
and postal vote sessions to ensure sufficient interest is maintained in
undertaking these roles.

The Authority’s Policy on the Remuneration of its Lowest Paid Workers
Definition of Lowest Paid Workers

In order to promote equity, former manual worker grades in the authority have
been incorporated into the national framework, as outlined in the National
Joint Council for Local Government Services “Agreements on Pay and
Conditions of Service”.

This ensures that the lowest paid workers and the wider workforce share
equitable terms and conditions and access to pay and condition arrangements
that are set within a nationat negotiating framework.

This approach ensures fairness, provides market rates in the region for jobs,
graded by job size, but with a reference also to the national local government
family.

Following the implementation in 1 January 2015 of the ‘Durham Living Wage’
the lowest paid workers from 1 April 2016 will receive the minimum of Spinal

Column Point 10 (£7.89 per hour) for all Durham County Council employees

(subject to the NJC 2016/17 Pay Award being accepted). This equates to



workers (outside of apprenticeship schemes) remunerated in Durham on a
minimum full time equivalent annual rate of pay of £15,238 (excluding
allowances). This is the Council’s definition of ‘lowest paid workers'.

The Policy Relationship between Chief Officers Pay, the Lowest Paid
Workers, and the Wider Workforce

Current Position
At the inception of the new unitary Council in 2009 the authority had defined:

¢ The strategy for senior pay within the authority and had recruited into
these posts.

e The plan for the approach towards harmenising the pay and conditions of
the workforce longer term.

» Taking this approach, also now enables the authority to publish and
support recommendations within Will Hutton’s review 2011 ‘Review of Fair
Pay in the Public Sector’ around publishing the ratio of pay of the
organisation’s top eamer to that of a median earner and tracking this over
time, taking corrective action where necessary.

* In setting the relevant pay levels a range of background factors outlined at
paragraph 2.2 were taken into consideration for senior pay alongside the
significant scope and scale of the authority in the national context.

For example, the scope and scale of the Chief Executive’'s post encompasses
responsibilities commensurate with the largest authorities in the country
including responsibility for:

e The provision of wide ranging services to over 500,000 residents of
County Durham.

e A gross budget of £1.4bn for service delivery.

e Undertaking the role of the Head of Paid Service to over approximately
17,500 employees.

¢ Lead Policy Advisor to the Council's 126 Elected Members.

The ratio between the pay of the Chief Executive in Durham County Council
and the lowest paid workers is 12:1, against figures published by Government
of an expectation to always be below 20:1 in local government.

In addition, during 2016/17 the employer will contribute 13.8% of pensicnable

pay to the pension fund for all employees in the Loca! Government Pension
Scheme.

Page 97



10

11

12

Page 98

Long Term Planning

In line with the original long term plan, Durham County Council has
successfully completed the implementation of a new pay and conditions
framework for the wider workforce. This pay scheme is based upon a
nationally agreed job evaluation system and the national spinal column points
of pay, and will see the authority remain within the existing national pay
negotiating machinery.

Pay Policy Objectives

This planned approach towards pay for the wider workforce, and the use of
established and equality impact assessed job evaluation schemes in the
exercise will ensure:

+ A planned approach towards pay policy for the organisation that enables
the council to establish a relationship between pay for senior officers, the
low paid and the wider workforce to align to the national guidance

e The provision of accountability, transparency and fairness in setting pay
for Durham County Council.

Pay Policy Decisions for the Wider Workforce

The decision making powers for the implementation of the new pay
arrangements is one for the Full Council for the Authority, ensuring that
decisions in relation to workforce pay are taken by those who are directly
accountable to local people.

The Approach towards Payment for those Officers Ceasing to Hold
Office Under or be Employed by the Authority

The Council has an agreed policy in relation to officers whose employment is
terminated via either voluntary or compulsory redundancy. This policy
provides a clear, fair and consistent approach towards handling early
retirements and redundancy for the wider workforce, including Chief Officers.
In setting policy, the Authority does at this time retain its discretion to utilise
the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary
Compensation) (England and Wales Regulations) 2006.

Policy towards the Reward of Chief Officers Previously Employed by the
Authority.

The Council's arrangements for paymentis on severance are outlined in the
Early Retirement/Voluntary Redundancy policy approved by Full Council on
29 October 2014.

Chief Officers leaving the authority under regulations allowing for early access
to pension are leaving in circumstances where there is no longer a suitable
role for them, and in such circumstances they leave the employment of the



Council. Imémediate re-engagement in another role would negate redundancy
by operation of the Redundancy Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local
Government, etc.) (Modification) Order 1999.

The Council would not expect such officers to be offered further remunerated
employment with the Council or any controlled company without such post
being subject to external competition.

The administering authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme does
not currently have a policy of abating pensions for former employees who are
in receipt of a pension, although this is an area that is kept under review.

The Council is mindful of its obligations under equality legislation and as such
is limited in its ability to adopt a policy that it will not employ people of an age
that has entitled them to pension access on leaving former employment in the
public sector or to propose that such applicants be employed on less
favourable terms than other applicants. It expects all applicants for any posts
to compete and be appointed on merit.

Page 99



Annex 1: Proposed Scale of Fees for Whole Area Local Elections

Set out in Annex 1 is a scale of fees for the conduct of the 2013 whole County and
Parish Council elections. The fees are based on the principle that the Returning
Officer and nominated deputies will be remunerated in view of personal
responsibilities, but at a rate below that of national elections. National rates are
given for other posts such as Presiding Officers, Poll Clerks, Count Staff and postal
vote sessions to ensure sufficient interest is maintained in undertaking these roles.

Core Election Team members will receive an ‘election fee' covering overtime worked
and additional responsibilities undertaken during the election period. The overall fee
will reflect the amount received at National Elections for example the Alternative
Vote Referendum and the Police and Crime Commissioner Election. Any Election
Team member who is paid an ‘election fee' will not receive any additional payment if
undertaking a Deputy Returning Officer role or other roles.

Role Fee Comments
Retuming Officer £100 per division or per | Just over half the rate
contested parish council | paid at national
area elections
Deputy Returning Capped up to £60 per Fee dependant on role
Officers division or per contested | undertaken and level of
parish council area fee paid to be
determined by the
Returning Officer
Election Day
Presiding Officer £195 (plus 20% for National Rate
combination)
Poll Clerk £115 (plus 20% for National Rate
combination)
Polling staff — training £40.00 As at PCC Election
fee
Polling Station- £120.00 per session As at PCC Election
Staff Trainer
Polling Station Inspector | £19.50 per Polling National Rate
Station
(plus 20% for
combination)
Postal Votes
Postal Vote Supervisors | £12.50 per hour National Rate
including Scanners
Postal Vote Assistants | £10 per hour National Rate
Postal Vote Opening - £20.00 As at PCC Election
Training
Postal Vote Opening - £60.00 per session As at PCC Election
Trainer

Page 100



Role Fee Comments

Ballot Box Receipt and

Document Sort

Ballot Box Supervisor £100.00 As at PCC Election
Ballot Box Receipt Asst | £50.00 per session of As at PCC Election

up to 4 hours

The Count

Count £250.00 As at PCC Election
Supervisor/Adjudicator

Count Supervisor- £50.00 As at PCC Election
Trainer

Count Senior Assistant | £160.00

Count Supervisor and £40.00 As at PCC Election

Senior Assistant
Training

Count Assistant

£50.00 per session of
up to 4 hours

As at PCC Election

Security £100

General

Clerical Assistance — £200 per division National rate

use of temporary staff

Car Mileage 48p per mile DCC mileage rate

Poll Card Delivery 12p per card {plus 2p As at PCC Election
mgt)

Page 101



Annex 2: Proposed Scale of Fees for the conduct of Individual By-Elections

Set out in Annex 2 is a scale of fees for the conduct of individual By-Elections.
These fees were agreed by the former District Authorities of the County in 2007.

Election Fees — By-Elections

Returning Officer

£67.00 per 1000 electors or part thereof (per
division/ward)

Polling Station:

Presiding Officer £180.50 (plus % fee for combined election)
Poll Clerk £108.75 (plus % fee for combined election)
Polling Station Inspector £17.00 per station

Mileage 0.45p

Postal Votes Issue:

Postal Votes Issuing Manager £120.00

Postal Votes Issuing Supervisor £60.00

Postal Votes Issuing Assistant £40.00

Postal Votes Opening:

Postal Votes Opening Manager £150.00

Postal Votes Opening Supervisor | £75.00

Postal Votes Opening Assistant £60.00

Count:

Count Manager £260.00

Count Supervisor £140.00

Count Assistant £80.00

Miscellaneous:

Elector Assistance £17.00 per visit

Attending Training £40.00

Providing Training £150.00

Scanning of Returned Ballot £1.5 per 100 papers or part thereof
Papers

Clerical £89.00 per 1000 electors or part thereof

Preparation of Poll Cards

£1.90 per 100 cards or part thereof

Delivery of Poll Cards

12p per card

Ballot Box Preparation

£5.15

Checking of Ballot Papers

£1.60 per 1000 or part thereof

Page 102




Appendix 11

Discretionary Rate Relief, Hardship and Empty Property Relief Policy

~

Discretionary Rates
Relief, Hardship and
Empty Property Relief
(including New Build
Business Rates Relief)
Policy

/’céta_gether better

UPDATED APRIL 2016

Page 103



Contents

1. Introduction and Purpose of Policy Document

2. Legislation

3. Business Rates — Discretionary Rates Relief Policy

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

3.6

3.6

3.7

Equality and Fairness

Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process
Levels of Discretionary Rate Relief Available
Claiming Mandatory and Discretionary Rate Relief
Period of Award

Notification of Award

Appeals

4 Relief for Properties that are Partially Unoccupied for a Temporary Period

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Legislation

Making an Application

The Decision Making Process
Period of s44a Relief

Calculation of s44a Relief

5 Business Rates — New Build Empty Property Relief

5.1
5.2
5.3

54

Page 104

Legislation
Properties that will Benefit from this Relief
Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process

Period of Relief for New Build Empty Properties



6 Business Rates — Retail Relief

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Legislation
Properties that will Benefit from this Relief
Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process

Period of Retail Relief

7 Business Rates — Reoccupation Relief

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Legislation
Properties that will Benefit from this Relief
Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process

Period of Reoccupation Relief

8 Business Rates — Transitional Relief

8.1

Legislation

8.2 Properties that will Benefit from this Relief

8.3 Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process

8.4 Period of Transitional Relief

9 Business Rates — Hardship Relief

9.1
9.2
9.3
9.4
9.5

Legislation

Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process
Period of Hardship Relief

The Decision Making Process

Review of Decision

Page 105



1 Introduction and Purpose of Policy Document

1.1 This policy has been designed to ensure that all customers making an
application for rate relief is treated in a fair, consistent and equal manner.

1.2  This policy has been written to:

o Demonstrate how Durham County Council will operate its discretionary powers
set out in the Local Government Finance Act 1988 and Localism Act 2011 and
the factors that will be considered when deciding if relief can be awarded and
the way in which the value of relief will be granted

¢ Set guidelines for the factors that should be considered when making a
decision to award or refuse an application

o Set out the delegated authority to award relief in appropriate circumstances;
o Establish an appeals procedure for customers dissatisfied with a decision;

o Safeguard the interest of the local taxpayers by ensuring that funds that are
allocated for the award of relief are used in the most effective and economic
way.

2 Legislation

2.1 Section 47 of the LGFA 1988 permits the billing authority to grant discretionary rate
relief. This was amended by the Localism Act 2011 section 69 from 1 April 2012
which removed the previous restrictions of discretionary relief to only apply to
charities and other organisations of prescribed types.

2.2  The billing authority may make a decision to grant relief, only if it is satisfied that it
would be reasonable to do so, having regard to the interests of the council tax
payers.

3 Business Rates — Discretionary Rates Relief Policy
3.1  Equality and Fairness

3.1.1 Each application for relief would be dealt with on its own merits and would treat all
organisations that apply for discretionary rate relief equally and fairly. The scheme
will operate in a manner that helps support Durham County Council priorities and key
objectives contained in the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Council Plan.
Public funds are not however unlimited, a proportion of the costs of relief granted is
borne by council tax payers.

Page 106



3.2 Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process

3.2.1 The criteria to be used in deciding whether or not to give discretionary rate relief are
based on assessing how an organisation’s work helps achieve the Council’s priorities
and meeting the community’s needs for services and facilities.

3.2.2 The following essential criteria must be met before Durham County Council would
consider awarding discretionary rate relief:

» the ratepayer must be a non-profit making body, and/or

» the property must be used by the ratepayer wholly or mainly for charitable,
philanthropic or religious purposes, or concermned with education, social
welfare, science, literature and the fine arts, or the ratepayer must use the
property wholly or mainly for recreation by a non-profit making club or society.

3.2.3 It is possible for a voluntary organisation to apply for 100% discretionary rate relief,
and for registered charities to apply for an additional 20% discretionary relief in
addition to the mandatory relief they already receive providing they meet the
essential criteria detailed in the Levels of Discretion detailed in paragraphs 3.4.1 to
3.4.2.

3.2.4 Community Interest Companies (CICS) would not qualify for mandatory relief and
any discretionary relief application would be considered based on the essential
criteria detailed in the Levels of Discretion detailed in paragraphs 3.3.1 to 3.3.2.

3.2.5 There are however, exceptions to this general rule which include; Housing
Associations, Leisure Trusts, Voluntary Schools, Colleges and Universities or similar,
these organisations are charitable trusts for the purposes of the rating legislation and
qualify for mandatory relief. However due to the funding streams available no
discretionary top-up relief will be granted to these bodies.

3.2.6 Every application for discretionary rate relief will be considered on an individual
basis.

3.2.7 The Council will need to be satisfied that value for money is being provided to the
people of Durham County, bearing in mind the relief an organisation will receive. In
making awards, consideration will be given to the financial impact on the Council and
whether or not an organisation is already funded or commissioned by the Council.
The decision to award relief must only be taken where it is in the wider interest of
Council Taxpayers in County Durham.

3.2.8 Relief may be refused if it is considered that the cost to the Council and its taxpayers
outweighs the benefit that will be gained from the award of the relief. If the benefit of
the rate relief is kept locally, the relief is more likely to be awarded.

3.2.9 The finances of the organisation will be examined. This will include examination of

the membership fees structure, examination and reasoning of level of reserves in
relation to the amount of turnover and the rates actually charged, payments to staff

Page 107



and directors will all be taken into consideration when determining the application. If
it appears that the reserve finances are not being used or partially used to benefit the
local community, the application may be refused unless the ratepayer can
demonstrate their reasoning

3.2.10 Some organisations or charities do not need to be registered with the Charity

Commission where the annual income is under £5,000. In these cases if the
organisation has applied to Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) for tax
relief, a HMRC number will be provided and mandatory relief can be awarded.

3.2.11 Organisations that meet the qualifying criteria for small business rates relief will not

be considered for discretionary rate relief until they have applied for small business
rates relief. This will reduce the financial contribution on the authority. These
organisations even though they may not be a small business, they are however
ratepayers who are entitled to apply for this relief. Durham County Council will
provide support and guidance on how to apply for small business rates relief from the
Council

3.3 Levels of Discretionary Rate Relief Available
3.3.1 Registered charities or equivalent already in receipt of mandatory relief will receive
the following top up relief provided they meet the relevant criteria (as identified
above):
For Registered Charities or Equivalent (CASC's, ClO or| % Relief
Exempt Charities) entitled to Mandatory Rate Relief Awarded (Top
up to
Mandatory
Rate Relief)

1. Community Centres/Community Associations and other 100
registered charities responsible for paying rates on Community
Centre and village halls.

2. Training Centres/Training Organisations offering schemes for
particular groups to develop their skills e.g. young people, 100
unemployed people.

3. National Charity Shops 0

4. Local Charity Shops 100

5. Local Heritage Projects 100

6. Essential Community Services e.g. CAB, Hospice, Samaritans 100

7. Sports Clubs (Must be CASC or registered Charity) Up to 100

8. Museums 100

9. Private Schools, Leisure Trust, Universities/Colleges and 0
Academies

10. Housing Associations or similar organisations 0

Page 108



3.3.2 Non Registered charities and community based organisations will receive the

following relief provided they meet the relevant criteria.

Organisations not entitled to Mandatory Rate Relief but % Relief
who are established Not for Profit Making Organisation

1. Community Centre, Community Associations, Agencies,
Community Resource Centres which are not conducted for 100
profit and which occupy premises that provide a community
focal point.

2. Recreational community based clubs or societies e.g. youth
clubs, boy scouts, girl guides. (Sports Clubs will not qualify 100
unless CASC or registered Charity)

3. Philanthropic organisations that are community based. 100

4. Religious organisations that promote an understanding of
religion that leads to a greater awareness of religious 100
differences within the community.

5. Educational organisations that provide education support or 100
training.

6. Scientific organisations that promote an awareness of science 100
efc.

7. Literature and Fine Arts that promote an awareness of 100
Literature and Fine Ars.

8. Training Centres/Training Organisations offering schemes for
particular groups to develop their skills e.g. young people, 100
unemployed people.

9. Training Centres/Training Organisations offering schemes and 50
advice to businesses.

10. Private Nurseries and Day Care Centres 0

11. Community Interest Companies (CICS) Up to 100

The following additional criteria will be used when dealing with applications for discretionary

rate re

lief.

Reason for Increasing Amount of Relief:

1. Active encouragement of membership for all groups
2. Affiliated to local or national organisations

3. More than 50% drawn locally

Reason for Reducing Amount of Relief:

1. Bar facilities™

2. Restrictive fees and Restrictive membership**

Page 109



i Maximum
Percentage of Relief

to be Awarded

Bar Facilities**
O,

Licensed Bar — Full licence operating through the year for Discret;o?uﬁ Rate
registered charities or CASC, this to be link to the rateable Boliof 1o '}’u
value and what is attributable to the clubhouse. P-Up-
Licensed bar is open but where the club/organisation has a 10% or 20%
restricted seasonal/match day licence for registered charities Discretionary Rate
or CASC:- Relief top-up.
No Bar and a registered charity or CASC 20% Discretionary

Rate Relief or top-up.

Restrictive fees and membership***

Where coaching, mentoring or training is at a minimal cost and 50%
the membership subscription can be shown not to exclude the
general community.

Where the organisation encourages the young, those with
disabilities and the elderly to partake in their activities and

Q,
where the organisation benefits the local community by its T
activities.
Where the organisation actively seeks to eliminate all forms of
discrimination in its activities, in line with the new authority’s 10%

own commitment to Equal Opportunities

3.3.3 Businesses in Rural settlement lists will receive the following relief provided they
meet the relevant criteria and receive mandatory rural relief.

Rural relief % Relief
1. Sole shop in a rural settlement area selling mainly
food and household goods meeting the criteria of 100

mandatory relief
2. Sole Post Office in a rural settiement area meeting

the criteria for mandatory relief 100
3. Sole public house in a rural settlement area 100
meeting the criteria for mandatory relief
4. Sole petrol station in a rural settlement area 100

meeting the criteria for mandatory relief.

3.4 Claiming Mandatory and Discretionary Rate Relief

3.4.1 A claim must be made using the application form attached to this policy and
available on the Council's website (www.durham.gov.uk). This application form and
supporting information, including the Memorandum or Articles of Association, the
latest Annual Report and the last two years professionally prepared account should
be completed and returned to:-

Page 110



Durham County Council
Revenues and Benefits
PO Box 238

Stanley

Co Durham

DH8 1FP

3.4.2 Itis the responsibility of the organisation applying for the relief to provide sufficient
information and documentary evidence to suppont applications. If the organisation
applying does not or will not provide the required evidence the application will still be
considered but only on the basis of the information and evidence provided.

3.5 Period of Award

3.5.1 Entitlement to relief will be subject to a regular review or if there is a change in
legislation that would affect its operation and taking into account Council policies and
priorities, any withdrawal or variation of relief is subject to one financial years notice.

3.6 Notification of Award

3.6.1 The Council will inform the organisation applying for relief, in writing of the outcome
of their application for discretionary rate relief.

3.6.2 The Council will endeavour to determine any application received within 28 days of
receipt of the full information required to assess the claim.

3.6.3 Where the application is not successful, the notification wil! provide full reasons why
it has not been decided not to award discretionary rate relief and the applicant's right
to ask us to look at the decision again.

3.6.4 Where the application is successful, the notification will include the percentage of
relief awarded and details of when an amended Non Domestic Rate Demand will be
issued.

3.7 Appeals

3.7.1 If you disagree with a decision made under this policy, you must write and tell
Durham County Council why you think the decision is wrong and provide any
additional information in support of the claim. An independent panel will look at the
case.

3.7.2 The panel will check the discretionary rate relief application thoroughly and take
account of any additional information in your appeal letter. The panel will decide
whether or not the criteria have been properly applied. The panel will confirm the
decision, change the decision to pay more discretionary rate relief or change the
decision to pay less Discretionary Rare Relief.

Page 111



3.7.3 Durham County Council will write to tell you the outcome of the appeal. There is no
further right of appeal against the decision of the panel. Any further appeal against
this decision must be done through judicial review proceedings

4 Relief for Properties that are Partially Unoccupied for a Temporary Period
4.1 Legislation

4.1.1 Section 44A of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 enables a billing authority
discretionary powers to grant relief on a property that is partly unoccupied or not fully
occupied if it appears to the authority that this situation will remain for a “short period
of time” only.

4.1.2 Partially occupied rate relief {(also referred to as Section 44a Relief) is not intended to
be used where part of a property is temporarily not used. The intention is aimed at
situations where there are practical difficulties in occupying or vacating all of a

property.

4.2 Making an Application
4.2.1 Applications must be made by the ratepayer

4.2.2 Durham County Council will require a written application and the ratepayer must
supply a plan of the property, with the unoccupied portions clearly identified

4.3 The Decision Making Process

4.3.1 Durham County Council will require accompanied access to the property during
normal working hours to verify the application.

4.3.2 Relief will not be awarded under any circumstance where it is not possible to verify
the application.

4.3.3 Durham County Council will notify the applicant of the decision in writing and where
the relief is refused, an explanation of the reasons why will be given.

4.3.4 Durham County Council will not consider applications where the customer has failed
to provide information within the timescales provided to them and will notify the
customer in writing that the application has been refused

Page 112



4.4 Period of Section 44a Relief

4.4.1 Section 44a Relief will only be applied to a property that is partly occupied for a
temporary period. The relief can only be awarded for a maximum of 3 months in
cases of offices and shops, or 6 months in the case of industrial properties

4.4,2 Section 44a Relief will end under the following circumstances

s At the end of a financial year, regardless of the date relief was applied,;
e Where all or part of the unoccupied area becomes occupied,
» The person liable for Business Rates changes

4.5 Calculation of Section 44a Relief

4.5.1 Where Durham County Council agrees to award a Section 44a Relief, notification will
be sent to the Valuation Officer to seek a reduction in the rateable value

4.5.2 The amount of relief is calculated on a statutory basis based on the rateable value of

the empty portion of the property. The appropriate rateable value is provided to
Durham County Council by the Valuation Office Agency

5 Business Rates - New Build Empty Property Relief

5.1 Legislation

5.1.1 This relief has been introduced from 1 October 2013 as a temporary measure and
under Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 the billing authority has
discretionary powers to grant the relief in the prescribed circumstances below.

5.2 Properties that will benefit from this Relief

5.2.1 Properties that are empty and entered into the rating list between 1 October 2013
and 30 September 2016 could be eligible for exemption from empty property rates
for the first 18 months, up to state aid limits.

5.2.2 Properties that will benefit from relief will be all unoccupied non domestic
hereditaments that are wholly or mainly (more than half) comprised of qualifying new
structures completed within this timeframe

5.3 Criteria used in the Decision Making Process

5.3.1 Durham County Council will require a written application form.

5.3.2 The relief will stay with the property rather than the owner.

Page 113



5.3.3 The new build empty property relief is granted as de minimis aid for State Aid
purposes. There is currently a ceiling of 200,000 Euros of de minimis aid that can be
granted over a three year rolling period.

5.3.4 Durham County Council will notify the applicant of the decision in writing and where
the relief is refused, an explanation of the reasons why will be given.

5.3.5 Durham County Council will not consider applications where the customer has failed
to provide information within the timescales provided to them and will notify the
customer in writing that the application has been refused

5.4 Period of Relief New Build Empty Property

5.4.1 The relief is for a maximum of 18 months, this includes the first 3 or 6 months
unoccupied empty relief.

6 Business Rates - Retail Relief
6.1 Legislation

6.1.1 This relief was introduced from 1 April 2014 for a 2 year period and under Section 47
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 the billing authority has discretionary
powers to grant the relief in the prescribed circumstances below.

6.2 Properties that will benefit from this Relief

6.2.1 Discount of £1,000 for shops, pubs and restaurants with a rateable vaiue under
£50,000 for two years up to state aid limits from 1 April 2014, which was increased to
£1,500 up to state aid limits from 1 April 2015 for the financial year 2015/16.

6.2.2 Premises that will benefit from the relief will be occupied premises with a rateable
value of £50,000 or less and are wholly or mainly being used as shops, restaurants,
cafes and drinking establishments.

6.2.3 As this is a discretionary relief, the reliefs are measured in the following order,
o Charitable/Community Amateur Sports Clubs/Rural Rate Relief/Top up and not
for property/Small Business Rate Relief

» Other discretionary reliefs (Local Discounts)

e Long Term Empty Relief (50% business rate relief for 18 months between 1
April 2014 and 31 March 2016 for businesses that move into retail premises
that have been empty for a year or more.

e Retail Relief of £1,000 for 2014-15 and £1,500 for 2015-16

Page 114



6.3 Criteria used in the Decision Making Process
6.3.1 Durham County Council will require a written application form.
6.3.2 The relief will stay with the propenrty rather than the owner.

6.3.3 The new retail relief is granted as de minimis aid for State Aid purposes. There is
currently a ceiling of 200,000 Euros of de minimis aid that can be granted over a
three year rolling period.

6.3.4 Durham County Council will notify the applicant of the decision in writing and where
the relief is refused, an explanation of the reasons why will be given.

6.3.5 Durham County Council will not consider applications where the customer has failed
to provide information within the timescales provided to them and will notify the
customer in writing that the application has been refused

6.4 Period of Retail Relief

6.4.1 The relief is only applicable for the financial years 2014/15 and 2015/16.
Retrospective applications for 2015/16 will only be considered up to 30 September
2016.

7 Business Rates - Reoccupation Relief
7.1 Legislation

7.1.1 This relief has been introduced from 1 April 2014 for 2 year period under Section 47
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 the billing authority has discretionary
powers to grant the relief in the prescribed circumstances below.

7.2 Properties that will benefit from this Relief

7.2.1 A 50 per cent business rates relief for 18 months - between 1 April 2014 and 31
March 2016 - for businesses that move into retail premises that have been empty for
a year or more;

7.2.2 As this is a discretionary relief, the reliefs are measured in the following order,
¢ Charitable/Community Amateur Sports Clubs/Rura! Rate Relief/Top up and not
for property/Small Business Rate Relief

¢ Other discretionary reliefs (Local Discounts)

» Long Term Empty Relief {50% business rate relief for 18 months between 1
April 2014 and 31 March 2016 for businesses that move into retail premises
that have been empty for a year or more.

» Retail Relief of £1,000 for 2014-15 and £1,500 for 2015-16

Page 115



7.3  Criteria used in the Decision Making Process
7.3.1 Durham County Council will require a written application form.
7.3.2 The relief will stay with the property rather than the owner.

7.3.3 The new reoccupation relief is granted as de minimis aid for State Aid purposes.
There is currently a ceiling of 200,000 Euros of de minimis aid that can be granted
over a three year rolling period.

7.3.4 Durham County Council will notify the applicant of the decision in writing and where
the relief is refused, an explanation of the reasons why will be given.

7.3.5 Durham County Council will not consider applications where the customer has failed
to provide information within the timescales provided to them and will notify the
customer in writing that the application has been refused

7.4  Period of Reoccupation Relief

7.4.1 The relief is for a maximum of 18 months with an effective start date betweeni April
2014 to 31 March 2016.

8 Business Rates — Transitional Relief
8.1 Legislation

8.1.1 This relief has been introduced from 1 April 2015 for 2 year period under Section 47
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 the billing authority has discretionary
powers to grant the relief in the prescribed circumstances below.

8.2 Properties that will benefit from this Relief

8.2.1 Properties with a rateable value up to and including £50,000. As a result of this
measure small properties (with a rateable value of less than £18,000) that would
otherwise face bill increases above 15% and medium sized properties (with a
rateable value of £50,000 or less) that would otherwise face bill increases above
25% will benefit.

8.2.2 Changes in rateable value which take effect from 1 April 2010 or the substituted day
in the cases of split and mergers. Properties whose rateable value is £50,000 or less
on 1 April 2010 (or the day of merger) but increase above £50,000 from a later date
will still be eligible for relief. Where the Valuation Office Agency issue certificates for
the value at 31 March 2010 or 1 April 2010 the relief will be recalculated on a daily
basis.

Page 116



8.2.3 As this is a discretionary relief, the reliefs are measured in the following order,
o Charitable/Community Amateur Sports Clubs/Rural Rate Relief/Top up and not
for property/Small Business Rate Relief
o Other discretionary reliefs (Local Discounts)

s Long Term Empty Relief (50% business rate relief for 18 months between 1
April 2014 and 31 March 2016 for businesses that move into retail premises
that have been empty for a year or more.

» Retail Relief of £1,000 for 2014-15 and £1,500 for 2015-16
e Transitional Relief
8.3  Criteria used in the Decision Making Process
8.3.1 2016/17 Annual rate accounts will have identified potential qualifiers and have
awarded relief automatically. Letters will be issued advised of relief and requirement

to retumn state aid declaration.

8.3.2 Any new applications identified after 2016/17 annual bills written application will be
required.

8.3.3 The new transitional relief is granted as de minimis aid for State Aid purposes. There
is currently a ceiling of 200,000 Euros of de minimis aid that can be granted over a
three year rolling period.

8.3.4 Durham County Council will notify the applicant of the decision in writing and where
the relief is refused, an explanation of the reasons why will be given. Where there is
a recalculation of the amount of relief written notification will be provided detailing the
reason.

8.4  Period of Transitional Relief

8.4.1 The relief is only applicable for the financial years 2015/16 and 2016/17.

9 Hardship Relief for Business Rates
9.1 Legislation

9.1.1 Councils have the power to reduce or remit the business rate charge where it
considers that ‘hardship’ would otherwise be caused to the ratepayer.

9.1.2 The provisions are set out in Section 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1998.

Page 117



9.2 Criteria Used in the Decision Making Process

9.2.1 Applications to reduce or remit the business rate charge will only be considered
where the Council is satisfied that the rate payer would otherwise sustain hardship
and that it is reasonable to grant relief having regard to the interest of council tax
payers who are affected by decisions under this section. This is because 50% of the
cost of exercising this power has to be funded by the Council through general fund
expenditure.

9.2.2 Criteria

» Each application for hardship will be considered on its merits with issues that will
need to be considered on each occasion including:-

o All appiications should be made in writing from the rate payer, their
advocate/appointee or a recognised third party acting on their behalf, using the
relevant form and contain the necessary information.

o All applications are only intended as short term assistance and will not extend
beyond the current financial year, and should not be considered as a way of
reducing Business Rate Liability.

» Hardship relief or remission will be the exception and not the rule.

* The financial interests of the council tax payers will not be the overriding factor e.g.
employment and amenities provision will also may be taken into account.

s Where the granting of relief will have an adverse effect on the financial interests of
the council tax payers, relief may still be granted if the case for relief on balance
outweighs the costs to taxpayers.

o The potential amount of any relief may in some cases constitute state aid and
therefore adherence to EU regulations must be followed.

» The test of hardship will include an assessment of the ratepayer’s individual
accounts to verify that the payment of rates would cause hardship.

» The assessment of the accounts will identify the cause of the business failings and a
simple accounting calculation wili be carried out as follows:

% of Rates to Sales

% of Rates to Gross Profit

% of Rates to Expenditure

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities

Ration of Current Assets less Stock to Current Liabilities

Page 118



» Relief will normally only be awarded retrospectively. However, where you can show
that the circumstances will remain the same for a period up to the end of the current
financial year relief may be award for the remainder of the year

9.3 Period of Hardship Relief

9.3.1 In all cases relief will end in the following circumstances:

» Atthe end of a financial year

»  All or part of the unoccupied area becoming occupied

o A change of liable person

e  The property becomes empty, or become occupied

e  The ratepayer enters any form of formal insolvency

o  The ratepayers financial circumstances significantly change (the rate payer
must inform the council if their circumstance change e.g. Change in rateable

vaiue)

From the assessment of the above criteria, the council will determine if the business
is suffering from financial hardship due to the payment of Business Rates.

9.3.2 Examples of Appropriate Circumstances

The following examples indicate circumstances where it may be appropriate to
award relief. They are included in this policy in the form of broad general guidelines
and are not intended to be prescriptive.

a) Without rate relief the business will close and deprive local residents of an
essential service and protecting employing.

b} The ratepayer’s business has been detrimentally affected by circumstances
beyond the ratepayers control and that do no constitute part of the normal
risks in running a business (e.g. a natural disaster, an unusual or
uncontrollable event in the neighbourhood of the business such as a fire
making the immediate area of the business unsafe).

N.B. in addition, it must be in the interest of the community as a whole for Hardship
relief to be granted.

9.3.3 Claiming a Reduction due to Hardship

9.3.4 A claim must be made on an approved application form. This application form and
any supporting information should be completed and returned to:-

Page 119



Durham County Council
Revenues and Benefits
PO Box 238

Stanley

Co Durham

DHS8 1FP

9.3.5 It is the responsibility of the Ratepayer applying for relief to provide sufficient
information and documentary evidence to support their applications. If the Ratepayer
applying does not or will not provide the required evidence, we will still consider the
application but only on the basis of the information and evidence provided.

9.4 The Decision Making Process

9.4.1 Upon receipt of written application form, all supporting information must be

included for consideration.

¢ Initial applications will be considered by Revenues Team Manager (NNDR).
These will include review sheet, with findings and financial implications and initial
recommendations.

» Recommendations will then be forwarded to Revenues & Benefits Manager via
the Revenues Manager.

e These will then be forwarded to Head of Financial Services for approval/refusal.

o Once decision has been approved the ratepayer will be advised in writing of the
decision.

9.5 Review of Decision

9.5.1 Under the Local Government Finance Act 1988, there is no right of appeal against
the Council's use of discretionary powers. However, on individual discounts, the
Council will accept a customer’s request from a ratepayer for a re-determination of
its decision.

o Re-determination of the decision will be by the Corporate Director.

¢ The Council will consider whether the ratepayer has provided any additional
information that will justify a change to its original decision.

¢ The Council will notify the ratepayer of its decision within 21 days of receiving a
request for a redetermination.

Page 120



Appendix 12

Durham County Council Annual Treasury
Management Strategy 2016/17

Summary

In accordance with statutory guidance and the Council’s Financial Procedure rules,
this report presents the proposed Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17, the
Annual Investment Strategy, Prudential Indicators, Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy and Treasury Management Practices (Annex 1).

A glossary of terms is provided at the end of the report.

Background

Durham County Council defines its treasury management activities as the
management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those
risks.

It regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be the prime
criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be
measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities
will focus on their risk implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments
entered into to manage these risks.

it acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support towards the
achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore committed to the
principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, and to employing
suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context of
effective risk management.

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with
cash being available when it is needed. Any surplus cash balances are invested in
low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’'s low risk
strategy to always provide adequate liquidity initially before considering investment
return.

Reporting Requirements

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports
each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals:

1. Annual Treasury Management Strategy — this report covers:

Annual Treasury Strategy 2016/17

Annual Investment Strategy 2016/17
Prudential Indicators 2015/2019

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 2016/17

Page 121



2. Mid-Year Treasury Management Report — this updates members with the
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary,
and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or whether any
policies require revision.

3. Annual Treasury Report — This provides details of a selection of actual
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to
the estimates within the strategy.

Annual Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17
This report covers the following issues in respect of 2016/17:

i.  Current treasury position
ii. Capital financing plans (including Prudential and Treasury Indicators)
ii. Interest Rate Qutlook
iv.  Borrowing strategy
v.  Policy on borrowing in advance of need
vi.  Debt rescheduling
vii.  Annual Investment Strategy
viii.  Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy
ix. Policy on use of external service providers

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the
CIPFA Prudential Code, Communities and Local Government (CLG) MRP Guidance,
the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and Communities and Local Government
Investment Guidance.

i. Current treasury position

The table below shows the Council's position as at 31 December 2015, with
comparators for 31 March 2015 and a forecast position for 31 March 2016:

31-Mar- | Average | 31-Dec- | Average | 31-Mar- | Average
15 (Em) Rate 15 (Em) Rate 16 (Em) Rate
(%) (%) (%)

Borrowing 457.375 4.46 245.629 4.05 245.623 4.05

Investments 149.962 0.71 208.151 0.76 150.000 0.76

Net Debt 307.413 37.478 95.623

Borrowing has failen by £212m in 2015/16 as a result of debt attributable to
the HRA being repaid as part of the housing stock transfer.

Investment levels are forecast to remain broadly the same at the end of March
2016 as they were at March 2015.

Page 122



Capital financing plans

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

As a result of the housing stock transfer on 13 April 2015, the figures shown in
the tables in respect of the HRA contained in this report will be for 2014/15

and 2015/16 only.

General Fund Expenditure

The Council's capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury
management activity. The revenue consequences of capital expenditure,
particularly the unsupported capital expenditure, will need to be paid for from
the Council’s own resources. This capital expenditure can be paid for
immediately (by applying capital resources such as capital receipts, capital
grants and revenue resources), but if these resources are insufficient any
residual capital expenditure will add to the Council's borrowing need.

The following Prudential Indicators provide an overview and assist members
in reviewing plans and performance.

Prudential Indicator 1 Capital Expenditure - this prudential indicator is a
summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both those agreed
previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.

The table below summarises capital expenditure plans and how these plans

are being financed by capita! or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources
results in a funding need (“borrowing”):

| Capital 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19

Expenditure Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m

Non-HRA 119.386 | 138.929 | 139.502 71.371 8.424
HRA 42.826 - - - -
Total 162.212 | 138.929 | 139.502 71.371 8.424 |
Financed by:
Capital receipts 12.976 16.631 15.883 17.897 -
Capital grants and A
contributions 82.858 52.318 38.960 23.828
Revenue and
reserves 21.581 13.167 0.072 - -
Netfinancingneed | ;.47 | 56813| 84.587| 20.646| 8.424
for the year

Prudential Indicator 2 Capital Financing Requirement - the second
prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).

The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has
not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially
a measure of the Council's underlying borrowing need. Any capital
expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the
CFR.

Page 123



The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision
(MRP) is a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the
borrowing need in line with each asset’s life.

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance
leases). Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council's

borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and

so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.

2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m

Capital Financing Requirement
CFR —non 392.459 | 432.094| 498.063 | 506.676 | 493.490
housing
CFR - housing 244.000 - - - -
Total CFR 636.459 | 432.094 | 498.063 | 506.676 | 493.490
Movement in CFR 29.199 | -204.365 65.969 8.613 -13.186
Movement in CFR represented by
Net financing need 44797 56.813 84.587 29.646 8.424
for the year
(above)
HRA non-dwelling 0.132 - - - -
impairment
Housing Stock - | -244.000 - - -
Transfer
Less MRP/VRP -15.730, -17.178 | -18.618| -21.033| -21.610
and other
financing
movements
Movement in CFR 29.199 | -204.365| 65.969 8.613| -13.186

Affordability Prudential Indicators

The previous indicators cover overall capital and control of borrowing, but

within these further indicators are required to assess the affordability of the
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the
capital investment plans on the Council's overall finances.

Prudential indicator 3 Actual and estimates of the ratio of financing

costs to net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of

capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment

Page 124

income) against the net revenue stream.

2014/15 | 201516 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
% % % % %
Non-HRA 6.16 7.33 7.98 9.14 9.58

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the
proposals in this budget report.



Prudential Indicator 4 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital
investment decisions on council tax - this indicator identifies the revenue
costs associated with proposed changes to the three year capital programme
recommended in this budget report compared to the Council's existing
approved commitments and current plans. The assumptions are based on the
budget, but will invariably include some estimates, such as the level of
Government support, which are not published over a three year period.

2015/16 2016117 2017/18 2018/19
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate Estimate
£ £ £ £
Council tax - band D 0.00 0.80 5.49 4,52

1.1 Current portfolio position

The Council's treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2015, with forward

projections are summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt

(the treasury management operations), against the underlying capital

borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any

over or under borrowing.

2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m
External Debt
Debt at 1 April 436.833 | 457.375 | 245.623 | 260.609 | 285.594
Expected change in | 20.542 | -211.752 14.986 24.985 14.984
Debt
Other long-term 49.685 48.164 50.604 51.106 52.464
liabilities (OLTL)
Expected change in -1.521 2.440 0.502 1.358 -2.461
QOLTL
Actual gross debt | 505.539 | 296.227 | 311.715| 338.058 | 350.581
at 31 March
The Capital 636.459 | 432.094 | 498.063 | 506.676 | 493.490
Financing
Requirement
Under / (over) 130.920 | 135.867 | 186.348 | 168.618 | 142.909
borrowing

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure
that the Council operates its activities within well defined limits. One of these
is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the
short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the
estimates of any additional CFR for 2016/17 and the following two financial
years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years,
but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.

The Corporate Director Resources confirms that the Council complied with
this prudential indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties

Page 125



for the future. This view takes into account current commitments, existing
plans, and the proposals in this budget report.

Prudential Indicator 6 Operational Boundary - this is the limit beyond which
extemnal borrowing is not normally expected to exceed. In most cases, this
would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on
the levels of actual borrowing. The reduction in the borrowing element of the
Operational Boundary is due to the removal of the HRA debt following housing
stock transfer.

Operational 2015/16 201617 2017/18 2018/19

boundary Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m

Borrowing 385.000 450.000 456.000 445.000

Other long term 50.000 50.000 52.000 53.000

liabilities

Total 435.000 500.000 508.000 | 498.000

Prudential Indicator 7 Authorised Limit for external borrowing - this
further key prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level of
borrowing and is a statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003.

This represents a limit beyond which external borrowing is prohibited, and this
limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council. it reflects the level of
external borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short
term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.

Authorised limit 2015/16 2016/17 201718 2018/19
Estimate Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing 435.000 500.000 506.000 495.000
Other long term 53.000 53.000 55.000 56.000
liabilities
Total 488.000 553.000 561.000 551.000

Page 126

Treasury Management Indicators

There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest
rates. However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance. The indicators are:

o Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum
limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of
investments

o Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;



e Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the

Council's exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and

are required for upper and lower limits.

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:

| 2016117 | 2017/18 [ 2018/19

Interest rate Exposures

Upper Upper Upper
Limits on fixed interest 100% 100% 100%
rates based on net debt
Limits on variable 30% 30% 30%
interest rates based on
net debt
Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2016/17

Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 20%
12 months to 2 years 0% 40%
2 years to 5 years 0% 60%
5 years to 10 years 0% 80%
10 years and above 0% 100%

iii. Interest Rate Outlook

The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its treasury advisor and

part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest
rates. The following table gives the Capita central view.

Annual Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates %
Average % (including certainty rate adjustment)
%
5 year 25 year 50 year

Mar 2016 0.50 2.00 3.40 3.20
Jun 2016 0.50 2.10 3.40 3.20
Sep 2016 0.50 2.20 3.50 3.30
Dec 2016 0.75 2.30 3.60 3.40
Mar 2017 0.75 2.40 3.70 3.50
Jun 2017 1.00 2.50 3.70 3.60
Sep 2017 1.00 2.60 3.80 3.70
Dec 2017 1.25 2.70 3.90 3.80
Mar 2018 1.25 2.80 4.00 3.90
Jun 2018 1.50 2.90 4.00 3.90
Sep 2018 1.50 3.00 410 4.00
Dec 2018 1.75 3.10 4.10 4.00
Mar 2019 1.75 3.20 4.10 4.00

UK GDP growth rates in 2013 of 2.2% and 2.9% in 2014 were the strongest

growth rates of any G7 country; the 2014 growth rate was also the strongest

UK rate since 2006 and the 2015 growth rate is likely to be a leading rate in
the G7 again, probably being second to the US. However, quarter 1 of 2015

Page 127



Page 128

was weak at +0.4% (+2.9% y/y) though there was a rebound in quarter 2 to
+0.7% (+2.4% yly) before weakening again to +0.5% (2.3% y/y) in quarter 3.
The November Bank of England Inflation Report included a forecast for
growth to remain around 2.5 - 2.7% over the next three years, driven mainly
by strong consumer demand as the squeeze on the disposable incomes of
consumers has been reversed by a recovery in wage inflation at the same
time that CPI inflation has fallen to, or near to, zero since February 2015.
Investment expenditure is also expected to support growth. However, since
the August Inflation report was issued, most worldwide economic statistics
have been weak and the November Inflation Report flagged up particular
concerns for the potential impact on the UK.

The Inflation Report was also notably subdued in respect of the forecasts for
inflation; this was expected to barely get back up to the 2% target within the 2-
3 year time horizon. The increase in the forecast for inflation at the three year
horizon was the biggest in a decade and at the two year horizon was the
biggest since February 2013. However, the first round of falls in oil, gas and
food prices over late 2014 and also in the first half 2015, will fall out of the 12
month calculation of CPI during late 2015 / early 2016 but a second, more
recent round of falls in fuel prices will now delay a significant tick up in inflation
from around zero: this is now expected to get back to around 1% in the
second half of 2016 and not get to near 2% until 2017, though the forecasts in
the Report itself were for an even slower rate of increase. There is
considerable uncenrainty around how quickly pay and CP1 inflation will rise in
the next few years and this makes it difficult to forecast when the MPC will
decide to make a start on increasing Bank Rate.

The American economy made a strong comeback after a weak first quarter's
growth at +0.6% (annualised), to grow by no less than 3.9% in quarter 2 of
2015, but then pulled back to 2.1% in quarter 3. The run of strong monthly
increases in nonfarm payrolls figures for growth in employment in 2015 has
prepared the way for the Fed. to embark on its long awaited first increase in
rates of 0.25% at its December meeting. However, the accompanying
message with this first increase was that further increases will be at a much
slower rate, and to a much lower ultimate ceiling, than in previous business
cycles, mirroring comments by our own MPC.

In the Eurozone, the ECB fired its big bazooka in January 2015 in unleashing
a massive €1.1 trillion programme of quantitative easing to buy up high credit
quality government and other debt of selected EZ countries. This programme
of €60bn of monthly purchases started in March 2015 and it is intended to run
initially to September 2016. This appears to have had a positive effect in
helping a recovery in consumer and business confidence and a start to an
improvement in economic growth. GDP growth rose to 0.5% in quarter 1
2015 (1.0% y/y) but came in at +0.4% (+1.5% y/y) in quarter 2 and +0.3% in
quarter 3. However, this lacklustre progress in 2015 together with the recent
downbeat Chinese and emerging markets news, has prompted comments by
the ECB that it stands ready to strengthen this programme of QE by extending
its time frame and / or increasing its size in order to get inflation up from the
current level of around zero towards its target of 2% and to help boost the rate
of growth in the EZ.



iv.

o Greece. During July, Greece finally capitulated to EU demands to
implement a major programme of austerity and is now cooperating fully
with EU demands. An €86bn third bailout package has since been agreed
though it did nothing to address the unsupportable size of total debt
compared to GDP. However, huge damage has been done to the Greek
banking system and economy by the resistance of the Syriza
Government, elected in January, to EU demands. The surprise general
election in September gave the Syriza government a mandate to stay in
power to implement austerity measures. However, there are major doubts
as to whether the size of cuts and degree of reforms required can be fully
implemented and so Greek exit from the euro may only have been
delayed by this latest bailout.

¢ Portugal and Spain. The general elections in September and December
respectively have opened up new areas of political risk where the
previous right wing reform-focused pro-austerity mainstream political
parties have lost power. A left wing / communist coalition has taken
power in Portugal which is heading towards unravelling previous pro
austerity reforms. This outcome could be replicated in Spain. This has
created nervousness in bond and equity markets for these countries
which has the potential to spill over and impact on the whole Eurozone
project.

¢ |nvestment retums are likely to remain relatively low during 2016/17 and
beyond;

» Borrowing interest rates have been highly volatile during 2015 as alternating
bouts of good and bad news have promoted optimism, and then pessimism,
in financial markets. Gilt yields have continued to remain at historically
phenominally low levels during 2015. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by
running down spare cash balances, has served well over the last few years.
However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring higher
borrowing costs in later times, when authorities will not be able to avoid new
borrowing to finance new capital expenditure and/or to refinance maturing
debt;

¢ There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between borrowing
costs and investment retums.

Borrowing Strategy

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means
that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not
been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves,
balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure. This
strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterpanty risk is
relatively high.

Page 129



vi.

Page 130

Municipal Bond Agency

It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being

set up, will be offering loans to local authorities in the near future. It is also

hoped that the borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB). The County Council may make use of this new
source of borrowing as and when appropriate.

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution
will be adopted with the 2016/17 treasury operations. The Corporate Director
Resources will monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a
pragmatic approach to changing circumstances.

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in
order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision
to borrow in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing
Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value
for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security
of such funds.

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting
mechanism.

Debt Rescheduling

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term

fixed interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings

by switching from long term debt to short term debt. However, these savings
will need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the
size of the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:
« the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings;

« helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;

- enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the
balance of volatility).

Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt
prematurely as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than
rates paid on current debt.

All rescheduling will be reported to the relevant Committee, at the earliest
meeting following its action.



vii. Annual Investment Strategy

The Council has regard to the CLG's Guidance on Local Government
Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code").

In accordance with the above guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in
order to minimise the risk to investments, the Council appiies minimum
acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy
counterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of
concentration risk.

As with previous practice, ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality
of an institution and that it is important to continually assess and monitor the
financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the
economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of
the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a
monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that
information on top of the credit ratings.

Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price
and other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to
establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential
investment counterparties.

Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed below
under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories.

Specified Investments — These investments are sterling invesiments of not
more than one-year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but
where the Council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.
These are considered low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal
or investment income is small. These would include sterling investments
which would not be defined as capital expenditure with:

1. The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account deposit
facility)

UK treasury bills or a gilt with less than one year to maturity.

Term deposits with UK banks and building societies.

A local authority, parish council or community council.

Certificates of Deposit.

Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds) that have been
awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency.

ook wN

Non-specified Investments — are any other type of investment (i.e. not
defined as specified above). The identification and rationale supporting the
selection of these other investments and the maximum limits to be applied are
set out below. Non specified investments would include any sterling
investments with:

Page 131



Page 132

» Gilt edged securities with a maturity of greater than one year. These are
Government bonds and so provide the highest security of interest and the
repayment of principal on maturity.

» The Council's own banker if it fails to meet the basic credit criteria. In this
instance balances will be minimised as far as is possible.

» Equity shareholding in businesses of not more than £10m as part of a
balanced approach to investment after taking on board due diligence.

Investment Risk Benchmarking

These benchmarks are simple guides to maximum risk, so they may be breached
from time to time, depending on movements in interest rates and counterparty
criteria. The purpose of the benchmark is that officers will monitor the current and
trend position and amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions
change. Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, with supporting reasons
in the mid-year or Annual Report.

Security - The Counci’'s maximum security risk benchmark for the current
portfolio, when compared to these historic default tables, is:

* 0.08% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio.
Liquidity — in respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain:

» Bank overdraft - £250k

e Liquid short term deposits of at least £20m available with a week’s notice.

o Weighted average life benchmark is expected to be 6 months, with a
maximum of 9 months.

Yield - local measures of yield benchmarks are:
¢ Investments — internal returns above the 7 day LIBID rate

Investment Counterparty Selection

The primary principle goveming the Council's investment criteria is the
security of its investments, although the yield or return on the investment is
also a key consideration. After this main principle, the Council will ensure
that:

» [t maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it will
invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate
security, and monitoring their security. This is set out in the specified and
non-specified investment sections below; and

» It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out
procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may
prudently be committed. These procedures also apply to the Council's
prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums invested.

The Corporate Director Resources will maintain a counterparty list in
compliance with the following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit
them to Council for approval as necessary. These criteria are separate to that
which determines which types of investment instrument are either specified or
non-specified as it provides an overall poo! of counterparties considered high
quality which the Council may use, rather than defining what types of
investment instruments are to be used.



Capita’s creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just
primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give
undue weight to just one agency’s ratings.

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short
Term rating {Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There
may be occasions when the counterpanty ratings from one rating agency are
marginally lower than these ratings but may still be used. In these instances
consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other
topical market information, to support their use.

All credit ratings will be monitored regularly. The Council is aleried to changes
to ratings of all three agencies through its use of Capita’s creditworthiness
service.

e if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer
meeting the Council's minimum criteria, its further use as a new
investment will be withdrawn immediately.

¢ in addition to the use of credit ratings the Councii will be advised of
information in movements in credit default swap spreads against the
iTraxx benchmark and other market data on a weekly basis. Extreme
market movements may result in downgrade of an institution or removal
from the Councii’'s lending list.

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition
the Council will also use market data and market information, information on
sovereign support for banks and the credit ratings of that supporting
government.

The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties (both
specified and non-specified investments) is:

1 The proposed selection criteria for approved counterparties will be:
e Banks 1 - the Council will only use banks which are UK banks and

have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody's and Standard
and Poors credit ratings (where rated):

Fitch Moody’s Standard &
Poors
Short Term F1 P1 A-1
Long Term A- A3 A-

¢ Non UK Banks 1 ~ the Council will only use non UK banks which
have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody’s and Standard
and Poors credit ratings:

Fitch Moody's Standard &
Poors
Sovereign Rating AA- AA- AA-
Short Term F1 P1 A1
Long Term A- A3 A-

(N.B. Viability, Financial Strength and Support ratings have been
removed and will not be considered in choosing counterpariies.)

Page 133



Page 134

* Banks 2 — Part nationalised UK banks — Lloyds Banking Group and
Royal Bank of Scotland. These banks can be included if they
continue to be part nationalised or they meet the ratings in Banks 1
above.

* Banks 3 — The Council's own banker for transactional purposes if
the bank falls below the above criteria, although in this case
balances will be minimised in both monetary size and time.

¢ Bank subsidiary and treasury operation -. The Council will use
these where the parent bank has provided an appropriate
guarantee or has the necessary ratings outlined above.

¢ Building societies. The Council will use societies which meet the
ratings for banks outlined above:

s Money market funds

s Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs)

o UK Government {including gilts and the DMADF)
¢ Local authorities, parish councils etc

Use of additional information other than credit ratings

Additional requirements under the Code of Practice require the Council to
supplement credit rating information. Whilst the above criteria relies primarily
on the application of credit ratings to provide a pool of appropriate
counterparties for officers to use, additional operational market information will
be applied before making any specific investment decision from the agreed
pool of counterparties.

This additional market information (for example Credit Default Swaps,
negative rating watches/outlooks) will be applied to compare the relative
security of differing investment counterparties. The relative value of
investments will be reviewed in relation to the counterparty size to ensure an
appropriate ratio.

Time and Monetary Limits applying to Investments

The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council's Counterparty List
are as follows (these will cover both Specified and Non-Specified
Investments):



Long Term Money Limit | Time Limit
Rating
Banks 1 higher quality AA- £50m 2 years
Banks 1 medium quality A £35m 1 year
Banks 1 lower quality A- £25m 6 months
Banks 2 category — part-nationalised N/A £60m 2 years
Banks 3 category — Council’s banker A- £25m 3 months
DMADF/Treasury Bills AAA unlimited 6 months
Local Authorities N/A £10m each 5 years
Money Market Funds AAA £20m each liquid
(overall £100m)

viii.

MRP Policy Statement

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General
Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).

CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve
an MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided
to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision. The Council is
recommended to approve the following MRP Statement

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be:

¢« Based on CFR — MRP will be based on the CFR {Opticn 2);

e From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFl and
Finance Leases) the MRP policy will be:

¢ Asset Life Method — MRP will be based on the estimated life of the
assets, in accordance with the proposed regulations (Option 3)

Policy on use of external advisers

The Council uses Capita as its treasury management consultants. The
company provides a range of services which include:

s Technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues and the
drafting of Member reports

o Economic and interest rate analysis

Page 135




Page 136

o Debt services which includes advice on the timing of borrowing
e Debt rescheduling advice surrounding the existing portfolio

s Generic investment advice on interest rates, timing and investment
instruments

o Credit ratings/market information service comprising the three main credit
rating agencies

Whilst the advisers provide support to the internal treasury function, under

current market rules and the CIPFA Code of Practice the final decision on

treasury matters remains with the Council. This service is subject to regular

review.



Glossary of Terms

Authorised Limit

This is the upper limit on the level of gross external indebtedness, which must not be
breached without council approval. It reflects the level of borrowing, which while not
desired, could be afforded but may not be sustainable. Any breach must be reported
to the executive decision-making body, indicating the reason for the breach and the
corrective action undertaken or required to be taken.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The capital financing requirement (CFR) replaced the ‘credit ceiling’ measure of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It measures an authority’s underlying
need to borrow or finance by other long-term liabilities for a capital purpose.

It represents the amount of capital expenditure that has not yet been resourced
absolutely, whether at the point of spend (by capital receipts, capital
grants/contributions or from revenue income), or over the longer term (by prudent
minimum revenue provision (MRP) or voluntary application of capital receipts for
debt repayment etc). Alternatively it means, capital expenditure incurred but not yet
paid for.

Credit Default Swaps (CDS)

A credit default swap (CDS) is an agreement that the seller of the CDS will
compensate the buyer in the event of loan default. In the event of default the buyer
of the CDS receives compensation (usually the face value of the loan), and the seller
of the CDS takes possession of the defaulted loan.

CDS pricing can be used as a gauge of the riskiness of corporate and sovereign
borrowers.

Credit ratings

A credit rating evaluates the credit worthiness of an issuer of debt, specifically, debt
issued by a business enterprise such as a corporation or a government. It is an
evaluation made by a credit rating agency of the debt issuer’s likelihood of default.

Credit ratings are determined by credit ratings agencies. The credit rating represents
their evaluation of qualitative and quantitative information for a company or
government; including non-public information obtained by the credit rating agencies
analysts.

Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF)

The Debt Management Office provides the DMADF as part of its cash management
operations and in the context of a wider series of measures designed to support local
authorities' cash management.

The DMADF currently offers fixed term deposits. All deposits taken will be placed in,
and interest paid from, the Debt Management Account. All deposits will be also
guaranteed by HM Government and therefore have the equivalent of a sovereign
triple-A credit rating.

Financing Costs

An aggregation of interest charges, interest payable under finance leases and other
long-term liabilities and MRP, net of interest and investment income.

Page 137



Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The Housing Revenue Account reflects a statutory obligation to account separately
for local authority housing provision, as defined particularly in Schedule 4 of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. it shows the major elements of housing
revenue expenditure — maintenance, administration and rent rebates — and capital
financing costs, and how these are met by rents, subsidy and other income.

London Inter Bank Bid Rate (LIBID)
The London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) is a bid rate; the rate bid by banks on
deposits i.e. the rate at which a bank is willing to borrow from other banks.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Statutory charge to the revenue account as an annual provision for the repayment of
debt associated with expenditure incurred on capital assets.

Money Market Funds

Money market funds are mutual funds that invest in short-term money market
instruments. These funds allow investors to participate in a more diverse and high-
quality portfolio than if they were to invest individually.

Like other mutual funds, each investor in a money market fund is considered a
shareholder of the investment pool, or a part owner of the fund. All investors in a
money market fund have a claim on a pro-rata share of the fund's assets in line with
the number of ‘shares' or ‘units' owned.

Net Revenue Stream
This is the element of a local authority’s budget to be met from government grants
and local taxpayers.

Non-specified Investments
These are any investments which do not meet the Specified Investment criteria.

Operational Boundary
This is the most likely, prudent view of the level of gross external indebtedness. It
encompasses all borrowing, whether for capital or cash flow purposes.

Private Finance Initiative (PF!)

Private Finance Initiative (PFI} was introduced in the 1990s by the government to
finance public sector projects. The main aims are to reduce public sector borrowing,
introduce more innovative ways to provide public services and utilise private sector
skills and experience to increase the efficiency of the public sector.

Prudential Indicators

In order to demonstrate that local authorities have fulfilled the objectives of the
Prudential Code, it sets out a basket of indicators that must be prepared and used.
The required indicators have to be set, as a minimum, on a three year time frame
and are designed to support and record local decision-making, rather than be a
means of comparing authorities.

The purpose is to set these historic and forward looking indicators in a circular
process and look at the indicators collectively rather than individually, in order to
determine the impact of forward plans for capital or revenue expenditure. For some
projects and large commitments to capital expenditure, a timeframe in excess of
three years is advisable.

Page 138



Public Works Loans Board (PWLB)
The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is a statutory body operating within the United
Kingdom Debt Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM Treasury.

PWLB's function is to lend money from the National Loans Fund to local authorities
and other prescribed bodies, and to collect the repayments.

Specified Investments
All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum of
1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable.

Weighted Average Life
The average time that deposits are lent out for, weighted by principal amount.

Page 139



Annex 1: Treasury Management Practices

TMP1 Risk management

General statement

The responsible officer will design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the
identification, management and control of treasury management risk, will report at
least annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of
urgency, the circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the
organisation’s objectives in this respect, all in accordance with the procedures set
out in TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements.

In respect of each of the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure
compliance with these objectives are set out in the schedule to this document.

[1] credit and counterparty risk management

This organisation regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be
the security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its
counterparty lists and limits refiect a prudent attitude fowards organisations with
whom funds may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in TMP4 Approved instruments,
methods and techniques and listed in the schedule to this document. It also
recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counterparty
policy in respect of those organisations from which it may borrow, or with whom it
may enter into other financing or derivative arrangements.

[2] liquidity risk management

This organisation will ensure it has adequate though not excessive cash resources,
borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times to
have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement of its
business/service objectives.

This organisation will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business
case for doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to finance
future debt maturities.

[3] interest rate risk management

This organisation will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view
to containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with
the amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in accordance with
TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements.

It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved instruments, methods and
techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at
the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of
unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level or structure of interest
rates. This should be the subject to the consideration and, if required, approval of
any policy or budgetary implications.

It will ensure that any hedging tools such as derivatives are only used for the

management of risk and the prudent management of financial affairs and that the
policy for the use of derivatives is clearly detailed in the annual strategy.

Page 140



[4] exchange rate risk management
It will manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates so as to minimise any
detrimental impact on its budgeted income/expenditure levels.

[5] refinancing risk management

This organisation will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and parinership
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile of
the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for renewal
or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the
organisation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions
prevailing at the time.

It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions in
such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid overreliance on any one
source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above.

[6] legal and regulatory risk management

This organisation will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply
with its statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such
compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities. In
framing its credit and counterparty policy under TMP1[1] credit and counterparty risk
management, it will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’ powers, authority
and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the organisation,
particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged.

This organisation recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact
on its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so,
will seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the organisation.

[7] fraud, error and corruption, and contingency management

This organisation will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may
expose it to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its
treasury management dealings. Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and
procedures, and will maintain effective contingency management arrangements, to
these ends.

[8] market risk management

This organisation will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies
and objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value
of the principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself from the
effects of such fluctuations.

TMP2 Performance measurement

This organisation is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its treasury
management activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support of that
aim, within the framework set out in its treasury management policy statement.
Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing
analysis of the value it adds in support of the organisation’s stated business or
service objectives. It will be the subject of regular examination of alternative methods
of service delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy incentives,

and of the scope for other potential improvements.

Page 141



TMP3 Decision making and analysis

This organisation will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions, and
of the processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the
purposes of learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps
were taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into
account at the time.

TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques

This organisation will undertake its treasury management activities by employing
only those instruments, methods and techniques detailed in the schedule to this
document, and within the limits and parameters defined in TMP1 Risk management.

Where this organisation intends to use derivative instruments for the management of
risks, these will be limited to those set out in its annual treasury strategy. The
organisation will seek proper advice and will consider that advice when entering into
arrangements to use such products to ensure that it fully understands those
products.

TMPS5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and dealing
arrangements

This crganisation considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and
monitoring of its treasury management activities, for the reduction of the risk of fraud
or error, and for the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are
structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times a
clarity of treasury management responsibilities.

The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those charged
with setting treasury management policies and those charged with implementing and
controlling these policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission
of funds, the recording and administering of treasury management decisions, and the
audit and review of the treasury management function.

If and when this organisation intends, as a result of lack of resources or other
circumstances, to depart from these principles, the responsible officer will ensure
that the reasons are properly reported in accordance with TMP6 Reporting
requirements and management information arrangements, and the implications
properly considered and evaluated.

The responsible officer will ensure that there are clear writien statements of the
responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, and the
arrangements for absence cover. The responsible officer will also ensure that at all
times those engaged in treasury management will follow the policies and procedures
set out. The present arrangements are detailed in the schedule to this document.

The responsible officer will ensure there is proper documentation for all deals and
transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds.

The delegations to the responsible officer in respect of treasury management are set
out in the schedule to this document. The responsible officer will fulfil all such
responsibilities in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and TMPs
and, if a CIPFA member, the Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

Page 142



TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements

This organisation will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the
implementation of its treasury management policies; on the effects of decisions
taken and transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the implications of
changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or other
factors affecting its treasury management activities; and on the performance of the
treasury management function.

As a minimum:

The organisation (ie full board/council) will receive:

.- an annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming year

.. a mid-year review

. an annual report on the performance of the treasury management function, on the
effects of the decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past year, and on
any circumstances of non-compliance with the organisation’s treasury management
policy statement and TMPs.

The committee/board/council will receive regular monitoring reports on treasury
management activities and risks.

The body responsible for scrutiny, such an audit or scrutiny committee, will have
responsibility for the scrutiny of treasury management policies and practices.

Local authorities should report the treasury management indicators as detailed in
their sector specific guidance notes.

TMP7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements

The responsible officer will prepare, and this organisation will approve and, if
necessary, from time to time will amend, an annual budget for treasury management,
which will bring together all of the costs involved in running the treasury
management function, together with associated income. The matters to be included
in the budget will at minimum be those required by statute or regulation, together
with such information as will demonstrate compliance with TMP1 Risk management,
TMP2 Performance measurement, and TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and
techniques. The responsible officer will exercise effective controls over this budget,
and will report upon and recommend any changes required in accordance with
TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements.

This organisation will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions
made and transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting
practices and standards, and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for
the time being.

TMP8 Cash and cash flow management

Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the
hands of this organisation will be under the control of the responsible officer, and will
be aggregated for cash flow and investment management purposes. Cash flow
projections will be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the responsible officer
will ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with
TMP1[1] liquidity risk management.

Page 143



TMP9 Money laundering

This organisation is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an
attempt to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money. Accordingly,
it will maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties
and reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved in this are properly
trained.

TMP10 Training and qualifications

This organisation recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the
treasury management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and
responsibilities allocated to them. It will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are
both capable and experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them to
acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills. The
responsible officer will recommend and implement the necessary arrangements.

The responsible officer will ensure that board/council members tasked with treasury
management responsibilities, including those responsible for scrutiny, have access
to training relevant to their needs and those responsibilities.

Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure
that they have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively.

TMP11 Use of external service providers

This organisation recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at ali times. It recognises that there may be potential
value in employing external providers of treasury management services, in order to
acquire access to specialist skills and resources. When it employs such service
providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons which have been submitted to a full
evaluation of the costs and benefits. It will also ensure that the terms of their
appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. And it will ensure, where
feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers is used, to avoid
overreliance on one or a small number of companies. Where services are subject to
formal tender or re-tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be
observed.

TMP12 Corporate governance

This organisation is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance
throughout its businesses and services, and to establishing the principles and
practices by which this can be achieved. Accordingly, the treasury management
function and its activities will be undertaken with openness and transparency,
honesty, integrity and accountability.

This organisation has adopted and has implemented the key principles of the Code.
This, together with the other arrangements detailed in the schedule to this document,
are considered vital to the achievement of proper corporate governance in treasury
management, and the responsible officer will monitor and, if and when necessary,
report upon the effectiveness of these arrangements.

Page 144



	Agenda
	4 Medium Term Financial Plan 2016/17 to 2019/20 (MTFP 6) and 2016/17 Budget - Report of Assistant Chief Executive
	MTFP Report




